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Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Group”) has
been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 1993. We are one of the world’s leading container
manufacturers and a major operator of container depots and
terminals in the Asian-Pacific region. Our container factory
and depot networks are among the most comprehensive in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Our manufacturing business is currently supported by nine
factories in the PRC. We manufacture a wide range of
products including dry freight containers, collapsible flatrack
containers, open top containers, bitutainers, refrigerated
containers, US domestic containers, tank containers, offshore
containers and other specialised containers and container
parts.

Our logistics business includes container depots/terminals
and logistics company, and is currently running eleven
container depots/terminals, nine at the major ports in the
PRC — Dalian, Tianjin, Qingdao, Qidong, Shanghai, Ningbo,
Fuzhou, Xiamen and Guangxi, and two in Hong Kong. We
also operate a logistics company in Xiamen, the PRC.
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

REVENUE PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE
T T TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
AATREELER (EIE)
US$'000 US$'000
FER FER
2,000,000 90,000
1,546,483 60,000
1 500,000 1,476,670 . 41,452
1,282,988 30,000 28,021
1,126,414 I
1,000,000 916,433 0 -
-2,723
-30,000
500,000
-60,000
-59,434
-90,000
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
2017
—E—+tHF
US$’000
FEx
Revenue 4] 1,476,670
Profit (loss) from operations we s A (B 18) 70,652
Profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company 72 BIR% 5 fE {5 % A1) (5 18) 41,452
Basic earnings (loss) per share (US cents) EARGREF (EE) (EML) 1.72
Net asset value per share (US cents) SRR E EFE (E) 23.76
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RARRER E(EER 574,199
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNIES 234,774
Total borrowings (Note) REEWE) 427,760
Current ratio et = 1.51to/ Lt 1
Gearing ratio BREEELE 0.74
Net debt to equity ratio ERFRERRESLE 0.34
Interest coverage ratio ) BBt = 73
Return on equity (%) % 25 U 25 2R (%) 7.2
Note:  Total borrowings represent the aggregate amount of interest-bearing borrowings.
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REVENUE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
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FET FET FET FET
916,433 1,126,414 1,546,483 1,282,988
(49,638) 16,562 65,024 61,573
(59,434) 2,723) 28,021 34,274
(2.46) ©.11) 1.16 1.42

22.05 24.63 25.54 24.72
533,014 595,282 617,630 598,263
209,009 242,726 249,793 306,640
365,540 315,000 377,564 412,160
1.30to/ th 1 2.35t0/ tb1 2.11to/ k1 1.66 to / Ht1
0.69 0.53 0.61 0.69

0.29 0.12 0.21 0.18

N/A 7.8 1.2 9.2
(11.15) (0.45) 45 5.7
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®E

Mr. Teo Siong Seng
RIAEREE

Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

FEREETTIHARE:

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby
present the operating results of Singamas Container Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The global economy began to improve during the
review year, leading to a rise in international trade. As a
consequence, shipping volume increased, particularly in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), which drove demand for
containers. The uptake resultantly led to a turnaround in the
Group’s performance, with consolidated revenue increasing
by 61.1% to US$1,476,670,000 (2016: US$916,433,000)
and consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company reaching US$41,452,000, as compared with
a consolidated loss of US$59,434,000 for the financial
year ended 31 December 2016. Basic earnings per share
amounted to US1.72 cents versus loss per share of US2.46
cents in 2016.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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DIVIDENDS

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend of HK2.5 cents
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: Nil). Together with an interim dividend of HK1.5 cents
per ordinary share (2016: Nil), total dividend for the year will
be HK4 cents per ordinary share (2016: Nil). The dividend
payout ratio for the year approximates to 29.9 % (2016: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW
Manufacturing

The demand for new containers has been gradually rising
since end of 2016, initially driven by the corresponding pick
up in shipping volume during the year, especially in the PRC.
Momentum was subsequently maintained by a recovering
global economy and the rise in international trade. Large
shipping companies and container leasing operators also
continued to show interest in purchasing new containers, and
demand for replacement of containers were high.

Our manufacturing operation benefited from these
developments and as a result, revenue was at
US$1,443,177,000 for the review year, up from
US$880,654,000 in 2016, accounting for 97.7% of the
Group’s total revenue. In all, the manufacturing operation
produced 738,286 twenty-foot equivalent units (“TEUs”) for
the year ended 31 December 2017, up 41.0% from 523,785
TEUs recorded in the preceding year. The average selling
price (“ASP”) of a 20’ dry freight container rose appreciably
from US$1,457 in 2016 to US$2,102 in 2017 owing to
increase demand as well as higher cost associated with the
use of waterborne paint in the production process. Total
sales volume reached 715,733 TEUs (2016: 543,708 TEUs),
which enabled us to record a segment profit before taxation
and non-controlling interests of US$51,655,000 as compared
with a segment loss before taxation and non-controlling
interests of US$59,607,000 in 2016.

_,j |
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Chairman’s Statement EE#H &

Although dry freight containers continued to account for
the bulk of manufacturing revenue at 85.5%, specialised
containers remain an integral part of our product portfolio
(2016: dry freight 66% vs specialised 34%). Besides of
traditional sea freight containers, we provide wide range of
products which are able to tailor different requirements, one
of which is fish farming containers. Fish farming containers
are considered an efficient and environmentally friendly
means of breeding fish as they remove the need to clear land
or reserve bodies of water. In kicking off this newest venture,
we delivered fish farming containers to six key provinces in
the PRC during the review year.

The offshore container business has gradually improved
on the back of rising oil prices and increased orders from
container leasing operators. It is worth noting as well that our
joint venture in Modex Holding Limited, a company principally
engaged in the leasing of offshore containers, completed its
restructuring and streamlining activities in mid-2017, which
would be more competitive when the offshore market is
picking up.

As for developments on the production front, construction of
our offshore container factory in Qidong has concluded, and
the production of high-standard cabins has shifted to these
new facilities. Also, retooling of our factories for producing
dry freight containers with waterborne paint finishes has
been completed, and we are now fully capable of meeting
production demands. In reference to our reefer container
factory in Qingdao, construction work has been completed.
Trial operation is scheduled for the first quarter of the new
financial year, and we trust that the upgraded factory will
be fully capable of supporting our refrigerated container
business, specifically for the northern PRC market.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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Logistics Services

The logistics services business faced headwinds towards
the second half year that eventually led to revenue
declined marginally to US$33,493,000, compared with
US$35,779,000 in 2016. The decline corresponded with
the decrease in number of containers handled, totalling
approximately 3,397,000 TEUs (2016: 3,734,000 TEUs), due
to high export demand and the resultant less idle containers
on the ground. Average daily storage dropped to 88,000
TEUs compared with 138,000 TEUs in 2016.

Despite soft demand, we consider logistics services as
an integral and complementary service for our customers
as well as a logical and viable means of expanding our
revenue streams. Our joint venture with Guangxi Beibu Gulf
International Port Group Ltd. and Port of Singapore reflects
this outlook. During the review year, we have continued
to oversee reclamation work on a property located in the
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region — a region that is
strategically significant as it is among the sites that will benefit
from the PRC government’s “One Belt, One Road” initiative
and which holds enormous opportunities for the logistics
sector. Though reclamation work and container depot
construction are scheduled for completion by mid-2019,
the joint venture has been providing logistics solutions since
November 2017 via property rented in Qinzhou.

Chairman’s Statement = E#H &
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Chairman’s Statement = E#H &

Since establishing a joint venture with Apollo Logisolutions
Limited in March 2017 with the objective of establishing
a liquid tank logistics operation in India, the Group’s tank
factory has been receiving orders for tank containers from this
joint venture company. It is also worth noting that subsequent
to the review year, i.e. January 2018, the joint venture
company has commenced logistics operation of transporting
liquid by tanks on railway.

PROSPECTS

The year 2018 is expected to see the global economy
continue improving, with the World Bank forecasts growth
to edge up to 38.1%' and the International Monetary Fund
forecasts an even more optimistic 3.9%, driven by the
ongoing recovery in investment, manufacturing and trade, as
well as commodity-exporting developing economies benefit
from firming commodity prices. On the shipping front, cellular
fleet growth is forecasted to rise by 5.6% in 2018, according
to Alphaliner, which should further drive container demand.
Yet additional stimuli will come by way of shipping and leasing
companies as both parties are expected to remain bullish
about prospects in 2018.

Bt =% —+F = A &Apollo Logisolutions
LimitedpX 32 & B % - BRI EAREBESED
MER  AEENRERERCZEEDLE

HRSHEMETE - I BRI LR
FEZEREIZE-N\F—H) AaELXEH
WY EE N RERANE R E RS -

Al =

RENEE  RERESHEER  UEER
ERCEBERMKEBERRT OMERPLEERE
R RHEEEAN - \FBEENRE -
tRIBITIEAE RGIEEAEI1%  BEE
MR SR TERIE 2L - 3Z25)3.9% © ERM
EHE - BiBAphainer - EEMBN - —/)\F
TERT EFF 5.6% @ E— TS EEEBENTX -
mAEMBE R A SBINRBRE - 1851
MEE_ZT—N\FHEEEMHII=ER-

U http://www.worldbank.org/en/news/press-release/2018/01/09/global-economy-to-edge-up-to-3-1-percent-in-2018

-but-future-potential-growth-a-concern
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Given the aforementioned developments, we view 2018
with cautious optimism, and expect dry freight containers
to continue being the primary and stable source of revenue.
That said, specialised containers, particularly refrigerated
containers, will be our growth driver, buoyed by the
Qingdao production lines that have commence operation
in March 2018. Furthermore, we will be introducing a new
assembled-on-site refrigerated container which is jointly
developed by the Group and Carrier Transicold, in the
second quarter of 2018. This new product is expected to be
well received by the market given their various performance
advantages.

Paving the way for further growth, we have increased our
equity stake in Modex Holding Limited from 29.9% to 42.9%
subsequently in February 2018. The initiative highlights both
our confidence in the joint venture and the offshore container
business, as well as our commitment to advancing this area
of interest in the coming years.

While we are constantly examining ways to develop our
business, we are no less determined to develop our portfolio
of products, as demonstrated by the upcoming launch of
assembled-on-site refrigerated containers and the recent
introduction of fish farming containers. To expedite such
efforts, we will continue to bolster our R&D capabilities by
recruiting the best and brightest, including graduates from
prominent universities in the PRC, leading to the roll-out of
even more attractive customer-centric solutions.

APPRECIATION

| would like take this opportunity to express my sincerest
gratitude to all of our business partners, customers and
stakeholders for their unwavering support. With the support
of the Board, management and staff must be praised also for
their perseverance and decisiveness, enabling us to achieve a
turnaround during the past year.

Mr Teo Siong Seng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Frequently Asked Questions
— R 12 ]

The demand for new containers improved in 2017.
Do you expect the growth momentum to maintain in
2018? What is Singamas’ view towards the industrial
atmosphere in 20187

The global economic improvement caused an increase
in trading activities and shipping volume (especially
exports from the PRC), which improved market
demand for new containers in 2017.

In 2018, the global economy is expected to continue
improving and cellular fleet in the shipping front to
continue growing, which should further drive container
demand. Yet additional stimuli will come by way of
shipping and leasing companies as both parties are
expected to remain bullish about prospects in 2018.

In view of this, the Group will continue to optimise
operating efficiency in all aspects through ongoing
automation of various manufacturing activities and
implementing more stringent cost controls. The Group
will also seize more business opportunities in logistics
services business and broaden income streams
through cooperation with local and overseas business
partners.

The average selling price (“ASP”) of containers has
picked up in 2017. How is your view of the ASP
towards 20187 Do you expect the price growth
momentum to maintain in 20187

ASP of containers increased during the year due to
higher demand as well as higher production cost
associated with the use of waterborne paint and the
increase in steel cost.

We believe market demand for new containers
remains good and the tightening of environmental
controls in the PRC is favourable to steel price which
could in turn support a rise in the ASP of dry freight
container.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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What is the current new container inventory level in
the market? What is the order book looking like for dry
freight containers and specialised containers?

The current new container inventory in the market is
around 550,000 twenty-foot equivalent units (“TEUS”).
Due to strong demand after Lunar New Year, we
currently have 1.5 months of orders for dry freight
containers and 2 months of orders for specialised
containers on hand.

Specialised containers business experienced intense
competition and the profit margin of specialised
containers decline during the year. How would
Singamas improve the performance of this business?
What’s the growth momentum of this sector?

Despite the less favourable return from specialised
containers, the Group was able to attract orders by
providing container solutions to suit customers’ needs.
Diverse use of specialised containers in non-sea
freight purpose including fish farming, housing, storing
provides enormous business opportunities to the
Group.

Besides, the Group’s new refrigerated container
factory in Qingdao has been completed and will begin
trial operation in first quarter of 2018 to support the
refrigerated container business (especially for the
northern PRC market). We believe that specialised
containers, particularly refrigerated containers, will be
our growth driver, buoyed by the Qingdao production
lines that have commenced operation in March 2018.

A new assembled-on-site refrigerated container
system jointly developed with Carrier Transicold will
also be introduced in the second quarter of 2018. It is
expected to be well received by the market given their
various performance advantages.

Frequently Asked Questions — %12 ]
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Frequently Asked Questions —f& 12

What is the latest performance of Qidong Singamas
Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd. (“QSOE")? Singamas
has recently increased the stake in Modex, why is
that?

Construction of our new offshore container factory in
Qidong through our wholly owned subsidiary QSOE,
has concluded and production of high-specification
containers has been shifted to these new facilities.
With the pickup in oil price, more oil companies
reactivate their investment projects; we expect
demand for offshore containers to increase in 2018.

The Group’s joint venture in Modex Holding
Limited (“Modex”) has completed restructuring and
streamlining activities in mid 2017, which allows the
business to be more competitive when the offshore
market picks up.

In February 2018, the Group has increased its equity
stake in Modex from 29.9% to 42.9%, an initiative that
highlights both the confidence in the joint venture and
the offshore container business, as well as the Group’s
commitment to advancing this area of interest in the
coming years.

Logistics services business of the Group reported a
weak performance. Any initiative was taken to seize
market opportunity and expand the Group’s profit in
the future?

Logistics services business faced headwinds towards
the second half year and eventually led to a marginal
decline of revenue mainly due to decreased number
of containers handled and storage resulted from high
export demand and therefore less idle containers on
the ground.
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Despite soft demand, the Group continues to
see logistics services business as an integral and
complementary service for our customers, as well
as a logical and viable means of expanding revenue
streams. Our joint venture with Guangxi Beibu Gulf
International Port Group Ltd. and Port of Singapore
reflect our outlook on this.

The Group’s joint venture with India’s leading
integrated logistics solutions provider, Apollo
Logisolution Limited, is progressing well and it has
commenced logistics operation to transport liquid by
tanks on railway since January 2018.

What is Singamas’ expectation for the vessels delivery
business in 20187

Based on industry publications, the scheduled
delivery of vessels would be around 214 in 2018, with
an estimated increase in total shipping capacity of
approximate 1.6 milion TEUs. Among the 214 fleets
to be delivered in 2018, 84 have a capacity of over
10,000 TEUs.

The cost of corten steel increased in 2017. As corten
steel is a major determinant of container price, what
is your view towards the price trend of corten steel in
20187

With Chinese government acting aggressively to
address the oversupply issue as well as stringent
environmental regulations to control emissions, steel
price strongly picked up in 2017 and expects to be
stabilised in 2018.

Frequently Asked Questions — %12 ]
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Honorary Chairman, Directors and Senior Management Profile
REFR EEREEEEAESEN

The Honorary Chairman and directors of the Company
(“Director”) at the date of this annual report are as follows:

HONORARY CHAIRMAN
Mr. Chang Yun Chung

DIRECTORS
Mr. Teo Siong Seng " Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Chan Kwok Leung " Executive Director and
Chief Operating Officer

Executive Director
Executive Director,
Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng *
Ms. Chung Pui King,
Rebecca

Mr. Kuan Kim Kin #2
Mr. Tan Chor Kee

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, Independent
David Non-executive Director

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan # Independent
Non-executive Director

Mr. Yang, Victor # Independent

Non-executive Director

# Audit Committee Member

" Management Committee Member
° Nomination Committee Member

4 Remuneration Committee Member

Brief biographical details of the Honorary Chairman and
Directors at the date of this annual report are as follows:

HONORARY CHAIRMAN

Mr. Chang Yun Chung (also known as Mr. Teo Woon
Tiong), aged 99, the former Chairman of the Board, was
appointed on 20 April 1993 but was then appointed as
Honorary Chairman of the Company on 27 May 2013
following his retirement as a director of the Company.
Mr. Chang started his shipping career in Singapore in 1949
and is the founder of Pacific International Lines (Private)
Limited (“PIL"), the controlling shareholder of the Company as
defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Chang is the father of Mr. Teo Siong Seng
and Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, directors of the Company. Mr. Chang
graduated from the Xiamen Datung College. Mr. Chang is
the Chairman of the PIL Group of companies in Singapore,
which is engaged in shipping and related businesses. He
is also the Chairman of Pacific International Lines (H.K.)
Limited (“PILHK”) of Hong Kong, a subsidiary of PIL, Maya
Corporation Pte. Ltd. of Singapore, Malaysia Shipping
Corporation Sdn. Bhd. of Malaysia, Eastern Maritime
(Thailand) Ltd. and Pacific Seatran Lines Ltd. of Thailand.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, B.Sc. (Naval Architect), aged 63,
was appointed on 20 April 1993, became the President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February 1997
and was appointed as Chairman of the Company on 27
May 2013. Mr. Teo is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company and he is also the younger brother of Mr. Teo Tiou
Seng. Mr. Teo started his shipping career with PIL Group in
Singapore since 1979 and was appointed as the managing
director of PIL in October 1992. He is an executive director
of various PIL subsidiaries and joint venture companies
whose activities include shipowning, liner shipping, ship
agencies, freight forwarding, container manufacturing,
ships recycling, marine services, container depot/terminal
operation, warehousing, logistics park, real estate and travel.
He is currently an independent non-executive director of
COSCO SHIPPING Energy Transportation Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as China Shipping Development Company Limited)
and COSCO SHIPPING Holdings Co., Ltd.; both companies
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
the Shanghai Stock Exchange. He is the Chairman of
Singapore Business Federation and the Honorary President
of Singapore Chinese Chamber of Commerce & Industry.
Mr. Teo is the Honorary Consul of The United Republic of
Tanzania in Singapore. He is the Honorary Citizen of Foshan
City (Guangdong Province) and Yixing City (Jiangsu Province)
of the PRC respectively.
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Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, aged 60, was appointed on 1
March 2012. Mr. Chan is the Chief Operating Officer of the
Company and is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He joined Eng Kong Container Services Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company, on 1 July 1994. He has more
than 38 years of combined experience in marketing, container
depot management, container inspection and repair, and
container leasing. Prior to joining the Company, he was the
Technical Director of Unicon International Ltd., a container
surveying company with major interests in the Far East.

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, aged 65, was appointed on 26 June
1996 as Executive Director of the Company and is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Teo
is the elder brother of Mr. Teo Siong Seng and has been
engaging in shipping business since 1977. Mr. Teo graduated
and holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from
the University of Western Ontario, Richard Ivey School of
Business. He has more than 35 years of working experience
in container transport business and is also a director of PIL
and the managing director of PILHK.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, V.B.A., HKICPA, FCCA,
aged 49, was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company on 2 July 2015. She was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company
on 2 February 2013 and 10 September 2013 respectively.
She is also the director of a subsidiary of the Company. She
was appointed as the director of Modex Holding Limited,
an associate of the Company, which specialised in leasing
and trading of offshore containers, on 10 October 2014.
Ms. Chung joined the Group on 1 January 1996. She
has more than 26 years of combined experience in public
accountancy, sourcing and manufacturing.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kuan Kim Kin, aged 69, was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company on 15 July
1998. Mr. Kuan has been an executive director of the
Finance Division of PIL since 7 June 2004. He also holds
directorship in various PIL’s Group of Companies. Other
than their relationship with PIL, these various PIL’s Group of
Companies are third parties independent of the Company
and connected persons of the Company. Prior to joining PIL,
he held a number of senior financial and accounting positions
across diverse business groups, including two public listed
companies in Malaysia. Mr. Kuan is a fellow member of The
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (United
Kingdom).

Mr. Tan Chor Kee, aged 65, was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company on 2 July 2013.
Mr. Tan graduated from the University of Singapore with a
first class honour degree in Mechanical Engineering. He has
more than 40 years of experience in shipping particularly in
equipment management, costs control, corporate planning,
logistics operations, agency and liner business. Mr. Tan is
currently the Deputy Managing Director of PIL.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, aged 69, was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 1 November 2012. Mr. Cheng graduated in 1975 from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor (Honors)
Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive experience in
banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng has
assumed the position of independent non-executive director
of Grandland Shipping Limited with effect from 1 January
2016. Mr. Cheng has also been appointed as independent
non-executive director of Miricor Enterprises Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the growth enterprise market
of the Stock Exchange, with effect from 19 December 2016.
Mr. Cheng has retired from the Head of Shipfinance in Asia
of Credit Agricole CIB with effective from 1 May 2014. He
has also retired from the Senior Advisor to Credit Agricole
CIB with effect from 30 June 2016, but remains as a director
and Honorary Chairman of Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance
Limited. Grandland Shipping Limited, Miricor Enterprises
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Holdings Limited, Credit Agricole CIB and Credit Agricole
Asia Shipfinance Limited are third parties independent of
the Company and connected persons of the Company.
Mr. Cheng has also been appointed by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for a two years
term as Member of the Maritime and Port Board (“MPB”) and
Chairman of the Promotion and External Relations Committee
under the MPB with effect from 1 April 2016. Mr. Cheng is a
member of the Working Group on Transportation under the
Hong Kong Economic Development Commission. He is also
the Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong Maritime Museum.
In June 2015, Mr. Cheng was conferred the Distinction
of “Chevalier de I'ordre National du Mérite” by the French
Government.

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan, aged 59, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
1 March 2011. Mr. Lau is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lau
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Master’s Degree in Professional Accounting. He
has extensive experience in accounting and financial
management. Mr. Lau has been appointed as independent
non-executive director of The Grande Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
from 25 July 2016 to 22 December 2017. Mr. Lau is currently
an independent non-executive director of CCT Land Holdings
Limited (formerly known as CCT Tech International Limited),
a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
He is also an independent non-executive director of Glory
Mark Hi~Tech (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the
growth enterprise market of the Stock Exchange. The Grande
Holdings Limited, CCT Land Holdings Limited and Glory Mark
Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited are third parties independent of
the Company and connected persons of the Company.
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Mr. Yang, Victor, aged 72, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 15 April 2008.
Mr. Yang was a founding partner of Boughton Peterson
Yang Anderson, Solicitors, Hong Kong and he is also a
qualified lawyer in Canada and the United Kingdom. Mr. Yang
has over 44 years experience in legal practice primarily in
the areas of corporate finance, commercial law, mergers
and acquisitions. He is presently an Executive Committee
member and an immediate past Governor of the Canadian
Chamber of Commerce, a council member of Haw Par Music
Foundation Limited, a director of the Hong Kong Foundation
for UBC Limited and a member of the University of British
Columbia, Canada, Dean of Law’s Council of Advisors.
Mr. Yang was a past board member of the Canadian
International School of Hong Kong Limited and a past
member of the Major Sports Events Committee of the Home
Affairs Bureau, Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
Mr. Yang is also an independent non-executive director of
Playmates Toys Limited and One Media Group Limited,
which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Yang remained as a non-executive director of Lei Shing
Hong Limited after the company privatized in March 2008
and resigned as an independent non-executive director of
Media Chinese International Limited, China Agri-Industries
Holdings Limited and China Hanking Holdings Limited
as of 1 October 2009, 26 August 2015 and 19 January
2016 respectively. China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited,
Playmates Toys Limited, Lei Shing Hong Limited, Media
Chinese International Limited, One Media Group Limited
and China Hanking Holdings Limited, all are third parties
independent of the Company and connected persons of the
Company.

All Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years but shall be eligible for re-election
at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association. For the particulars of
the Directors proposed to be re-elected at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, please refer to the circular
accompanied with this annual report.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management at the date of this annual report are
as follows:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Chan Kwok Leung Chief Operating Officer
Ms. Chung Pui King, Chief Financial Officer and
Rebecca Company Secretary

Mr. Ren Yu Dong
Mr. Wu Bing Hong

Vice President
Vice President

Details of the senior management at the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, was appointed as President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February 1997, then
appointed as Chairman of the Company on 27 May 2013.
Please refer to the Directors section for details.

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, was appointed as Executive Vice
President of Marketing and General Manager — Hong Kong
Container Depot and Terminal Operations on 1 July 1994 and
was appointed as Chief Operating Officer of the Company on
1 November 2012. Please refer to the Directors section for
details.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company on
2 February 2013 and 10 September 2013. Please refer to the
Directors section for detalils.

Mr. Ren Yu Dong, aged 56, was appointed as Vice
President of the Company on 1 April 2014. Mr. Ren
is currently the General Manager of Qidong Singamas
Energy Equipment Co., Ltd.. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ren joined the Company on
1 August 2002. He has more than 36 years of experience in
container manufacturing.

Mr. Wu Bing Hong, aged 45, was appointed as Vice
President of the Company on 1 January 2016. Mr. Wu is in
charge of various divisions of the Group including Marketing
Department in Shanghai, Quality Management Department
and Research & Development Center. He also assists in
overseeing the operation of the Group’s factories. Mr. Wu
graduated from Guangzhou Ji'nan University with major in
Business Administration and graduated from Hubei University
of Technology with a Bachelor Degree in Administrative
Management. Mr. Wu joined the Group in 2001. He has
over 25 years of experience in container manufacturing and
corporate management.
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Corporate Governance Report

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has
consistently adopted and complied with the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) as set out in Corporate Governance Code and
Croporate Goverance Report contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) as guidelines to reinforce our corporate
governance principles, except for certain deviations which are
disclosed below:

M Code Provision A.2.1, Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up
both roles as the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer are not separated.
The Board considers that this structure has the
advantage of a strong and consistent leadership which
is conducive to making and implementing decisions
efficiently and consistently.

) Code Provision A.6.7, due to other commitments,
two Non-executive Directors of the Company had not
attended the general meeting held on 12 December
2017.

Save for the above deviations, none of the Directors is aware
of any information which would reasonably indicate that the
Company is not, or, was not during the year in compliance
with the code provisions of the Code as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”/“Directors”)
believes that appropriate corporate governance practices are
essential for the Company to enhance its accountability and
transparency so as to achieve a balance of the interests of
shareholders, customers, employees and investment partners
of the Company in all material respects. Accordingly, the
Company aims at maintaining high standards of corporate
govemance practices.
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Key corporate governance principles and corporate
governance practices of the Company are summarised

ARAIZEBCEERRAURTEERATHRM
M

below:
Comply (‘C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #x(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
234 FEHX #R(E) TEERER
A DIRECTORS
Ex
Al The Board
£
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The Board should assume responsibilty for leadership and control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supenvising the Company's affairs.
ESOREEEERERARNER UREREREREELASE
The Board should regularly review the contrioution required from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether he/she is spending sufficient time
performing them.
EZORTMRNEZNAABNREMBNLNER UREBEERENL R ANBEIRE -
A1 Regular board meetings should be held at least C o The Board held five megtings in 2017. The Board would mest more frequently as and when

four times a year involving active participation,
either in person or through electronic means of
communication, of majortty of directors.
ERETHeRREFELBRNN ABDE
SARGLR JERETRANARELE-

required.
EEEN-T-tEARTRNEE -RARER ESCTARENEE -

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. No alternative Director was appointed during 2017.
EZeRANERIES MAFRTESR=RBUFNTESREN - —T—tERY
EZEEMERES-

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date and details of
Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings held for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set
out below:

BBt A=T-BULSERBZER EZENERERLREE -+
FTZRA=T-BLEENESSREHIINT

Number of
attendance

Name of Directors E=ns HERE
Executive Directors HiTES
Teo Siong Seng KINE

(Chaiman and Chief Executive Offcer) (2B # B E1TRAE) 5/5
Chan Kwok Leung IREIR

(Chief Operating Officer) (BEZELE 505
Teo Tiou Seng REE 5/5
Chung Pui King, Rebecca ERR

(Chief Financial Officer and (BEABEESR

Company Secretary) ReiE) 5/5
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Kuan Kim Kin BihE 505
Tan Chor Kee B 5/5
Independent Non-executive Directors BV F#{TES
Cheng Fu Kwok, David e 5/5
Lau Ho K, van Blet 505
Yang, Victor HER 505
Ong Ka Thai IFF

(retiredt on 22 June 2017) (RZE—tF AZTZREMA) 22
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Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions B3 (cl)/ Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 FAKX :2-3(1 ) TEERESR
A1 o The Directors may attend megtings in person, by conference telephone or by means of a
(cont'd) similar communication equipment or by their alternate in accordance with the Company's
(&) Articles of Association (the “Articles”). An updated and consolidated version of the Company’s
Articles (both English and Chinese versions) are available on the websites of the Company
(nttp://www.singamas.com) and Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews. hk).
BEARA ARERME ((ZRMA]) - 28T  BRSHERIANBNSEN
LEES AMHEAESRAME  ARARRMA SHEARA (KX RAXR) -
BB A nttp://www.singamas.com) 527 32 htto://www. hkexnews. hkj 8 5 -
A12 Al directors are given an opportunity to include C o Al Directors are consulted and are welcomed to include any matter in the agenda before the
matters in the agenda for regular board meetings. agenda for each regular Board meeting is issued.
SRESHERERL BN PI Y REERAEREATLALY CHNRBOFAESRLFAEN PRI
e B
A13 - At least 14 days notice for regular board C o The Company gives at least 14 days formal notice before each regular board meeting and gives
meetings. reasonable notice for other board meetings.
AREEETHeREE L) TIREM RERBREBRAMESEERAE) TORELERBM ThTANES R
AEBRZEN-
- Reasonable notice for other board meetings.
BRANESEREREHAEER
Al4 Minutes of board mestings and meetings of board C o The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board, Audit Committee,
committees should be kept by a duly appointed Nomination Committee and Management Committee meetings. Another duly appointed
secretary of the meeting and should be open for secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Remuneration Committee mestings.
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable ARANEREREESE ENZEY RUZESREEZESLEIN MEMZE
notice by any director. SeELRNARIRERECNEARER
BIAZANSHNERATEFORAETR
BeMeRal RECNESRLAEAN. *  Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are sent to all Directors/Board Committee
EARERE ST LA RNRERER members within a reasonable time after each Board and Board Committee mesting.
BREFERABTZEQERERE NAERBRNLEFERABTZE98HR
B/ RERRRRES/HETZEENE
*  Board and Board Commitiee minutes/resolutions are made available for inspection by Directors/
Board Committes members at the registered office of the Company.
ESEREETZECORNN /AR HES /HETREENENAR AR S
RER -
A15 - Minutes of board meetings and megtings of C o Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings record contain sufficient details

board committees should record in sufficient
detail the matters considered and decisions
reached.
EreREBETEEENE RN EYE
FLREESERERNOAT ERIF AN
Fit

- Draft and final versions of minutes for all

directors to comment and to keep records
within a reasonable time after the board
meeting.

EZRRRARE  ERAERRALES
eRENIRRERERERZBES
RRESRESR - REERANELLSE
2R

of matters considered and decisions reached including concemns raised or dissenting views
expressed by the Directors.
EZQLARTZEGNERLERNCRRITIME BZE L FERAfERTE &
hEREFRINTAREIREHRUER -

Directors are given an opportunity to comment on draft Board minutes.
ESfRenESe e SRR EER -

Final version of Board minutes is placed on record within a reasonable time after the Board
meeting.

EZEOARK RAERRNRFEECBNRRERFCELA -

BRMEEEEFRAE « _T—LFFRH
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Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)

CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices

234 FEBX e (E) PEERER

A16 - A procedure agreed by the board to enable C Directors have free access to the legal counsel of the Company and if needed and upon request,
directors, upon reasonable request, to seek Directors are allowed to seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.
independent professional advice in appropriate EZUMRNAANAREAERN NERERTAERT ESNAUSKBEUEEER 1
circumstances, at the company’s expense. FARZAER -

ESORABEIRT  FEFRAREL
AEESNERTEREUESER  BR
YNGR

- The board should resolve to provide separate
independent professional advice to directors
to assist them perform their duties to the
company.
EEERAARNRESRUEBUEEE
R hBtARITEERRANEL -

ALT - Ifa substantial shareholder or a director has a C o Important matters are usually dealt with by way of written resolutions so that all Directors
conflict of interest in a matter to be considered (including independent non-executive Directors) can note and comment, as appropriate, the
by the board which the board has determined matters before approval is granted.
to be material, the matter should be deatt with BEEE-BUEERGRADAE IR EES (REBGHITES) ENEEE
by a physical board mesting rather than a SR URHBRER (WEE)R FREZEE-
written resolution.

ERTERRABEEZEHTEANS o Director must declare his/her interest in the matters to be passed in the resolution, if applicable.
BREEEZERAEANNRER  EH EEERABRNEGRB FERRENE (MER) o
SERNBRTESRRRE (MEBEAR) S
R - *  Material transactions with a substantial shareholder or a Director being a connected person,
in general, would be considered at physical Board meeting whereat the Directors, including
- Independent non-executive directors who, independent non-executive Directors, may consider, if appropriate, granting approval in principle
and whose close associates, have no material for the proposed transactions.
interest in the transaction should be present at —RERT  BATERRAESCHEATETVEARFBRESLEHZE 5
that board mesting. (PEBUFHTESINGE LAZRNERBERTRA LY ERERS -
ERGTRS LEEZTHE AR EAT
BNEUFRTESRALREBNESE
2%
A18 Arange appropriate insurance cover in respect of C o The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and Officers Liability insurance coverage for
legal action against the directors. its Directors and officers.
RAEHESTREAHNEETDEELNR ARAYMERESRERARZHEENESRERAREARR
REH -
A2 Chairman and Chief Executive
TERITBAE
Corporate Govemance Principle
EERRA
There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the management of the Board and the day-to-day management of business of the Company to ensure a balance of power
and authority.
ERONEEERNEBNATERNEARAERRS  URRENNRENBHHE -

A2.1 - Roles of chaiman and chief executive should E *  Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up both roles as the Chaiman of the Board and the Chief Executive
be separated and should not be performed by Officer of the Company, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer are not separated. The
the same indlividual. Board considers that this structure has the advantage of a strong and consistent leadership
TRETRABNACEEES L ER which is conducive to making and implementing decisions efficiently and consistently.
—ARBRIE - RLBEEAREEANAZ ESLERRERTHLE MERRERTHEERE

TP RELZ B EEERRLAREHRICRERBEZRE  RRAMNELR
- Division of responsibilities between the EMARR—B2A% -
chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing.
TRETREH HBENS TEERAE
BUBEIE -

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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Comply (‘C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
234 FEKX g (E) PEERER
A22 The chairman should ensure that all directors are C o With the assistance of the executive Directors, the management and the Company Secretary,
properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings. the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
IRERREZSCEE IMAESEENTE meetings and receive adequate documents and information about the Group in a timely manner,
AINEE EanEs ERERAANENRNT  TRBNBREBEFIHRIAMIESEE
BREES  WRERAERERAREN S REES -
A23 The chairman should be responsible for ensuring C o The Board papers including supporting analysis and related background information are
that directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate normally sent to the Directors at least three working days before Board meetings
information which must be accurate, clear, complete BEXQOR N OREEAMTREBERER  —RRESeE BRI IR AR
and reliable. ¥PERES-
IREAERREZRENIRZAMEN TiF
BEMTL BB R % o Company Secretary acts as a co-ordinator to faciltate the communication between the Directors
to ensure that queries raised and clarification sought by the Directors are dealt with and further
supporting information and/or documentation is provided as appropriate.
1W$¢Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ§$ﬁm%% BREZFEARMRELE R FHERFOE
RUGE—SEEERE/ S (EE) -
A24 - The chairman should provide leadership for the C o The Chaiman of the Board is an executive Director who is responsible for the leadership and
board. effective running of the Board.
IRHAEREEEEE - ETRTRANMESLE AERERANERESE
- The chairman should ensure that the o The Chairman of the Board determines the broad strategic direction of the Group in consultation
board works effectively and performs with the Board and is responsible for the high-level oversight of management.
its responsibilities, and that all key and EEOIRARAER ORI ALERERE H N YA RN CEERESEERN
appropriate issues are discussed by it in a TH-
timely manner.
IRERRESSHLER ARTER » Al Directors are consulted as to whether they wish to include any matters in the agenda. The
H%%z U RERAAEENEE SRR Chairman of the Board designates the Company Secretary to draw up the agenda by taking into
o account the matters, if any, proposed by the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
PEERRANE T AN EEREI SRR EEEIRERARNERTES
- The chaiman should be primarly responsible SEHEERE ﬁ?@ﬁfﬂﬁ?@%ﬂ@?lﬁ (&) SIAEER
for drawing up and approving the agenda
for each board meeting. He should take into o With the support of the executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures
account, where appropriate, any matters that all Directors are properly brigfed on al key and appropriate issues on a timely manner.
proposed by the other directors for inclusion in ERTESRAARERST TRENBRAEESHIABNENEEERELS
the agenda. The charman may delegate this Be
responshility to a designated director or the
company Secretary.
IRRTERERTIMESAESEEE
MER YEREERTHRENESRE
MABRMEREE  TEAREREAE
RETHESARANE -
A25 The chairman should take primary responsioility for C e The Chairman of the Board, with the support of the Company Secretary, takes primary

ensuring that good corporate governance practices

and procedures are established.

IREATERL RROANEINERE
RERRER -

responsibility to establish good corporate governance practices and procedures of the
Company.

ESOIEARANENRY TRARUARARFEXERERREF LI REM

BRHEBREXFRAR o —T—LFFH
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Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
234 FEBX e (E) PEERER
A28 - The chaiman should encourage all directors C *  The Chaiman meets with the Directors regularly to discuss various matters of the Group and
to make a full and active contribution to the encourages the Directors to express their views conceming the management of the Group.
board's affairs and take the lead to ensure that IREEETR R R RASETRERN S EREBMAESREHEGRERAS
it acts in the best interests of the company. EMER -
IRRFRMEES2NRAEZEEH
TSR BRESETENEDARE
Fla e
- The chairman should encourage directors with
different views 1o voice their concems, allow
sufficient time for discussion of issues and
ensure that board decisions fairly reflect board
ONSensus.
IEEFEETREANESHRELAY
BANEE RTELSEAREMISR
DRBERESEMATHALRBESEM
#i o
A27 The chairman should at least annually hold C o The Chairman keeps open dialogue with individual independent non-executive Directors to
meetings with the non-exective directors (including ensure effective communication. In addition to regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the
independent non-executive directors) without the Board met with the non-executive Directors (includng the independent non-executive Directors)
executive directors present. without the presence of the other executive Directors on 12 December 2017.
IREE)BFEFNTES (AR HNTE TRAERB N TEFERFNEE I RRENER - RESETHEFN 3
B BT-RRARTERLRNES SIRENTES B UNTES) NS ET AT HEY EEMER
WTESMERTRITEE
A28 The chairman should ensure that appropriate steps C o The Company provides updated information of the Group to all shareholders when it

are taken to provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views are communicated
to the board as a whole.
IRERRENEE S RRFERREUHE -
NRBERREERIEREZRAESE -

becomes avallable and appropriate, through the publication of interim and annual reports,
circulars, notices, media releases or other means in compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements. The Company has made such information avalable on the Company’s website
(nttp://www.singamas.com) as well as on an independent website provider (http:/www.irasia.
com/listco/hk/singamas). The purpose is to provide our shareholders an altemative channel to
access the Group's information easily and reach the potential shareholders globally.
ARABNAMBERRRATEESTEN - VLS ERERZ BRI EH R
ERER BR BE  ERENIETEEREERTNEAMYA  ARAEHTEE
SRR RV U http:/www.singamas.com) » 1B 77 274 — B Uk FE R httoy/
www.irasia.com/listco/nk/singamas) * it B MR K REBINETRBEER S FRLE
ENERREBMMEBINERRER o

o Apart from providing a forum for Directors’ dialogue with shareholders in the Company's general
megtings during the year, the Company continuously enhances shareholders’ communications
by holding press and analyst conferences during any reporting period or year. In addition,
the Company has a “Frequently Asked Questions” section in its annual report providing its
shareholders with more clear and concise information that may be of common concern.
Besides, the Company has responded to letters and telephone enquiries from shareholders and
potential shareholders throughout the year under review.

REEFA REFARAREAS HRE-ERREESHENT AN ARAERBE
MERREROEE  MEATRRAFREER - AARALERTEERANEEE «
WA AREERA IR BARERN - EUREEEN RERORRBETERS

ERE - b ARAREEFAANHESEEEREREEREHRANSFEH «
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Comply (‘C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
2250 SEe #R(E) LEERER
A28 *  Procedures for shareholders to convene a general meeting
(cont'd) Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders of the
(&) Company having a right to vote at general meetings can deposit a written request at 19/F.,

Rykadan Capital Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of
the Company, for the attention of the Company Secretary. The written request must state the
general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting, signed by the shareholders
concemned and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
those shareholders.

RREBRRAEZERF

RERAERETI RN AR AL BBRERBHORER  TEEMEREEAL AN
HMEER : BENEBEEIORELEARNE 98  RELRLANEN - AEAF
FARLEH L REEERN-RUEE  YhEEABRREZRTASNERSA
& BRTH LRI LRREE -

Procedures for putting forward proposals at Annual General Meeting (‘AGM”)
Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders having at
the date of the request the right to vote at the AGM; or not less than 50 shareholders holding
shares in the Company who have a right to vote at the resolution of the AGM can submit a
written request to move a resolution at the AGM. The written request must state the resolution,
signed by all the shareholders concemed and may consist of several documents in like form
(which between them contain the signatures of all the shareholders concemed). The written
request must be deposited at 19/F., Rykadan Capital Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company, for the attention of the Company Secretary
not less than six weeks before the meeting to which it relates or if later, the time at which notice
is given of that meeting. Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of
all shareholders having a relevant right to vote, or at least 50 shareholders who have a relevant
right to vote, may request the Company to circulate, to shareholders of the Company entitled
to receive notice of a general meeting, a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to () @ matter mentioned in a proposed resolution to be dealt with at that meeting, or (b) other
business to be dealt with at that mesting. The request must be depostted at 19/F., Rykadan
Capital Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company,
identify the statement to be circulated, signed by all the shareholders concemed and be received
by the Company not less than seven days before the meeting to which t relates.

RRRAEAE(RRAFAE) REBEZER
DFATHRARARREAFNERRAFAS LHRRER  AGERERLNA
SRBTARRRAFAS LER  BPIRAARRERREN25% AT DR0A%
BARARERAENER - HERRTERLZAER EmERAERREZERTH
SHEAXGHAK BE2RARRRARENELE) - AEASFAFALLAMER
BER: BENEREBIGRELEANEIOE - HELTARAREY  TREFIR
st RRAFAGRT AR N (MR RERRBF ARG B BRELF
o BETORERRBREEZAERRZERMEN25% : AT PR0EHEART
BERARNRRAZNA LA MERUEIRR A GRS L RRE (T %1M 0007
HRLE - AREREEFEZRRAS LEENERREMREMANEE : Fo)Eft
AREZRRAG LRENEHE W RIBFARRACEMMERERNEBREIB
REEEFAE9E  FIRRTERN ML YhEBEERRES  ZEXERTOR
REEERTATREEARE -

BRMEEEEFRAE « _T—LFFRH
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Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company’s
share regjstrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited. Shareholders and the
investment community may at any time make a request for the Company’s information to the
extent that such information is publicly available. Shareholders may also refer to the contacts
under “Investor Relations” section in the Company’s webstte (http:/www.singamas.com) for
enquiries. Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries shall be in
writing and sent by post to the registered office of the Company or by e-mall to info@singamas.com

RRERAAARNBEELR - BATREFFLERDE - RIEEBERE R o
BRERBEALARREXZDEBALE 2 BAREH  RRMABEAR T4

(http:/www.singamas.com) [ & Z IR | BB T3 (IS - RENERNES S
HER - EEHANEERAEL  WEETATNEREBFEARAAFMFERAE

The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and actively encourages Directors with different
views 1o voice their opinion and be fully engaged in the Board's affairs so as to contribute to the

IRREFRANL TEERBETAABNESRIER IR2E2EEZENE

Effective contribution of non-executive Directors and communication between executive and
non-executive Directors are achieved through discussions in Board meetings, various Board
committee meetings and other Board activities/programmes.

BENETOES FESZERIRANESEED /AN ARARERFE
BOEENARERRBTERESRTEE L HNER

The composition of the Board, by category and position of Directors including the names of
the Chairman, the executive Directors, the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors, is disclosed in all corporate communications.

ERALRRATCRESRIILEH (REIR HITES JHMATEERBIHT

The Board consists of a total of nine Directors, comprising four executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. One-third of the Board are
independent non-executive Directors of which more than one have appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise. Detals of the
composttion of the Board are set out on page 18.

EZemNUBRAR  ARONHRTES BUFRTESR=UBENTES S
REDZ-EZEMERBUNNTES ETRA B UFNTESARELEE
i JAREENSHIERNBERER - B SANFBIISNE8E

The Company maintains on fts corporate website and on the Stock Exchange’s website an
updated list of Directors identifying their roles and functions and whether they are independent

ARAEACEERRALARE LRESHNEZENERE  WIRARENERE -

The Directors’ biographical information and the relationships among the Directors are set out on

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
234 FEBX e (E) PEERER
A28 o Shareholders’ enquiries
(cont'd)
®
for attention of the Company Secretary.
BREM
# Zinfo@singamas.com °
A29 The chairman should promote a culture of openness C .
and debate by faciltating the effective contribution
of non-executive directors in particular and ensuring Board's functions.
constructive relations between executive and non-
executive directors. B DHERENBRELER -
IREREAR  WEHROX( REES (B
FIREHTER) HEFSIELANER - URR .
WTESRFNTES RARERENER -
A3 Board composition
Xl
Corporate Govemance Principle
EERRA
The Board should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business and should include a balanced
composttion of executive and non-executive Directors so that independent judgement can effectively be exercised.
SEERRELAEBMEABRENR/H SRRSBNBEEAR - ESQTRTEZRFNTEFNESRARSIE - NERIE M LB A
A31 Independent non-executive directors should be C .
identified in all corporate communications that
disclose the names of directors.
RAMAHAEZLEMAREAT - BZHH ‘
BUTEZAN - ER)REESEMAN -
.
L]
non-executive Directors.
IRAREREBUFNTES -
.
pages 1810 23.

EZAAENRESRNBRIIBNS18EERE -

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017




Corporate Governance Report S ¥ &858 &

Comply (‘C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
234 FEKX #R(E) PEERER
A32 The company should maintain on its website and C o The updated list of Directors has been posted at the websites of the Company and Stock
on the Stock Exchange website an updated list Exchange, identifying their respective roles and functions, and whether they are independent
of its directors identifying their role and function non-executive Directors.
and whether they are independent non-executive B ESEBOEEARAARARBRFAEY - WHREACREL  ANTHRERE
directors. BuknTEE.
NRIBEH R R LR RS
MESENELE UHIHEACTEE Uk o The Company has also posted on its website and the website of Stock Exchange the Terms of
HRARABEUERIES Reference of its Board Committees to enable the shareholders to understand the roles played
by those independent non-exectitive Directors who serve on the relevant Board Committees.
AARTREBURERMBUEHEZCR TR CREEE RRER T B UH
WIESHEEBESeRETREEREMEL AG-
A4 Appointments, re-election and removal
ZE BERE
Corporate Govemance Principle
REERRA
There should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors and plans in place for orderly succession for appointments. All Directors should
be subject to re-election at regular intervals.
MESZERFRIS  £EEZRVAEAE  VRREARFNESEEHE - MAESURERETRELTER
A4 Non-executive directors should be appointed for a C o According to the service agreements entered into between each of the non-executive Director
specific term, subject to re-election. or independent non-executive Director and the Company, the term of appointment is generally
FRTESHEAREREAS VARTEN for one year to three years but subject to retirement and shall be eligible for re-election at AGM
B8 under the Artickes.
RESHNTESIBUFRTESRAR ML RS - EF-RA—E2=F"
ERESRAINRT ARFARZRRBFAS LREBABEEE -
A42 - Al directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy C o Under the Articles, at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from

should be subject to election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment.

ERERRRERMREENESRER
RERENERRRAE LEXRRER

- Every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.
BLEZ (DRAEEAINES) BBRR

£ ESEZE-K-

office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an AGM at least
once every three years but shall be eligible for re-glection.

REERMA REERRAEAE L ERAM=AZ —HMESHERERT KB4
ERRTOB-FRRRATAG LRE—N BARNGEREEES -

Under the Articles, the Board may from time to time appoint a Director either to fil a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any such new Director shall hold office until the next
following general meeting of the Company (in the case of filing a casual vacancy) or until the next
following annual general megting of the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board) and
shall then be eligible for re-election at the same general meeting.

RESRMAY SFeUIBRIESNARBRERIAERESENE - HAEEL
EHEARATARAAE WEERBRER) JZARE TEREAFAE (NBLR
EZelB) Al YAERRRE-RRAE LEEEE -

Review of the Board composition is made regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skils and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
ARAEHENESE 2 AN BRESCHAREAADTNEBMBER  THRER
AT -

The Company has published the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director on its website.
REEEEIALLNESER 2B BRERARABUN

BRMEEEEFRAE « _T—LFFRH
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Corporate Governance Practices
PEERER

A43 =
serves more than 9 years, his further
appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders.

REUFRTESRACANG  HREE
EERNEURBZRY A BRREZRG

- The papers to shareholders accompanying
that resolution should include the reasons why

should be re-elected.
B ARR -REARRAX T - g
BESEAWAAZAALNEBLALR
EEEENRA «

If an independent non-executive director C .

the board believes he is still independent and .

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Yang, Victor has been serving as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company for more than 9 years. Each independent non-executive
Director who was subject to retirement by rotation was appointed by a separate resolution in the
Company’'s AGM. Each independent non-executive Director who was eligible for re-election at
the AGM had made a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
HEAFRAE BERLE-EREARABHTESERBAE - RADEZR
RRFAS L BUERRERZBUFNTEFINBLRBREM - BURKRAF
A LEREE BUFRTESICRR LTRSS 3R EREB U TR -

Since Mr. Yang was re-elected as the independent non-executive Director of the Company in
the 2017 AGM of the Company, according to article 92 of the Articles, Mr. Yang is not subject to
any retirement by rotation in the 2018 AGM.
BRGEREERAAR -t ERRBFAGREEAALABUFNTES &
RERBAZRE BEREETER T \EREAEAGLBRER

The Company’s circular of its AGM contained detailed information on re-election of Directors,
including detalled biographies, interests and (where appropriate) independence of all Directors
standing for re-glection. If an independent non-executive Director serves more than 9 years,
further information would be included in the circular to advice shareholders the reasons why the
Board believes the relevant Director is still independent and should be re-glected.
FRARRAFAC R FERESNFAEAR ARRERRENFEESNF
REE  BRR(MER) B - EEHTESEARENE  E-SEHBIAR
BN AREREEZERAEHESZNEBEUA L REEEENRA -

A5 Nomination Committee

RhZEe

Corporate Govemance Principle
DEERRE

REZEGRTBER  AXRNZRLEERTHEARAMANRE -

In carrying out ts responsibilties, the nomination committee should give adequate consideration to the principles under Sections A.3 and A4 in the Code.
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Ab.1- - The company should establish a nomination C The Board has established the Nomination Committee on 27 March 2012 for nominating
Ab4 committee which is chared by the chairman potential candidates for directorship, reviewing the nomination of Directors, assessing the

of the board or an independent non-
executive director and comprises a majority of
independent non-executive directors.

AERUREZEE MEFLIRAE
i#dﬁ%?%fiﬁ REANE IR
TESEASH

The nomination committee should be
established with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority
and duties.
NAREEHIREEE ‘-.13
B ERNAEBENEL

tERE

It should perform the following duties:
REZEEERBIATEE:

(@) review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the
board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed
changes to the board to complement
the company’s corporate strategy;
EOBERAEFENEE  ABR
B (BERE  WEARERAE) -
UHEMARERARKIREES
eflnEdRIES:

(b)  identify individuals suitably qualified to
become board members and select or
make recommendations to the board on
the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;
NEEBSEERTEIESNAL
5% k%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁrﬁ%ﬂdn&t
MEFERHEER

(c) assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors;
and

FEBFRTESNELN R

(0 make recommendations to the board
on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and
the chief executive.
REFZAXSHEENRES(LE
RIBRADEH) B ENESE
Rt

independence of each independent non-executive Director and making recommendations to
the Board on such appointments. The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
avallable on the Stock Exchange’s website (http:/www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company's
website (nﬂp://www singamas.com).
AARBRZE-ZF-A-HHARURAZESEMRRABENEZAE. %m
BRENEE IRBEBUFRTESNBULRNERZERESERIER
BiREZ B BB ENFES AT AR Bt/ hkexnews k) R A A ﬂ%ﬁiﬁ

(http:/Avww.singamas.com) ©

The current members of the Nomination Committee include one executive Director being the
Chairman of the Board, namely, Mr. Teo Siong Seng (Chairman) and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan and Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David.
REZEERANEOR—RUNEEREFELR - RUBRL (IR RWEBLH
WITES - AR EERDER L E -

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee reports the findings and recommendations to the
Board after each meeting.

BREZE RERBEIRENEFEEGAR RS -

In 2017, the Nomination Committee met once and attendance of individual members at
Nomination Committee meeting in the year is summarized below:

RIB—t4 REZEQEHE N AEFINEMLRAAEHNT :
Number of
Attendance
Committee members ZEgAE HERE
Teo Siong Seng (Chaimma) RIRB(FE) 17
Lau Ho Ktt, van EIRES 1
Cheng Fu Kwok, David éﬂﬁl (RZT—+F
(appointed on 22 June 2017) A + H ?Eéf ) 00
Ong Ka Thai E%ﬁﬁtg t&
(retired on 22 June 2017) ~NAZTZBEfME) 17

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge fts duties. The
Nomination Committee is accountable to the Board and minutes of megtings/resolutions are
circulated to the Board for information.
REZEEBRERRERINBTHRE - REZE
FARREZEER-

ReAMERRRARARALSE k

The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination Committee during the year under
review:

EOBER RAZBENIIFAMT :

(@)  made recommendations to the Board and determined the policy on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships, the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and assessed independence of independent non-executive Directors;
RRMERANEES AL ZAABHECEZNEZEREREIOAERR -
NRARE N TES B

(b)  reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board; and
RAZESERELTIER: &

() reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and assessed the balance of skills
and experience of the Board as expedient with diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Company.
BHESENAE  FRRSTIL UHEZERE
AEERENRARANEBEL

MEHNEE : RBES ST

BRMEEEEFRA

o T FFH
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Ab1- - The nomination committee should make o Alnew appointments and re-appointments of Directors are based on the following criteria:
A54 avallable its terms of reference explaining MEESNHZARBEZARBEN THERLES
(cont'd) its role and the authority delegated to it by
(B the board by including them on the Stock - Integrty
Exchange website and the company’s Wi
website.
RAZEBSEEARMBURARSEH LD - Independent mindedness
REBRESE REEACIRESCER BUMER
TEMES -
- Possession of core competendies that mest the current needs of the Company and the
- The company should provide the nomination ability to complement the skills and competencies of the existing Directors
commitee suffcent resources o perfor REELMBYHATOARRRE  TERARREORERDS
its duties. Where necessary, the nomination
committee should seek independent - Readiness to commit time and effort to carry out duties and responsibilities effectively
professional advice, at the company’s BEMLSERES LA EFRBERER
expense, to perform its responsibilties.
AAEMREZESRETRERNETR - Agood track record of experience at a senior level in corporations/organisations
5E REZECEIBERDERE R AR/ BEL AR ETRAERENAT RITLR
BRBUERER  BRARAXM -
- Financial knowledge
Bipatis L2
Ab55 Where the board proposes a resolution to elect C o Please refer to A.4.3 above for the detalls.
an individual as an independent non-executive FEEZHENFEALIE
director at the general meeting, it should set out
in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the relevant
general meeting why they believe he should be
elected and the reasons why they consider him to be
independent.
REFEHRRRAG LREABRECIAL
RBUFNTES BRREASRE RN
PREBRR/ ARG ELTHESE
ABEEEZEALNEANRMARAZEA
TEBVATHRE
A56 The nomination committee (or the board) should C o The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy effective from 1 September 2013 (“Policy”),
have a policy concerning diversity of board detalls of which are summarised as follows:
members, and should disclose the policy or a B0 -ENA-AREMESEMBSER ([BUR]) - HEfsamT
summary of the policy in the Corporate Governance
Report. (8 Inconsidering the Board's composttion, a wider range of perspectives including but not
REZEE(AESR)EIASRESENES limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
TIEMBEE  TREEERREANEBERE R skils, knowledge and length of senvice will be duly considered in the selection of
BHBE - candicates.
GEREABRREFENAN BIFBERGSAEZE REETRMA
ER-XRHEER BEE% R DEARBER -
(b) Al Board appointments will be based on merttocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria.
FEESMZARNRBART ARA UHEBEEZREEA
(¢)  Toensure the effectiveness of the Policy, the Nomination Committee will review, discuss
any revisions that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.
RAZEEHTRR  HRETTERENET DRRURTZ2EN B
BEEEERBACNAZET .
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Ab Responsibilties of directors
EREf
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
Every Director must always know his responsibilties as a Director of the Company and its conduct, business activities and development.
BLEFARABRAARRNESNEE URAANEERS  $BEDRER -

ABA Every newly appointed director of the company C *  On appointment, new Directors are given a comprehensive briefing and related materials of the
should receive a comprehensive, formal and Group's business activities, induction into their responsibilties and duties, and other regulatory
tallored induction on appointment. Subsequently requirements.
he should receive any briefing and professional TEZRZARBES E2ARNEHER EPRREEERE, EXEMNE
development necessary to ensure that he has a BN REMETER .
proper understanding of the company's operations
and business and is fully aware of his responsibiliies ¢ Al Directors, including non-executive Directors, are regularly provided with comprehensive
under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, reports on the management's strategic plans, updates on lines of business, financial information,
legal and other regulatory requirements and the efc.
company's business and govemance policies. FMEES (REFNTES) e HEERERUEBUARN2EM RS  ERENE
BENZEMESIRERZARERLRE BEH  HBEHS
ARNREMRMFEEAR EENRESHT
HNBREEEE  NRROEHARNEER o+ The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors updated on Listing Rules and
EBHBRENER URTE2NERFELR other appiicable statutory requirements.

RERE LHRY EEREMEEREUR NANEEERRMAZENGEH LTRIRAMET EROGIER «
DANEBRERRRTHEE -
AbB2 The functions of non-executive directors include: C o Non-executive Directors are well aware of their functions and have been actively performing

FNTESOREEE:

- Dbring independent judgement on issues of
strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of
conduct at board mestings;

SHEFEEH TUREE BE - A7
5 HEM ER TEREREBTEN
SEEL REBUMER:

- take the lead on potential conflicts of interests
arise;

EHRERT RERELEERIEER

- serve on the audit, remuneration, nomination
and other govemance committees, if invited;
and
EUNLAERZES FMWEEE REZ
BERAMERZEENE R

- scrutinise the company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives, and monitoring performance
reporting.

B R ANKRRAEITENERA
BHNAR TERERADRRNEL -

them. On an on-going basis, Directors review with management in respect of the Group's
strategic development and direction, emerging risks and opportuntties avalable to the Group.
FRTESBRARARBNBA LB TR  ESARERENRENEES
EARENREARREAM DRFAEETELRNEHRES -

BRMEEEEFRAE « _T—LFFRH
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professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skils. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The company should be responsiole for
aranging and funding suitable training, placing an
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of a listed company director.
FEESR2EREIEYR RRUTHAN
EYET Mﬁ%ﬁ%fﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬂ&wA
%m%\ﬁTﬂé%Aﬁﬂe& REERER

BRmnEII R e E@WE'M&EW§§t
TRARNEENAEL BER
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A63 Every director should ensure that he can give C There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings during the year. Please refer to A.1.1 above
sufficient time and attention to the company’s affairs for the attendance records.
and should not accept the appointment if he cannot FREEZEEELLEXSARE - MRS R LXEALIE -
do so.
BRESRBEREN L ARARBBIEEA Al Directors have in-depth industry knowledge and established track record, whose interests are
ANER  BATERRER- aligned with that of the Company. Every Director has given sufficient time and attention to the
Company's affairs. The independent non-executive Directors have brought a wide spectrum of
their extensive knowledge and experience in their respective business undertakings to the Board
for the fullest performance of its functions.
PREFVERRENTZMAREBUNEECS  RENNGEARANNE K-
BEEFRUARNA SRR ABMRIEE - BUFRTESFARNRER S
BEENEZSENARGSR EHEFSLARTERS
Ab4 Board should establish written guidelines no C The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
less exacting than the Model Code for relevant Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
employees regarding Directors” securities transactions.
EXeRAMERRTERRS  BINDE ARRBRA ETRAME 5N FTRITAESRITES I SNRETA ((RETF
FTHREFRRS - A RERAREZNEFRHTATA
Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all of the Directors have complied with, for any
part of the accounting period covered by this report, the required standard as set out in the
Model Code.
FARMMBESELREENE  MEEFRAREMOE SHBR AARH 2
BFRETAMRTNTE o
Witten guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code relating to securtties transactions for
relevant employees are set out in the “Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees”
of the Company.
ARAFTEREREER 2 ERES| ASHESI ARBETARR 2 RIBRE -
AB5 All directors should participate in continuous C As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the Directors are updated with the latest

developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from
time to time to ensure compliance of the same by all Directors. Al Directors are encouraged
to attend external forums or training courses on relevant topics which may count towards
continuous professional development training.

ERUESHERI B ESRTRENFR LTRAURABEREERE L&
%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ Mﬁﬁ%%§$htﬁﬁﬁm PN T?@i%ﬁ$ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ
JEHESHNRE (ERRETERERI B

Pursuant to the Code, Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. For the year ended 31 December 2017, all Directors
namely, Mr. Teo Siong Seng, Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, Ms. Chung Pui King,
Rebecca, Mr. Kuan Kim Kin, Mr. Tan Chor Kee, Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, Mr. Lau Ho Kit,
Ivan and Mr. Yang, Victor had confimmed that they had complied with the code provision A.6.5 of
the Code during the year ended 31 December 2017 by participating in appropriate continuous
professional development activities either by attending training courses or by reading materials
relevant to the Company’s business or to the Directors duties and responsibilties.

BETH EFELEFEIELE  NERUENEAARME  URREBETAR
REEARIEHENERTHES L ER - HE S+ FT-R=T-BLLF
FrEER(ORRLERE RERLE RUBLLE BRLL BHREZE.
REELE  DFHEESE  HRLERGERLE) ORR  BRNEEIRELHE
BRRRERAEZRE RBERRANS A2 RAR RESERRISIEDRE
P82 FRIEEABSIE 2 R ©
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AB6

Each director should disclose to the company at
the time of his appointment, and in a timely manner
for any change, the number and nature of offices
held in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments. The identity of the public
companies or organisations and an indication of
the time involved should also be disclosed. The
board should determine for itseff how frequently this
disclosure should be made.
BREZENERZARARARBARARD
RRABEERAMSE REEUREMENA
B HEEERAMEYERERE  HHTER
B RNARAR AR LRI RBREE
TEERBMIRNERE - EXGRETRAER
BEALEL— KBS «

C

The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their appointment and at least once
a year thereafter the number and nature of offices held in pubblic companies or organisations and
other signfficant commitments, identifying the public companies or organisations involved.
EERNERZARERALARE UREREEZ)—R) ERARARIAHELTE
fIe B RILE - DREMEREE  TREZZRRAFAJAR B

A6.7

Independent non-executive directors and other non-
executive directors, as equal board members, should
give the board and any committees on which they
serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance and active participation. They should also
attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders.
BUFATESRAMIETESERERLE
SHERSHAUNESERE  EEHLEES
SREARRLERRENENZEENEALE
B2EEK DEARE FENRARTANER
&ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%v@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%t@'ﬁﬂ
ARRNERBAEM TR

There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings, Board Commitiee mestings, the meetings
between the Chaiman and the non-executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) and the general meeting during the year. Please refer to A1.1,A2.7, A5.1-
54,B.12,C3.1 and E.1.2 for detas.

FAREZEEH ETCEZE90E IRAMNES (REEHNES) S
ERBEAGZHREEGLARE - #EH2HEA11 - A27 A51-54.-B12: CA1
RE128

Extent of participation and contribution should be viewed both quantitatively and qualitatively.
SREERELERNEEEYSERE SR AETTE «

ABS8

Independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should make a positive
contribution to the development of the company’s
strategy and policies through independent,
constructive and informed comments.
BUTESREMERTESAERRIE
U ERRERARENERHADHTRKR
BRELEEER -

Please refer to A6.7 above.
F2REXEAGTE

BRHEBREXFRAR o —T—LFFH
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AT Supply of and access to information

BHRMAREA

Corporate Governance Principle

PEERRE

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate information in the form and quality to enable them to make an informed decision and perform their duties and
responsibilties.

ESRERHAENEREN  AMARZEARESUMETRABAHNBATELAT  THBTHBARRR

AT1 - Send agenda and full board papers to al C o Board/Board Committee papers are circulated not less than three working days before
directors at least 3 days before regular board the regular Board/Board Committee meetings to enable the Directors/Board Committee
or board comm'rttee meetings. members to make informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board/Board
EzephedniREgeiE: Committee mestings.

*B&%mﬂé% TEIEBITESE RRERES/HETZEERENESE /HETZRG0H R VAREELE
HEETZE9EHRBN=RARH - ERUELAT 8RN ERE /LB TZE SRR BRATOR I.g%E
RIES/HETZEENE -

AT2 - Management has an obligation to supply C o The Company Secretary who is also the Chief Financial Officer of the Company attends
the board and its committees with adequate al regular Board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance, and
and reliable information in a timely manner to accounting and financial matters, as appropriate.
enable it to make informed decisions. FARZAANERERUBAEIRRAESETHES  URCEER  RAIZER
EREREAMESERAETZEERM SHENBEEEMEFEREER (MEY) -

RRRAENEREH  ARESHWES

BEREHOBRTIELRE - ¢ The Directors have separate and independent access to the Company's senior management to
keep themselves abreast of business activities, financial performance, internal audit and internal

- The board and individual directors should control progress in the Group.

have separate and independent access to the ESUATRB I MEEAARNSRET SRETRASBNERED - B

company’s senior management for making 7B MPERRAHELER -

further enquiries where necessary.

EZgRENESRARTRBLTRAE

BABMBURE NERREBELE—S

&

AT73 - Al directors are entitled to have access to C o Board papers and minutes are made avalable for inspection by Directors and committee
board papers and related materials. members. Senior management of the Company has taken appropriate steps to respond
EESIARENES LU RIAEER promptly and fully to any queries raised by Directors.

BERZEEKETEHESENMREENN - ERESRINE RREREASE
- Queries raised by directors should receive a FREESRIBMEL 2 EMNELE -
prompt and full response, if possible.
HREFRLMME - AANERTRIE
ARREEAEE -

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017




Corporate Governance Report S ¥ &858 &

Comply (‘C”)/
Explain (‘E”)

CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices

234 FEKX #R(E) PEERER

B REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND BOARD EVALUATION
EZREEERABRTRRESET

B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure
FURBEKT REK
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
The Company should disclose its Director's remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters. The procedure for setting policy on executive Directors” remuneration and all
Directors’ remuneration packages should be formal and transparent.

RAEREHESHE A REMBEMEENZE  ERELAMARRENRET I EENTEZME R2 BESHMERNTE -

B1.1 The remuneration committee should consult C o The Remuneration Committee has consulted the Chairman about proposals relating to
the chairman and/or chief executive about their the remuneration packages and other human resources issues of the Directors and senior
remuneration proposals for other executive directors management, including but not limited to succession plan and key personnel movements as well
and should have access to independent professional as policies for recruiting and retaining qualified personnel.
advice if necessary. FHEEGEHESRARERAR FMRRRAMANERAE (REETRIES
FHEEERAH S ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%k%ﬁ@% i BEAFEY URBEREZAERATRR) BAERHER o
BR/FHEH - MERE  SHEECETZ
KBIEEER o The emoluments of Directors and Senior Management have been determined with reference to

the skils, knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and their individual performance, and
to the profitabity of the Company and prevailing market conditions during the year.
ARRCEZRERERAGMECREBAIAL 2T #  HAKTRZERRAEH
IRERKE  U2RENARAZBNRARTERENET

B12 The remuneration committee’s terms of reference C o The Board has established Remuneration Committee to make recommendations on the

should include:
THZESTRREE HEASE

- recommend 1o the board on the company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and
senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

NGEENEHEIN Lok =0
&%% REERUIERTABAREIZ T
AEHMRE  mEFERLER:

- review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the
board’s corporate goals and objectives;
i%ﬁ%@%ﬂm%ﬁﬁ&ﬁTﬁﬁJ&}
EERENFHEE

- either to determine, with delegated

responsibility, or to make recommendations Number of
to the board on the remuneration packages Attendance
of individual executive directors and senior Committee members ZEERE HERE
management;
WTREZ— EEELEREM BT Yang, Victor (Chaiman) SER(EE) 33
AHTESRAAERABHEIEE Kuan Kim Kin BihE 33
MEZCREANNTESLAREREAS Cheng Fu Kwok, David gBE(N-T—+%&
MEEE (appointed on 22 June 2017) ~NAZTZREZfE) 202
Ong Ka Thai IFFR-E—*&
(retired on 22 June 2017) NAZTZBER) 17

Company's remuneration policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management. No Director and senior management can determine his own remuneration.
EROCRUBMERSHIRLHARAE SRS EEEARNFMIRR B LR
% EERREERABHTRETAAANEMN -

The current members of the Remuneration Committee include two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Yang, Victor (Chairman) and Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, and a non-
executive Director, namely, Mr. Kuan Kim Kin.
THEEERANEOERMUBUENTES 5
PR—fIFTES - BRELE -

NAHERLE (L) REHELE -

The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee reports the findings and recommendations to the
Board after each meeting.
BREER FHEZEETReMESCRRASRRES o

In'2017, the Remuneration Committee met three times and attendance of individual members at
Remuneration Committee meetings in the year is summarised below:

R-B—t% FHREEER-K: HHZEC@ANENLERRHERNT :

BRHEBREXFRAR o —T—LFFH
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- consider salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group;
ZRRABRFAANHH AR HMEER
B R ENE R E R R

- review and approve compensation payable on
loss or termination of office or appointment;
B RER RS BB IZAMES
TR

- review and approve compensation
arangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct; and
BRARBERESTAREMBEIELE
BEFMIROBERSE R

- ensure that no director or any of his associates
is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
BREMESIHENBEANGREET
ERGHEHY

Comply (‘C")/

Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
$Z50 FEHI #E(E) LEERER
B.12 - recommend to the board on the remuneration o The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The
(cont'd) of non-executive directors; Remuneration Committee is accountable to the Board and minutes of meetings are circulated to
(&) RENTESHTHMES SRS the Board for information.

FHZRGMERHARERNBTARE -FHERQRNESSRBERAGELE
ARREFEEN-

The following is a summary of the work of the Remuneration Committee during the year under
review:

EOEER HFHRIENTIERAMT -

(@)  reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s Directors’ fees for
the financial year of 2017;
T+ FUBFE ESNERAESERLABNES

(b)  reviewed and approved the salary adjustment of the Company’s executive Directors and
senior management staff;

EHRUERARHTESRERERARNFMEE

() reviewed and approved gratuity granted to retired senior management; and

ENRMERKBEEEARNARHSTN R

(@) reviewed and approved the Company’s annual performance-based bonus policy.

EHRRRRAAREERA 2 REHK -

The Remuneration Committee is delegated to be responsible for determining the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive Directors and to consider salaries paid by comparable
companies, ime commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group.

FMZEeEME REEER AREREERNIESRREERARNENGFS
BEFEENG RUSBENRBECE (BRRXAR LBBAZENER) - Wit
BTESNFNNESERUBERERRRLARMIANEY AN HMEHRE
ENREBREMBALORREN

Details of each Director’s remuneration and any remuneration payable to members of senior
management for the year under review are set out on pages 175 to 177 and page 241 of this
annual report.

REBEER FEBEEZRAMNEAINTREERAEBKENGMABIRNAERE
175EZETTE REME -
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Comply (‘C”)/
Explain (‘E”)

CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices

234 FEKX g (E) PEERER

B13 The remuneration committee should make available C o The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the websites of the
its terms of reference, explaining its role and the Company and Stock Exchange.
authority delegated to it by the board by including FMZE g BRBED TINAL A RAR AR -
them on the Stock Exchange website and the
company's website. o The principal responsibilties of the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
EMEESRABRAMBUMRARRY LARY to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and the
EEEE BEEAGRESELBRNEN management, and determining with delegated responsioilty, the remuneration packages of al

executive Directors and the management and to make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors with reference to the corporate goals and objectives of
the Board resolved from time to time.

FHZEe T ERARENANAESRERE HINARERRES O (LRS-
TAREFETRIR ORI EERFENEAT  EREIRITESRE
REBABOEHSE UHFRTESNEMAESERNESE -

B14 The remuneration committee should be provided C o The Human Resources Department provides administrative support and implements the
with sufficient resources to perform its duties. approved remuneration packages and other human resources related decisions approved by
SMEBeRERGARERNBTHBE the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee also has access to independent

advice at the Company's expense if considered necessary.
ANERBEERGIBZERATEGHE S e k2 EMEBRE A NERIEE
RE - HHEEENARERRERERSIBUSEER  BRAMARARN -

B15 The company should disclose details of any C ¢ Please refer to notes 11 and 47 in the Notes to Financial Statements for details of the
remuneration payable to members of senior remuneration payable o the senior management.
management by band in the annual reports. AHRREBAGM S R 2 B BERRNEE 1 RATE «
PAREAFRNEENEREESREEAR
MRS -

C ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
& R

C1 Financial reporting
BBER
Corporate Govemance Principle
REERRA
The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the Company's performance, posttion and prospects.

ERRRTE AMRREMTRAANER BARAE

G Management should provide sufficient explanation C o Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major business activities and key financial
and information to the board to enable it to make information on a quarterly basis in each board meeting.
an informed assessment of financial and other EENENER e ERERES T LI PR EDOBREENMBEH -
information put before it for approval.

EEERNESERERINRERER 3E
SQTLURRR MM BRAMER -
B RBHTE
C12 Management should provide al members of the C o Monthly updates have been provided to all members of the Board, for the purpose of providing

board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient
detail to enable the board as a whole and each
director to discharge their duties.
EREREAMEZEMERMETHEH &7
BERANRE  MBRARARHLERSR
BROTE NARDEESRIABRE

a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company's performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail and to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties.

EXeMERECERESAZHEN  FRWFHARTRR  BRRRAZHA
ERGRERZIME  NBESERZESRIERE -

BRMEEEEFRAE « _T—LFFRH
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Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)
B5(cl)/
e (E)

Code Ref. Code Provisions
2Z38 FAIKX

Corporate Governance Practices
PEERER

C13 - The directors should acknowledge in C
the Corporate Governance Report their
responsibility for preparing the accounts.
BERECREAREPEAMMNERER
AMEE -

- There should be a statement by the auditors
about their reporting responsibilities in the
auditor's report on the financial statements.
HER MR AR ERRN MRS
St RRE AL -

- Unless it is inappropriate to assume that
the company will continue in business, the
directors should prepare the accounts on
a going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary.
BERRLABEREFLERL ME
TR EERENEERALARELE
A ARENEREUBRIREAER o

- Where the directors are aware of material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the
company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, they should be clearly and
prominently disclosed and discussed at length
in the Corporate Governance Report.
REFMERENTAREASERAEE
REYERASERENE  E3RED
EERRERRRERE R M ANET
HHRZ -

Al Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cashfiow for the year.
PREFAIRSEEERUSRN BB MBRANES VAEEAL AR
ERFEBMEHMAR  DREERRSREFER o

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, adopted all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which are in conformity to the Interational Financial
Reporting Standards, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and
prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.
ERHEZ_T—ET_A=T-BIEREZUBREN ESCERHRALEN
GHEK - YELERAEBHBREED THARRYBREEL  YAREARY
{EE—DFIE R itst - RENRE EURRRHBEERER -

With the assistance of the Company’s Finance Department which is under the supervision of
the Chief Financial Officer who is a professional accountant, the Directors ensure the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.
ARANBHHATEGHNER ERUBREEE  BLHMHRH T E2RREE
HBRRNBREBRERRER 2 831E8

The Directors also ensure the publication of the financial statements of the Group is in a timely
manner.

EXVRREEHHHRES FUTE -

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting responsioilties on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 95 to
101 of this annual report.
FRARREMREENRREAE RREERRII SN FREBEZEI01EZBY
BEBRERN o

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company's abilty to continue as a going concem.

EXU T ARATRAAAANSBEER N BREARRNENEATHNRE -

C14 The directors should include in the separate C
statement containing a discussion and analysis of
the group’s performance in the annual report, an
explanation of the basis on which the company
generates or preserves value over the longer term
(the business model) and the strategy for delivering
the company’s objectives.
ERREFRNFRRATEERRN B AR
N BRRDHREEERRBBENER (X
B) RERDAMLE S0KE -

The Board has included in the Chairman’s Statement a discussion and analysis of the Group’s
sustainable development strategy on pages 8 to 13 of this annual report.

B2t R RESEZZ B[ XRRE INRTRRA TR BT HERRERIER
A
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Comply (‘C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
234 FEKX g (E) PEERER
C15 The hoard should present a balanced, clear and C o The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable assessment of the
understandable assessment in annual and interim Group'’s performance and position in all shareholder communications.
reports, and other financial disclosures required by EzenmARRANRT  HEE KRR RMRAELEN  TERINERNTE -
the Listing Rules. It should also do so for reports to
regulators and information disclosed under statutory ¢ The Board is aware of and updated with the statutory requirements under the applicable
requirements. rules and regulations. The Board aims to present a comprehensive balanced, clear and
BHEFQRESE iﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁi&ﬂfiﬁf understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects. The Company
RARTETEBNEMMEERA  HAF Secretary and key officers of the Company Secretarial Department work closely and in
RELTE  BHRA SERMTE - foN ﬁ?T consultation with legal advisers to review the materiality and sensitivity of transactions and
EEREEERINBEERRRANATRE proposed transactions and advise the Board accordingly.
HER AL RERMRL o ERENEREENERRARRAERER EFQRNRE THAMT S HEH
NAEERARAROTE - AANERANEDFEARRACERER A 3R
%%E&x%@%mi E&ﬂ@&ﬁﬁ@ﬁiﬁ THEAAES GRS
C2 Risk management and internal control
RREERASBES
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is wiling to take in achieving the issuer's strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the issuer establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems. The board should oversee management i the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems, and management should provide a confirmation to the board on the effectiveness of
these systems.
ESEARMERECHIARRRRE RRARSERNERIEELER  TRRENTARIRERSBRERNERERRASIEERY - ESOREEEEEY
RRERRADERZRMRT  EHRER MERERAESSREABZARTHMNER -
C21 The board should oversee the Company’s risk C o Please refer to C.2.3 and C.2.4 below for the details.
management and internal control systems on HESHTNEC23 RC247E
an ongoing basis, ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the Company's and its subsidiaries’
risk management and intemal control systems has
been conducted at least annually and report to
shareholders that it has done so in its Corporate
Governance Report. The review should cover all
material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls.
EReRLEEENANEARE @&W%%@%
& TRRES BERT-RARRENEA
NERERRANERZGREBR ﬁE.&%
EREE) ¢Hk%[ﬁEmmWﬁW@J Ll
mﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁixm? BHE BERBER
EEEARARER -
022 The board’s annual review should, in particular, C o The Board has conducted annual review on the adequacy of resources, qualfications and

ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget
of the company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting function

ESRTFERAR  ERRADES RY
ERRABERBAAANER B TERRER
ARB IR REBRERE R -

experience of the Company’s accounting, intemal audit and financial reporting staff as well as
their training programmes and budget and considers as adequate.

EZeCRARART NERREYBERNEINER EERERIARLRA
NREIFERNEIREREEREXRARRENEERT  URAZRA -

BRHEBREXFRAR o —T—LFFH
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consider:

EZEBFRINERERIIRETIIRE:

(8)  the changes, since the last annual review, in
the nature and extent of significant risks, and
the Company's abilty to respond to changes
in its business and the external environment;
BLrERIE EXRRNEZRBEEE
mEE  URARRMEEHBEERIMIR
FHEERN

(o) the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and of the intemnal
control systems, and where applicable, the
work of its internal audit function and other
assurance providers;

EREREERAR RABEERLN f
HERRE &;WLW)W PERIRR
thRE R &M LI

() the extent and frequency of communication
of monitoring results to the board (or board
committee(s)) which enables it to assess
control of the issuer and the effectiveness of
risk management;

MEFE (REETZEE) BELLERN
HBEELRY HAHEES %V%HA
HELERRERERNENLE

(d) significant control failings or weaknesses
that have been identified during the period.
Also, the extent to which they have resulted
in unforeseen outcomes or contingencies
that have had, could have had, or may in the
future have, a material impact on the issuer’s
financial performance or condition; and
BRBEENERERARABRNERE
BE UREBHARERNERAES
EROBERE  MASRRARAHET
ANEBRRIBERCES - AHCEER
BRAUGEEENEATE &

() the effectiveness of the Company's processes
for financial reporting and Listing Rule
compliance

DEEBRBREREF(ETRADATL
BFRABH

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
2Z38 FAIKX R (E) PEERER
C23 The board’ s annual review should, in particular, C o For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board, with the assistance of the Audit

Committee, the Group’s Internal Audit Function, the Enterprise Risk Management
Committee and the management, has conducted regular review of the effectiveness of the
Group's internal controls systems, including financial, operational and compliance control
and risk management systems and no irregularity or material weakness was noted within
any function or process. The Board considers the risk management and intermnal control
systems are effective and adequate for the Group as a whole. The Board further considers
that there was no material issue relating to the controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of the Group. Please refer to C.2.4
below for the details.
BEZZ—tET-R=T-HILFRR EERZES F5EAPEREY (%
Kﬁﬁéé@&ﬁﬁﬁmm%T %?Aamﬂﬁﬂ$ﬁlmﬂﬁ“§ﬁ(a%ﬁﬁ~
&Aﬁﬁfdﬁﬂﬁ BROZRN YAREREARLIARERBZZ RS
iﬁﬂ% 2908 AREERNPERZGHARBRRENERARRTR (€5
51”‘ $Elﬁﬁﬁ s@&Aﬁﬁwu&ﬂM*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ EERER
Fi - HAE2H T XE C24%
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Comply (‘C”)/
Explain (‘E")
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
2Z38 FAIKI #E(E)) PEERER
C24 The Company should disclose, in the Corporate C RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Governance Report, a narative statement on how
they have complied with the risk management and
intemal control code provisions during the reporting
period. In particular, they should disclose:
RARE(CEERRE)AUMRT A RELD
MEREHNETRRERERADERN TR
X BRmE HENARAE:

@

Y

@

the process used to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks;

BRAR  FERERERRROES

the main features of the risk management and
interal control systems;

ERERRABEEZRNTREH

an acknowledgement by the board that it
is responsidle for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. It should also explain that such
systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss;
2R ERHEREE RS ELZR
BE THEARIZSHENEML &
$@IF£%&%?%EEEEW#%%$
REREBEENER MERERTER
iﬁm%aﬁkiaxﬁﬁA@ﬁ#%ﬁm

1 A

the process used to review the effectiveness
of the risk management and intemal control
systems and to resolve material internal control
defects; and

BB RREERNPERRFERILN
BRFREARENRNDELRENER R

the procedures and internal controls for
the handling and dissemination of inside
information.

BERI RS MR FNRNEEER -

BREERABEE

Purpose

BA)

o The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, and for reviewing their design, operational adequacy and
effectiveness.
EZQARARISEBRRAMNBREE RADELRHE - DRAIGHRT  BIED

FAMBRE -

o The Company has adopted a set of comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in
areas of operational, financial and risk controls for ensuring the smooth operation of business in
order to faciltate the effective and efficient accomplishment of corporate goals and objectives
by allowing it to respond appropriately to significant business, operational, financial, compliance
and other risks, maintaining proper records for provision of reliable financial and corporate
information, safeguarding the Group's assets and shareholder's interests, ensuring all the
transactions are executed in accordance with the management’s authorization, and complying
with the requirements under the applicable rules and regulations, and also with the Group’s
internal policies and conduct. However, the risk management and internal control systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss and to mitigate, rather than eliminate, the risks of failure in operational systems when
business objectives are being sought.

ARAEREE  MBEREREEAERG-E2ANE B RER - NRRERKH
IEEfE BEREAEH %@ B aRRAMER HELEEHEE ﬁiﬁﬁﬂ
EREBAERAERERTE  REEELH  URRTENBROEEHN  REX
SENEERRENE  BRITERHHRRERBNRENT - RETERNEN R
ERMREEARENSHERTATI AT - AREERNBERZREEHRTEE
BEAERRUSBARAABERBIH L RE  URNERERERBAEEI ML E
EREREHEAR -

Framework

RE

o The Company has established a reasonable, effective and balanced intemal control and risk
management systems, with clear division of work among the Board, the Audit Commitee,
the Enterprise Risk Management Committee, the management, functional departments and
business departments within the structure of the entire infernal control and risk management
systems.
$ ARUTAE AN ERHENANERRERERZS  EMEFE BKZR

2 CRERERZES ERE BESMAEEIHERANSEERERERRLR
¢ 3T«

o The Board is responsiole for maintain a sound and effective implementation of intemal control
and risk management. The Board has established the Audit Committee which is responsible for
assisting the Board in fulfiling its responsibilties for reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee, through
discussion with management and engagement of intemal audit team of PIL, to review the
effectiveness of interal control and risk management systems, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions, and to report to the Board any
significant risk issues. The Board will provide its own view on the effectiveness of the systems
after reviewed the works and findings of the Audit Committee.
EZQABARBREANNNIERREREEER - EERTRENZEE  AER
PEFERTERERITEEARERRAY WF?%%E ARER-BREEE
ﬁﬂﬁ BETRRESATRBNATEAE R nBERRARER 25 (REY
B SBRAREERERERNR) HERY  UMEEERECNEAAREE &
$§@%W%&§E@%I¢&ﬁﬁm%§ ERBRENENRAREEER -

BRHEBREXFRAR o —T—LFFH
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Comply (‘C")/

Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
234 FEBX e (E) PEERER
C24 Relevant executive directors and senior management have been delegated with specific
(con't) authortties and responsibilties for monitoring the performance of designated operating business
(8) units. The management is responsible for organizing and stesring the dally operation of the

internal control of the Company. The management would report the business plans and
development to the Board on a quarterly basis. This helps the Board to monitor the Group’s
business operations and plan on a timely basis in response to the changes in business
environment. Each operating business unit also maintains interal controls and procedures
appropriate to its structure and business environment whilst complying with the Group’s policies,
standards and guidelines.

BB B e B R TR TR N RE AR R R R T E BB BN R R
Mﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%&%QK Tm%ﬁfMH%Lﬂ a@ﬁﬁéf% %%ﬁ%&%@%

ﬁ&%mAHW%&ﬁﬁf%ZW W?&ﬁf IHH%T$%I&% é%&ﬁ%

Internal Control System

AEERZR

The Group’s Intenal Audit Function has been performed by intemal audit team of PIL which
undertakes regular reviews of the Group’s operations and system of intemal controls. By
adopting a risk-based approach and operating on an on-going basis to evaluate risk level on
control environment, the annual audit plans which covers major activities and processes of the
Group’s operating business unit on a rotational basis was submitted to Audit Committee for
approval. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed on specific areas of concem identified by
the Audit Committee and the management from time to time.

$%IMW V% PRATHEBNADEARE AR BENARENLERAS
ERZR-8 Hlfﬁﬁhﬁuﬂﬁﬁﬁwmﬁﬁ UINSEEREESE DTS
BRERER K? RNREAEESELHENMTERD LB  TRERITER

ZEQEH WM METRRERE R REEEMATNRTERETRTEN -

Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of individual business units, the scope
of work performed by Internal Audit covers all material controls including financial, operational
and risk management functions. During the year, Internal Audit deeply inspected, investigated
and assessed four subsidiaries of the Company. It has reviewed and assessed their systems
on procurement, operation flow, intemal control, financial, contracting, safety and environmental
protection, human resources and administration efc.

BRYEREBELNZBNE RERERTE  APEHANIHEE  RENE 28R
Aﬁﬁﬁt%ﬁiﬁW%vu&ﬂﬁaE% R W%%&TAVE HRRAHEAR
NANARERAR - RERETHERANRE 2@ ERNI Rt R

ZREERESERE  URANERROIBEZS -
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Comply (‘C”)/

Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
234 FEKX g (E) PEERER
C24 o The intemal audit findings are preliminary discussed at management level and the follow up
(con't) actions are taken in response to the Internal Audit’s recommendations. The internal audit
(8) findings are also presented to the Audit Committee and the Board on the immediate meetings

folowing the issue of the internal audit report. The responsible heads of departments will be
nofified of the control deficiencies noted for rectification. The management would urge the
relevant business segments and units to implement rectification measures in a timely manner,
S0 as to ensure the intemal control system of the Company is effective. Follow-up reviews
will be conducted in due course and discussed at the Audit Committee Meeting and Board
Megting to ensure that audit recommendations are being properly implemented. During the year,
corrective actions were taken based on the audt findings and no significant control fallure which
might affected shareholder’s interest has identified. The Audit Committee reviewed all intemal
audit findings, management responses and the adequacy and effectiveness of the intemal
controls. Significant risk issues and its recommendations, if any, are referred to the Board for
consideration. No suspected frauds and iregularities, intemal control deficiencies or suspected
infringement of laws, rules and regulations have come to the Audit Committee’s attention to
cause the Audit Committee to believe that the system of infemal controls is inadequate.
NAEGERG AR TERENR - TRRAPERMRZARMRETD - REFRE
RTREBELASEN RERNER I RETERZRCRESS R PATELE
BARERTRZRINETELE - EREEREMEEAHBAIRELRSEEBLER  #
RRFABERZAENER - ARRABEVEZAWRN  ERBERETRER
it IK$V§5@§5&§$QQ§ i ER - BRRSNOERDEE  TRY
RARHRRNGERY ENEREAKY - ERESCCEWMERDERLR &
BOERNBERZ ZRERKM U MESSEREARREERARSE (NF) « &
Qﬂ%#ﬂ§%¥&$ﬁﬁW%%Fﬁﬂt?ﬁmt&&@~ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁﬁ%$%§
BeIE ABHERZReRENIERZRR T RN

Group's risk management

SERREE

o The Board oversees the Group’s risk management system and reviewing its adequacy and
effectiveness. The Group has set up an Enterprise Risk Management Committee, composed
of senior management and heads of key corporate functions, with a mandate for overall
risk management activities of the Group. The Enterprise Risk Management Committee’s
main responsiilties include a comprehensive understanding of the Company’s major risk
exposures and its management status and maintaining the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management system.

EFRABRERALERRERARRBHERAHRANY - AEBRECEARE
BZE mafEEERIERESIINIEER BRRARAEREBAREEE
B ¢¥Hﬂaﬁ§§gf%%zﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁmmﬁﬁikﬂw%ﬁ&ﬁ
MR U RAESERERZREENG N -

o The Enterprise Risk Management Committee is also responsible for making recommendations

to the Board on the Group’s risk management matters such as the overall objectives and
policies as well as its working mechanisms of the Group’s risk management system, the
establishment of individual risk management unit at company level, risk assessment of major
operating activities, provide recommendations for the mitigation of major risks and to carry out
any other assignments from the Board.
PERARERZEENEERASEAR *@?ﬁméiAkﬁEm WKE@me
BARMZEEIRRIK Mﬁﬁkﬁﬁi ERREERVERRREREN  HEE
EEEDELRERTE  WiRMERE M@%iﬁ@@v%&ﬁﬁ%i@ﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%%
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Corporate Governance Practices
PEERER

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee reports to the Board and Audit Committee at
least twice a year. It wil report on the Group's risk management activities, risk posttions and
management measures for mitigation of major risks noted. The Enterprise Risk Management
Committee will also submit the risk evaluation reports which evaluate the risk level of major
activities and processes of the Group’s operating business with focuses on financial risks,
operational risks, strategic risks and market risks to the Board and Audit Committes twice a
year.
PERREREEEBFRIMANESERENZEEERLIRINFSERRE
BiEE ERMARERIZARNERER TeBEMANESERENEEERE
EEHERE - HEMBER - 28R  RERRRTHERES MASEEERY
IRRHRBENERERE -

With the support of Enterprise Risk Management Committee, Audit Committee and the
management, the Board identifies and assesses the key risks, existing or emerging, facing the
Group, and formulates relevant strategies and measures to mitigate the risk exposure.
ECEERERZEE FREEERERERYT EFTFIRTRARELERY
RELEEC TERR  THATRBRENESE  JAERRAS -

INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY
RBHEEBENK

In order to ensure compliance with the continuous disclosure obligation under the Listing Rules
on the Stock Exchange and the disclosure of inside information of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO"), the Board has adopted an “Inside
Information Disclosure Policy” effective from 29 June 2016 which sets out the guidelines to
the directors, officers and the employees of the Group, who is likely to be in possession of the
unpublished inside information to (a) monitor the Company’s business developments so that
any potential inside information is promptly identified and report to the Board to enable them be
timely informed of any circumstances or development that may constitute inside information of
the Company and to make timely decisions on disclosure, if necessary; and (b) take reasonable
precautions to preserve confidentiality of inside information and the relevant announcement (if
applicable) before publication.

ARRGEAR ETRAEERERRER  URBSFREBERH (5 RAEREA])
(BRERENZ) ARBRBENBEENATE EFCEE-3—"ERAZTARER
MINEHERENR]  BEMAREZES  BRARRER (HARMBARARZA
BHE)REES NQUARANEBERENER  NEERANEMEENREH
B UREFEER NEEZEREETAMTHERAAANEEENERIER -
BELATE - MEERELRBRE  ROFMEERE  $AREEREELE (NE
BIRE BEERRHEARL-

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. Code Provisions #3(cl/
2Z38 FAIKX R (E)
C24
(con't)
®)
C25 The Company should have an internal audit function. C
Issuers without an internal audit function should
review the need for one on an annual basis and
should disclose the reasons for the absence of such
afunction in the Corporate Governance Report.
RRERIAREGIE - RENPELI T
TNEBFRARTRELRIENE  WH(RE
ERRE)NEEATIEEEN -

Please refer to C.2.4 above for the detalls.
FRFEAHLIXEC24E
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Comply (‘C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
234 FEKX g (E) PEERER
C3 Audit Committee
ERZE®
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
The Board should establish formal and transparent arangements to consider how it will apply financial reporting, risk management and intemal control principles and maintain an
appropriate relationship with the Company’s auditors.
EXORMNARAYBER RREBRADEZRIRNTERERARAMES NBRELERRABARNTH -
C.3.1 - Full minutes of audit committee meetings C o The Board has established the Audit Committee to investigate and handle matters within its

should be kept by a duly appointed secretary
of the meeting.

ERZEeNTRE R LB EAEAZEN
=] n?kw %ﬁ °

- Draft and final versions of minutes should
be sent to all committee members for their
comment and records, within a reasonable
time after the meeting.
eRIHNIRRERERETEER R
AEERRNAREAZESRENE R
HEKEREZR  RRTRELLHRCA -

terms of reference and make recommendations to the Board for any necessary improvement.
ESQDRUBRZAGHNTENAEREERREEANANSE HRNESS
R AR SRS

The current members of the Audit Committee include two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan (Chairman) and Mr. Yang, Victor, and a non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Kuan Kim Kin, of which at least one independent non-executive Director possesses
the appropriate professional qualfications of accounting or related financial management
expertise.

EVZEeRANE AR BERTES  ARIRAMAELE (1) REERLE -
IR—RIEHTEE - WL EPESBUFRTESABREERER X

Ay M*@Eﬁﬁﬁ%a@ﬁﬁ

The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports the findings and recommendations to the Board
after each meeting.

BREGK FRRAGIRENERCERAYTNES -

The Audit Commitiee has regular meetings at least twice a year. In 2017, a total of three
meetings were convened and held with satisfactory attendance. The details of Audit Committee
members’ attendance in 2017 are as folows:

%V?DA*W@H % %/lﬁﬁm R-ZB—tF  BRERRHBRRENZR

e HE%E? e ﬁ%ﬁwééaﬁx,mﬁﬂﬂ SIEMT :
Number of
Attendance
Committee members ZEERE HERE
Lau Ho Ktt, van (Chairman) Aek(EE) 33
Kuan Kim Kin BaiE 33
Yang, Victor HEH 33

BRHEBREXFRAR o —T—LFFH
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Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E")
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
$Z50 FEHI #E(E) LEERER
C3.1 *  The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and minutes of meetings are circulated to the
(con'y) Board for informtion.
(&) EVZAGRNESSRAREGENBARNES AN

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during the year under review:

AOEER BRERENTIERAMT -

(@ reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial reports for the year ended 31 December
2016 and for the six months ended 30 June 2017;
EHEE S ET AT HLEFEREZE-Z—+F A=THIEARA
HAEEGEAMHRE

(o) reviewed the external auditor’s statutory audit plan and the letters of representation;
BONEREMNET RIS ERERRHE

() reviewed the findings and recommendations of the intemal auditor,;
ERNBRUMBLNBHERREE

(d)  considered and approved the 2017 audit fees and terms of engagement for the external
auditor;

ZRRIE-_T-LENERBARALERRER

()  reviewed the “Continuing Connected Transactions” set forth on pages 72 to 79 of this
annual report; and

EHERAERENEZEOE [FEBERS] R

)  reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group.
EHAEEADEEREREBRRNRE «

On 27 March 2018, the Audit Committee met to review the 2017 consolidated financial
statements, including the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, in
conjunction with extemal auditor. Based on this review and discussions with the management
and external auditor, the Audit Committee endorsed the accounting treatment adopted by the
Company and had, to the best of its abiity, assured itself that the disclosure of the financial
information in this report complies with the applicable accounting standards and Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee therefore recommended the Board's approval of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 for public release.
RIZ-\F=A-TtR BREEeRRINERENEN S FRNEAIBER
 EEERASERR 2 S RARERED - REMEEHER - NREERERIMNELE
Witk BREEQER ARAMEA @HREN  YERNBRARSRENE
EHNSER SRR EHRANSET S - Bt BRESERSEZE_T—tF1C
A=T-BILEERRUBERNES e ERRARER -
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Comply (‘C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
234 FEKX #R(E) PEERER
C.3.1 o The Audt Committee also recommended the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(con't) as the Group's external auditor for 2018 and that the related resolution shall be put forth for
() shareholders’ consideration and approval at the 2018 AGM.
BRZERENRAEN A HERNSHNSBMALEE 2 25— \FEMH
BREH TRER-2-\FRRAFAE LRARRZERABA
o During the year under review, the fees paid to the Company's extemal Hong Kong auditor
for audit work amounted to HK$3,100,000 and for non-audit and review activities amounted
to HK$516,000 (including HK$285,000 for interim review, HK$47,000 for tax review and
HK$184,000 for other related services).
REBFA  ARAXMMEEBZHM 2 ZHE R 2310000087 - EIERHRER
FRESE R A516,0008 7T (R B KB FH285,0005 T - HBRHE R4 0008 T REM
TAERBEM184,0008 ) °
032 A former partner of existing auditing fim shall not act C o No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing fim of the
as a member of the committee for 1 year from the Company during the one year after he ceases to be a partner of the auditing firm.
date of his ceasing to be a partner of or to have any BERNEERLALNAERENZALANTARARK LK ARGEARARARS
financial interest i, the firm, whichever is later. BE—FR EEARAERZEENE -
RRAEBHAARANEEARANATEEA
EHRIERAZARARANRE ST EZE
ZARAMYBHENAE (R HREEARE)
RN TEEAERZEEHNKE -
033 The audit committee’s terms of reference should C e The Audit Committee was established with specific written terms of reference which have

include:

ENZRENREHEREE

- recommendations to the board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of
external auditor and approval of their terms of
engagement;

RINEREMNES  ENEAREERE
SERERERIENERSBNBRAKT

- review and monitor external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and
effectiveness of audit process;

B RERNEREMN B R E RIZEE
FHBR :

- review of the company’s financial information;
and
ERRANHHER: &

- oversight of the company’s financial reporting

system, risk management and internal control
procedures, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualfications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the
company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.
EERTMBRRIE BREERNDE
BEF DREEEAAESHRMBERS
WHENER BIARRERRERM
INRETIMERMEIREREHEERT
AR

complied with the Code requirements and are modified from time to time. The terms of
reference of the Audit Commitee is made available on the website of the Company and Stock
Exchange.

ERZRENR IR URT N EAATRERERERE RHELEY - BREREY
BRESEDEHRAAARBRFAEN -

BRMEEEEFRAE « _T—LFFRH
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of reference, explaining its role and the authority
delegated to it by the board by including them on the
Stock Exchange and the company’s website.

ERESEREAR MM RA RN LARE
BESE MELACREZEERTHMES

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
2Z38 FAIKX R (E) PEERER
C34 The audit committee should make available its terms C o Please referto C.3.1 and C.3.3 above for the detalls.

FHE2H LXECIIRCIE -

G35 Where the board disagrees with the audit C
committee’s view on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors,
the company should include in the Corporate
Governance Report a statement from the audit
commitiee explaining its recommendation and also
the reason(s) why the board has taken a different
view.
NEFETREERZREHEE 20 B
FRGIERBMFENER  RARECRE
RRETIHENZEGEMERENEH U
REFERARAERNRR -

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board that, subject to shareholders’approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be re-appointed as the
Company's external auditor for 2018. The Board agreed with the recommendation made by the
Audit Committee.

EREEENEERRE  ENEMEY HERASHATHARAA S - \FEN
HNEREE  MEERRAMBERINRRATAG L - FAEE - EZEREEKR
ZEQVEH

036 The audit committee should be provided with C
sufficient resources to perform its duties.

ENRREREMRERARIETARE -

The Audit Committee has been advised that the Company Secretary can arange independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company should the seeking of such advice be
considered necessary by the Audit Committee.

BREECCERA FENEEERARLESIBUERER  RONETRATH
CBRBARAX

C37 The terms of reference of the audit committee should C
also require it:

ERZREHBREENERE:

- to review arrangements employees of the
company can use, in confidence, to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, intemal control or other
matters. The audit committee should ensure
that proper arrangements are in place for fair
and independent investigation of these matters
and for appropriate follow-up action; and
BARAREOATRE - ARES RS
SABER ABERAEMHAREE
WAEETARRLET - BRZ S SERR
BEETH BRAHAESHELATE
UMBEEREREETY R

- to act as the key representative body for
overseeing the company’s relations with the
external auditor.

BENAENERSM ANIERE &
BER_E/ENBE -

Please refer to C.3.1 and C.3.3 above for detalls.
FBESMENECIIRCIIE
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Comply (‘C”)/
Explain (‘E”)

CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices

234 FEKX g (E) PEERER

D DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
EReENNER

D1 Management functions
BRI
Corporate Govemance Principle
PEERRA
The Company should have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for Board approval and those delegated to management.
NARE-BEANEENE ISR EE SO ENEERREERERTNSE -

AN When the board delegates aspects of its C ¢ Management meetings are held periodically where executive Directors and heads of senior
management and administration functions to management of the respective business divisions are present and clear directions are given as to
management, it must, at the same time, give clear the management’s powers.
directions as to the management’s powers, in EEEeTHRNMe ANESREEEEIFNSRAERABNTIEAE SRS
particular, where management should report back & UHEBEME NG TIENIES
and obtain prior board approval before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on the o Anyissue that is considered to be material will be referred to the Board for approval.
company's behaff FAMEEAZ SHARFIIRAESLEN -
EESERAERRIEDHARNENERT
ERER YERKRERENESN 6 TEH o Any materials matters requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules or other applicable rules or
MRSl BRIREERERNESCRRURE regulations, appropriate disclosure will be made and where necessary, circular wil be prepared
REATMEL AT R L EAREANERSG and shareholders’ approval will be obtained in accordance with the requirements of the
BZeNESSEAE applicable rules and regulations.

RE ETRASEMERNRIRANETRE BESE e rlEE 2 RE ¥
REERREERZRARADER - HEBRRRERE 284 «

D12 Formalise functions reserved to the board and those C o Under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer who is also the Chairman of the Company,
delegated to management and to review those management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group.
anangements periodically to ensure that they remin FERTRBE (FMARARZER)FET EREEEASANAREE
appropriate to the company’s needs.

AAERPLRETESENRE RPLERT o The Company has established clear terms of reference for the Board which are reviewed
ERENBEARIBTE TR - LTS ERT AR periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.
REBZANERAANTE - ARRAIEAEZEHTEMNBEEE  TTHRARRERRGE

D13 The company should disclose the respective ¢ o The respective responsibilties, accountabilties and contributions of the board and management
responsibilities, accountabilties and contrioutions of have been discussed through this Corporate Governance Report.
the board and management. EECHEEERBNBECARCEE A BEMRL -
PRAERRESEHERERENRE  HEE
NEHAREERIELER -

D14 Directors should clearly understand delegation C o Directors are given formal letter of appointment setting out the key terms and conditions of

arrangements in place. The company should have
formal letters of appointment for directors setting out
the key terms and conditions of their appointment.
ESEERBRITNENERTS - RAER
EAMEZZEE TREBZIHNIERAR
it

their respective appointment. Each newly appointed Director will also be issued with a letter of
appointment.

FAESENGIEAZ AR YR BTREREZ T ERF RGN - BEHZEESNH
BRLZAE.

BRMEEEEFRAE « _T—LFFRH
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Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #5(cl)/ Corporate Governance Practices
234 FEBX e (E) PEERER
D2 Board Committees
ETeBTNZES
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
Board Committees should be formed with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.
EReR SRR ENRUEAEENBTRESE ARIHZEENREBE
D21 Where board committees are established to C o Four Board Committees, namely, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
deal with matters, the board should give them Committee and Management Committee, have been established with specific terms of
sufficiently clear terms of reference to enable them reference. Please refer to A.5.1-5.4, B.1.3, C.3.3 and D.1.2 for detalls.
to perform their functions properly. EZQENUNEETZES WERZES HHZEe REZEQNERZES .
RERUZERRREE ETQEMNARZES ZEREBESE - AF2H L EA5164B13 CI3RDI2E
SREASERORAGE BALAENAET
Bt
D22 The terms of reference of board committees should C o Board Committess report to the Board of their decisions and recommendations at the Board
require them to report back to the board on their meetings.
decisions or recommendations, unless there are EEeB [ REeNESe e NESSERARE RES -
legal or regulatory restrictions on their ability to do so
(such as a restriction on disclosure due to regulatory
requirements).
EEEETRZEGNBEEERATAEEE
EMESERREATIES KIERERES
REEAEERHARM T ELER (FlnRE
EREMBEHE) -
D3 Corporate Govemnance Functions
PEERBA
D31 The terms of reference of the board (or a C o No corporate govemnance committee has been established. The Board is responsible for the
committee or committees performing this function) corporate governance functions with the following duties:
should include: RARUERUCEERZEE CEERRAHESEAR YR TIIRE
Exe(ARMLBRNZES) NEREEER
& (@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
govemnance and make recommendations;
- develop and review the company's policies HERRAFARNAEERBRRER - WIREEH
and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the board; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
HERRARAMCEERUERER U Directors;
MEFSRLES: BRAREREENEIRBEERER
- review and monitor the training and (c)  toreview and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal
continuous professional development of and regulatory requirements;
directors and senior management; R RERANAEETEIEREERT N ENRRRER
RIREFEZRAMERA BN R
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Comply (‘C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
234 FEKX g (E) PEERER
D31 - review and monitor the company’s policies (@) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (f any)
con't) and practices on compliance with legal and applicable to employees and Directors;
(%) regulatory requirements; HET R REREANMEE RESNBTTAREATR (0F)
B RERRAEETEEREEREAE
MBRRER () to review the Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report; and
- develop, review and monitor the code of BHADAETTANBRARNCEERRETELNER: &
conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and directors; and ) such other corporate govemance duties and functions set out in the Code (as amended
HIE - BRI REREERESNRTEAR from time to time) for which the Board is responsible.
aRFM(0E) R IRTFANESLRENZSEMOEERBE RBA (ETREL) -
- review the company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Govenance Report.
BARTETREERTINEARELE
ERRERIHRE o
D32 The board should be responsible for performing ¢ *  No corporate govemance commitee has been established. The Board is responsible for the
the corporate governance duties set out in the corporate governance functions. Please refer to D.3.1 above for details.
terms of reference in D.3.1 or it may delegate the FRATERUAEERRES CEERBNMESSRR - AFELH LXEDA
responsiility to a committee or committees. B
EZeREERMDIIKBEEERENLEE
RBE TUREERET-ERSEZEE -
E COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
HRRMER
E1 Effective communication
ARER
Corporate Govemance Principle
PEERRA
The Board should be responsiole for maintaining an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual general meetings or other general meetings to communicate with
them and encourage their participation.
EZeRARERRBERBYE LERERRAFASIAMRRACERT R RSB MANSE -
E11 For each substantially separate issue at a general C o Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings of the Company on each

meeting, a separate resolution should be proposed
by the charman of that meeting. The company
should avoid “bunding” resolutions unless they are
interdependent and finked forming one significant
proposal. Where the resolutions are “oundled”, the
company should explain the reasons and material
implications in the notice of meeting.

ERRAG L eETREHSHERBUMNS
EEFIREAZR - RIFEBRZR MR K
FREBE SRRAN-BEAEZ BRAR
BREMILIAER - EEMILREER B
REEEBERERRREDIRNEATE -

substantially separate issue, including the election of individual Directors.
BEERBUNEE  HEALARRAG LIMERAERRZ - BERE[ERNES -

BRMEEEEFRAE « _T—LFFRH
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Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
234 FEBX e (E) PEERER
E12 - The chairman of the board should attend C o The 2017 annual general meeting (“2017 AGM”) at which the external auditor attended was
the annual general meeting. He should also convened on 22 June 2017. A general mesting of the Company was also held on 12 December
invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration, 2017 (“General Meeting”) for approving the continuing connected transactions.
nomination and any other committees (as I EEIREREAS (S —+ERRAEAE ) ER-E—+E/ A-T=H
appropriate) to attend. In their absence, BT HNEGEANELE - ARATRZE—tE+ AT AR T —RREAS
he should invite another member of the EUBARERERS
committee to be available to answer questions
at the annual general meeting. o Detalls of Directors’ attendance at the 2017 AGM and General Mesting are set out below:
EZeIRRLERRAEAE THHEE TRIAFIESLE_S—FRRAFAGZHE:
REBE FMEZEE REZEEREM
EnZEe (RNEERTT) HERLE - 2017 AGM General
EARZERERARLR E3ELRE Z2-tfF Mesting
HRP—EZELRERRAFTACLES Name of Directors £ BREEEAE  REAZ
1R o
Teo Siong Seng RINE 1n 1N
- The chairman of the independent board Chan Kwok Leung BRELER 1N 11
committee (f any) should also be available Teo Tiou Seng REgE 17 1N
to answer questions at any general meeting Chung Pui King, Rebecca EMR 1 1
to approve a connected transaction or any Kuan Kim Kin B 1 0
other transaction that requires independent Tan Chor Kee s il 0/
shareholders’ approval. Cheng Fu Kok, David [ 1 17
EZeRTNAUZEE (WA HEZRET Lau Ho Kit, lvan ERES 17 1"
EEAMBEATRANRRAS LEIER Yang, Victor BES 1" 17
B AEER HREMEAL B R Ong Ka Thi IZ%
idisb R (retired on 22 June 2017) (R=F—t&
~NAZTZBEMA) 1/1 00
- The company's management should ensure
the external auditor attend the annual general *  In 2017, the Chairman of the Board (also served as Chairman of Nomination Committeg),
meeting to answer questions about the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee and the
conduct of the aud, the preparation and Company's external auditor attended the 2017 AGM and were available to answer
content of the auditor's report, the accounting questions during the meeting.
policies and auditor independence. RIZ—+5 ES2IE (RERGZECIR) BLEECTR HMZES
ARMERERERRIE L ERER IRRANTYNEREAOALE_S—tERRAFAS - TATRE LEEHRE -
FXE EDEEBENIE GREUMR
ARHAS  HBENREEMN B * 2017, the Chairman of the independent board committee and the independent financial
ZHEE adviser attended the General Meeting and were available to answer questions during the
meeting.
RIZ—+F BUEEZECIRRBUINBERGFLERRAS URE L
B R o
E13 The company should arrange for the notice to C o The Company's notice to shareholders for the 2017 AGM of the Company was sent at least 20
shareholders to be sent for annual general meeting at clear business days before the meeting and the notice for the General Mesting was sent at least
least 20 clear business days before the meeting and 10 clear business days before the meeting.
o be sent at least 10 clear business days for all other FARABEZS—HEREAFACEMNEIR-TEEEARRREEEHANR
general meetings. EREREEANZVRTEEERRNEEAN -
RERAEREME  DARZHERGRTH
EPR-TRESAARRERBE MG
HtRRAGME  BAERNGBAANEIRT
BexpgrEm-
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Explain (‘E”)
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
234 FEKX g (E) PEERER
E14 The board should establish a shareholders’ C o The Board has established a shareholders communication policy and made it available on
communication policy and review it on a regular the Company's website. The policy is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its
basis to ensure fts effectiveness. effectiveness.
EZORAITRRBALE  WEBmaAER EFSHITREBARE  UEBHRARF B o AR E BIEL R NRBRER
R e
o This policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the Company’s
shareholders (the “Shareholders”), both individual and institutional, and, in appropriate
circumstances, the investment communtty at large, are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about the Company (including its financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments, governance and risk profie),
in order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
Shareholders and the investment community to engage actively with the Company.
RERFHEEERRAAARE (RR]) - AEEARBERE - REGEERTR
BE-RREAL HERRERE ARRRHIRBNARREH (RELHBRR
BRARRAE EXER EARERER)  —HEERRAIENEER TTEESN -
S-HEOERRRREATEARFMEEA -
E2 Voting by poll
IREFRER
Corporate Govemance Principle
PEERRA
The Company should ensure that shareholders are familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.
DAERRRRABAREARETRANFAES -
E21 The chaiman of a meeting should ensure that an C o Detalled explanation regarding the procedures for demanding poll by Shareholders had been

explanation is provided of the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll and answer any questions from
shareholders on voting by poll.
ABIRERRESHE FARREEURZAA
ETRANFARF  TRERRBBIRES
AFARNEMRR -

provided at the commencement of the 2017 AGM and General Mesting.
AERRERAREAARANRFOFARECR T FRRAFA S HRER
o

At the 2017 AGM and General Meeting, the Chairman of the mesting put each resolution set out

inthe notice to be voted by way of a poll in accordance with the Company’s Article.

RIZ—FERRAFAERRAAE [ - AETRBEALAZRAN HRRAF
SRENZBEABRRETRERA

Representatives of the Share Registrar of the Company were appointed as scrutineers to
monitor and count the poll votes cast at the 2017 AGM and General Mesting.
FRARNEREIRREZAA_T L EERRAFAGRRRAGHERE I
ERRERHERY -

Allthe resolutions put to vote at the Company's general meetings were taken by pol.
FAERARARRAG HREZABRIBBREFAETRR -

Poll resutts were posted on the websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.
RERRERDBHRNAR D RABZFEH -
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professional development of Directors.

BEENTAER URHEESHARSIRERER -

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E")
CodeRef. | Code Provisions #3(ch)/ Corporate Governance Practices
2Z38 FAIKX #R(E)) PEERER
F COMPANY SECRETARY
RAE
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and that Board policy and procedures are followed. The
Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer on governance matters and should also facilitate induction and

NARBEXRESE LELERAL RRESENEZHEARRRY NRERESERRRER - AANBARABIRR/ AERIRAENESERAE

F11 The company secretary should be an employee of C
the company and have day-to-day knowledge of the
company’s affairs.

NANEERAANES HLAMAREEE
PR«

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca (“Ms. Chung”) (a certified public accountant), who was appointed
as the Company Secretary of the Company on 10 September 2013, is also an execuitve
Director of the Company. Ms. Chung s currently the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. The
biographical details of Ms. Chung are set out under the section headed “Honorary Chairman,
Directors and Senior Management Profile”.

ghnat (Eat))GIReHM) RS- ZFNATREZEARDAZATNE -
BRRRRARTES - ERTREAADAZ ERUBRE - BRT 2 BEABER
[RBLE ESRREERARI-H-

The Company Secretary ensures the Board megtings are conducted under appropriate
procedures.
RANERRESCERNAERF TH#IT-

The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes and keeps records of
substantive matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board and Board Committee

megtings.
REONEREMEESERAETRECREEARERT SRR TRBE LA
HEZFERFHORE -

During 2017 the Company Secretary undertook not less than 15 hours of professional training to
update her skills and knowledge.
RIZ—+5  RENEREATO RO NERE S NRA LR RS -

F12 The board should approve the selection, C
appointment or dismissal of the company secretary.
DENENEE  ZEARERERESEHA -

The selection, appointment or dismissal of the Company Secretary is approved by the Board.

NENENRE ZERBEOMESEME

F13 The company secretary should report to the board C
chairman and/or the chief executive.

RANEERNESGIRR/ RTHEHER -

The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the Chairman whilst all members of the
Board have access to the advice of the Company Secretary.

RENEFRIRNESCES MAAEZENBNUREATNEZER

F14 Al directors should have access to the advice and C
services of the company secretary to ensure that
board procedures, and all applicable law, rules and
regulations, are followed.
FREZRARGARNUENERNZR MR
B NBRESERFRABEMEE AR
ROEEES -

Al Directors have full access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and legal and
professional consultants of the Company, whenever necessary, to ensure compliance with al
applicable law, rules and regulations, and corporate govemance practices.
PREFYARAERARANAANE RARREEEN (WERE)NER RS
DRRENMEEREE  RAREIINREEEREH -
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The board of directors (“Board”/“Directors”) of Singamas
Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the
Company’s annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding
and provision of management services to its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set
out in notes 48, 18 and 19, respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 103 to 104.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK2.5 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil). Together with an interim dividend
of HK1.5 cents per ordinary share (2016: Nil), total dividend
for the year would be HK4 cents per ordinary share (2016:
Nil).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2018 Annual General Meeting of the Company is
scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 26 June 2018 (the
“2018 AGM”). For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
21 June 2018 to Tuesday, 26 June 2018, both days
inclusive, and no transfer of the shares of the Company will
be effected during such period. In order to be entitled to
attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, all transfers of shares of
the Company, duly accompanied by the completed transfer
forms and all relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 17121716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 20 June 2018. The shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Thursday, 21 June 2018, the record date of the 2018 AGM
will be entitled to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM.

For determining the shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2017, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 11 July 2018 to Friday, 13 July 2018, both
days inclusive, and no transfer of the shares of the Company
will be effected during such period. In order for a shareholder
of the Company to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfers of shares of the Company, duly accompanied by the
completed transfer forms and all relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration by
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 10 July 2018. Subject to
the approval by the Company’s shareholders at the meeting,
the proposed final dividend is payable on or before Tuesday,
31 July 2018 to those shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 13 July
2018 (the record date).
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Review of our business and performance

A review of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and
the material factors underlying its results and financial position
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement from pages 8 to
13, Financial Highlights from pages 4 to 5 and Frequently
Asked Questions from pages 14 to 17 of this Annual Report,
which discussion forms part of this Report of the Directors for
purposes of Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). The outlook of the Company’s business is discussed
throughout this Annual Report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and are in addition to
the matters referred to in the Chairman’s Statement and
Frequently Asked Questions of this Annual Report:

1. Economic Conditions and Market Competition Risks
The impact of global economic conditions and market
sentiment would directly affect the business of the
Group. Any trade war between major economies
would create uncertainties to the world trade and
export from the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
which in turn may effect the market demand in, and
the average selling price (“ASP”) of, new dry freight
containers.
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The industry faces intense competition from container
manufacturing companies concentrate in PRC. The
competitors may attempt to gain market share by
offering products at prices at or below those typically
offered by the Company. The Company may be
required to reduce prices when facing competition,
which may affect the Group’s profitabilities and growth
potential. The Group continues to implement a series
of cost control measures and is continuing its focus
in expanding its product mix by developing more
higher-margin specialised containers thereby reducing
its dependency on specific markets.

Manpower and Retention Risks

The competition for talents has led to the risk that
the Group is not being able to attract or retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required
skills, experience and competence which would meet
the business objectives of the Group. The Group
will conduct regular reviews of its recruitment and
retention practices, remuneration packages and
succession plan to mitigate the risks. To nurture
the research and development talents, the Group
has launched the recruitment program to recruit
graduate form prominent universities in the PRC.
Moreover, in view of continuing increase in wage rate
in manufacturing industry in China in recent years,
the Group will increase the level of automation in
production in order to reduce manpower requirements
in the future and to minimise the labour cost.
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Financial Risks 3.  HBRER

In the course of business activities, the Group is REBEEERY  KEBSZZEIK
exposed to a variety of financial risks, including J—L ST E - BEREFPHNEE  RBE
customers’ credit, liquidity, currency and cash flow ® BEBERESREFERR

interest rate risks.

a. Customers’ credit risk

The Group’s and the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group and the Company
due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position as disclosed in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of
each reporting period to ensure the adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts, if necessary.

Details of the customers’ credit risk are set
out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants or to timely negotiate with
the lenders if any non-compliance is expected.

Details of the liquidity risk are set out in note 43
to the consolidated financial statements.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, bank balances
and cash and bank borrowings, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. As at 31
December 2017, the RMB to US$ closing
rate rose by 6% as compared to that of 31
December 2016. Such RMB appreciation
exposed the Group to foreign currency risk
as 95% sales are denominated in US$ whilst
79% cost of sales are denominated in RMB.
This exposure can partially offset by the
advantages taken from such appreciation, as
certain amount of Group’s monetary assets are
denominated in RMB. The Group manages and
monitors foreign exchange exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Details of the currency risk are set out in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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d. Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s cash flow
interest rate risk primarily relates to floating
rate borrowings and variable rate bank
balances. Interest rate risk on bank balances is
considered immaterial due to short maturity. It
is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at
floating rate of interest so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk. In order to hedge against
the interest rate risk arising from the potential
increase in interest rate in relation to the term
loan, the Company entered into certain interest
rate swap contracts to partially swap the term
loan in floating rate to fixed rate.

The management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Details of the cash flow interest rate risk are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

IMPORTANT EVENTS SINCE THE END
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, the Company is not
aware of any other important event affecting the Company
that have occurred since the end of the financial year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

A discussion on the Company’s environment policies and
performance as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance are published in the separate Environmental,
Social and Governance Report which will be available at the
websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) not later than 3 months
after the publication of this Annual Report.
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Compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those
have significant impact on the Group. As a listed company in
Hong Kong, the share of the Company is listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange since 8 July 1993, the Group
continuously complies with the requirements under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
including the disclosure requirements, corporate governance
code and Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers therein. Under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap.571), the Company is required to
maintain a register of interests in shares and short positions
and a register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and
short positions and is obliged to the disclosure requirement of
inside information. The Board will monitor the Group’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and such policies are regularly reviewed. Any
changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time.

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets
of an enterprise and regards human resources as its
corporate wealth. The Group is committed to comply with
the requirements of the applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Privacy Ordinance, ordinances against
disability, sex, family status and races discriminations, the
Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance
and the ordinances applicable to occupational safety so
as to safeguard the benefits and interests of the Group’s
employees.

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has endeavoured to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and adopted effective environmental technologies
to ensure its operations meet the standards and ethics in
respect of environmental protection.
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To protect the Group’s intellectual property rights, the Group
has registered its domain name and trademarks have been
applied for or registered in various classes in Hong Kong, the
PRC and other relevant jurisdictions and takes all appropriate
actions to enforce its intellectual property rights.

During the year, our Group has obtained all the approvals,
permits, consents, licences and registrations required for
our business and operations and all of them are in force.
There was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationships with employees, supplier and
customers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to
fulfil its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group ams at
delivering constantly high standards of quality in the products
and services to its customers. During the year, there was no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and/or customers.

Employees as the valuable assets of the Group, the Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and
motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard. The Group
also organised staff-friendly activities for employees, in order
to provide communication opportunities among staff, which
are vital to promote staff relationship and physical fitness.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
255 to 256 of this annual report.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2017, calculated under section 297 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, amounted to US$35,039,000 (2016:
US$56,009,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures of the Company are set out in notes 48, 18
and 19, respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank balances
and cash of US$234,774,000 (2016: US$209,009,000)
and total interest-bearing debts of US$427,760,000
(2016: US$365,540,000). This represented a gearing ratio,
calculated on the basis of the Group’s total interest-bearing
debts over equity attributable to owners of the Company, of
0.74 (2016: 0.69) and a net debt to equity ratio, calculated
on the basis of the Group’s net interest-bearing debts (after
deducting bank balances and cash of US$234,774,000) over
equity attributable to owners of the Company of 0.34 (2016:
0.29).
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Due to increase in bank borrowings to support the
construction projects and the growth in business volume;
along with the increase in the lending rate, interest expense
increased as compared with the same period last year, the
calculation of interest coverage ratio of the Group’s profit
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)
to total net interest expense for the year ended 31 December
2017 was 7.3 (2016: N/A).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s revenues are largely transacted in US Dollars
(“US$"). However, certain operating expenses are transacted
in other currencies including Hong Kong dollars (“‘HK$”)
and Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”). To monitor the currency
risk exposure and due to large interest rate difference
in US$ borrowings and RMB borrowings, the Group’s
interest-bearing debts balance as at 31 December 2017 were
99.15% in US$ (2016: 99.96%).

Of the total interest-bearing debts as at 31 December
2017, the maturity profile spread over a period of three
years with US$125,076,000 repayable within one year and
US$302,684,000 within two to three years. The Group’s
interest-bearing debts are principally on a floating rate basis.

In order to hedge against the interest rate risk arising from
the potential increase in interest rate in relation to the term
loan, the Company entered into certain interest rate swap
contracts to partially swap the term loan in floating rate to
fixed rate.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group and the Company
are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements. No interest was capitalised by the Group during
the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following continuing connected
transactions during 2017:

1. On 6 October 2014, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a master purchase
contract (the “Master Purchase Contract 2015”) with
PIL (for and on behalf of PIL Group), for the sale of
the Equipment to PIL Group. In view that PIL is a
connected person of the Company, the entering
into the Master Purchase Contract 2015 constituted
a connected transaction. As the Master Purchase
Contract 2015 involves transactions, which occur on a
recurring basis over a period of time, the transactions
constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than
profits ratio) calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the proposed annual caps
for the transactions exceeds 5%. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the Master Purchase
Contract 2015 are subject to annual reporting,
announcement, annual review and shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. After obtaining the approval from the
shareholders on 19 November 2014, the Master
Purchase Contract 2015 took effect from 1 January
2015 and was ended on 31 December 2017. Details
of these continuing connected transactions have
been disclosed in the announcement published on 6
October 2014 and the circular dated 24 October 2014
in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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Pacific International Lines (China) Ltd. (“PIL China”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of PIL, the controlling
and substantial shareholder of the Company, had
entered into a tenancy agreement with Singamas
Container Holdings (Shanghai) Limited (“SCSL”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant
to which PIL China leased a property to SCSL for
a period of eight and a half months commencing
from 15 April 2014 to 31 December 2014 (the “Initial
Tenancy”). As none of the applicable percentage
ratios (as defined in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules)
in respect of total transaction amounts for the Initial
Tenancy would exceed the 0.1% thresholds, these
transactions were not subject to any annual reporting,
announcement, annual review and shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
The lease under the Initial Tenancy expired on 31
December 2014. On 31 December 2014, SCSL
entered into the renewed tenancy agreement with PIL
China for the renewal of the Initial Tenancy for a further
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2015
to 31 December 2017, both dates inclusive (2015
Renewed Tenancy Agreement”). As PIL China is a
wholly owned subsidiary of PIL and SCSL is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, PIL is a connected
person of the Company and PIL China is an associate
of PIL under the Listing Rules. The 2015 Renewed
Tenancy Agreement involves transactions, which
will occur on a recurring basis over a period of time;
accordingly, the transactions constitute a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than profits ratio which shall not
apply) calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the annual cap for the
transactions is more than 0.1% but all of them are
less than 5%, under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules, the transactions therefore constitutes a
continuing connected transaction which is only
subject to the annual reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements and is exempt from the
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcement published on 31 December 2014 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

On 14 December 2016, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a master services
contract (the “Master Services Contract 2017”) with
PIL (for and on behalf of PIL Group), for the provision
of container depot and logistics services to PIL
Group. In view that PIL is a connected person of
the Company, the entering into the Master Services
Contract 2017 constituted a connected transaction.
As the Master Services Contract 2017 involves
transactions, which occur on a recurring basis over a
period of time, the transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Master Services
Contract 2017 takes effect from 1 January 2017 and
expire on 31 December 2019.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
proposed annual Caps for the transactions exceeds
0.1% but all of them are less than 5%. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the Master
Services Contract 2017 are subject to annual
reporting, announcement, and annual review but are
exempted from Shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of these continuing connected transactions have
been disclosed in the announcements published
on 14 December 2016 and 23 December 2016 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

On 30 October 2017, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a master purchase
contract (the “Master Purchase Contract 2018”) with
PIL (for and on behalf of PIL Group), for the sale of
the Equipment to PIL Group. In view that PIL is a
connected person of the Company, the entering
into the Master Purchase Contract 2018 constituted
a connected transaction. As the Master Purchase
Contract 2018 involves transactions, which occur on a
recurring basis over a period of time, the transactions
constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than
profits ratio) calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the proposed annual caps
for the transactions exceeds 5%. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the Master Purchase
Contract 2018 are subject to annual reporting,
announcement, annual review and shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. After obtaining the approval from the
shareholders on 12 December 2017, the Master
Purchase Contract 2018 took effect from 1 January
2018 and will be ending on 31 December 2020.
Details of these continuing connected transactions
have been disclosed in the announcement published
on 30 October 2017 and the circular dated 17
November 2017 in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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On 29 December 2017, SCSL entered into the
renewed tenancy agreement with PIL China for the
renewal of the 2015 Renewed Tenancy Agreement
for a further term of three years commencing from
1 January 2017 to 31 December 2020, both dates
inclusive (“2018 Renewed Tenancy Agreement”). As
PIL China is a wholly owned subsidiary of PIL and
SCSL is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
PIL is a connected person of the Company and PIL
China is an associate of PIL under the Listing Rules.
The 2018 Renewed Tenancy Agreement involves
transactions, which will occur on a recurring basis
over a period of time; accordingly, the transactions
constitute a continuing connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than profits ratio which shall not
apply) calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the annual cap for the
transactions is more than 0.1% but all of them are
less than 5%, under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules, the transactions therefore constitutes a
continuing connected transaction which is only
subject to the annual reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements and is exempt from the
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcement published on 29 December 2017 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have
been approved by the Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed these transactions
and are in the opinion that:

(@)

those continuing connected transactions between the
Group and PIL Group for the sale of the Equipment
to PIL Group are entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group, conducted
on normal commercial terms and entered into in
accordance with the agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole and on terms no less favourable than those
available to or from independent third parties. The total
amount of such transactions for the year ended 31
December 2017 was US$45,881,950 (equivalent to
approximately HK$357,879,210) and did not exceed
the annual cap of US$150,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,170,000,000);

those continuing connected transactions between
SCSL and PIL China are entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group, conducted
on normal commercial terms and entered into in
accordance with the agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole and
on terms no less favourable than those available to or
from independent third parties. The total amount of
such transactions for the year ended on 31 December
2017 was RMB2,781,660 (equivalent to approximately
US$410,968) and did not exceed the annual cap
of RMB6,204,871.09 (equivalent to approximately
US$1,000,785.66); and
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(@] those continuing connected transactions between
the Group and PIL Group for the provision of
container depot and logistics services to PIL Group.
are entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group, conducted on normal
commercial terms and entered into in accordance
with the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole and on
terms no less favourable than those available to or
from independent third parties. The total amount of
such transactions for the year ended on 31 December
2017 was US$4,178,394 (equivalent to approximately
HK$32,591,473) and did not exceed the annual
cap of US$4,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$34,920,000).

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has engaged the external auditor of the Company to
report the continuing connected transactions of the Group
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The external
auditor has reported to the Board and confirmed that for the
year 2017 the continuing connected transactions (i) have
received the approval of the Board; (i) are in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Company; (i) have been
entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and (iv) the continuing
connected transactions in paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) above
have not exceeded the relevant caps as disclosed in the
announcements dated 6 October 2014, 31 December 2014
and 14 December 2016 respectively.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017

© GFIMNASKSEHATIMESEEZHZEE
FER 5 AR B R RIS R YRR
FAREMBEBAAEBR Z EEEmES
B BIR—MEEGER UARBBEEH
R GBI R IGTEIT F MRXBIERAF
51 BFAARARREANBEHE
WIARBRBIYLE =4 T ERM
FIERmEIY - BE_FE—tF+=A
=+—HIEZFE  ZERFINBREA
4,178,394 7T, (4918 %5 1032,591,473%
7T) + WA B A E IR 24,500,0003
T (#)¥8F 1234,920,00078 7T) °

RIE E AR BIZE14A5615 - AARIEEAAR
Al Z N EE IR E A ST AGFIEM
M & S 1% TEXERIB000 (f&3T) [E &£ 81 i {=
BETUBHAIINETER] - LLR2EB A
HBEENEEHRBE74I05 R EBS LR
BI BT 15 48 R EE X 5 MO AZ SRR bl 1 | B S AR &
BrAERS - INEZBAEMESSERK
BR: T LFECHERERSH()EKE
BEEE ()DERBARFTNTEEBREmME
175 (i) IR IEE R 2 M BB IETETT + R(v)
N L@ BO)RFQREZIFERER
SUEBBRN_T—NF+ARE ZZF—
F+-A=+—RHAKZZE—R"F+ZA+HEA
/Nl i |



The Group entered into certain transactions with related
parties during the year ended 31 December 2017, some
of which constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Group and were set out in note 47 to the financial
statement of this Annual Report (“Annual Report 20177).
Including in note 47 to the financial statement of the Annual
Report 2017 in respect of related party transactions, sales
to immediate holding company, sales to fellow subsidiaries
and rental expense to a fellow subsidiary were the continuing
connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company confirms that it has complied
with the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 25 April 2017, the Company entered into a facility
agreement (the “New Facility Agreement”) with The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
and Industrial Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch as
mandated lead arrangers and bookrunners; Bank of
Communications Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch, Bangkok
Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch, DBS
Bank Ltd., United Overseas Bank Limited and Chiyu
Banking Corporation Limited as mandated lead arrangers
and Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited as lead
arranger for a term of three years for the purpose of (a) first,
financing the repayment of the existing banking facilities
entered into on 24 September 2013 (“Existing Loans”) in
full; and (b) once the Existing Loans have been repaid in ful,
financing the capital expenditure of the Group’s container
manufacturing operations. The New Facility Agreement
includes conditions to the effect that Mr. Teo Siong Seng and
his family members shall maintain the management control of
any member of the Group. A breach of the above conditions
will constitute a prepayment event under the New Facility
Agreement. If such prepayment event occurs, all amounts
outstanding under the New Facility Agreement may become
immediately due and payable.

Report of The Directors EE 2R &

HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HIFE £&
BEIETHEB RS  MED RSB
SERFE@EER S  EFBIENAF®R((=Z
—tFFR]) A2 P ERRMTFL7 - R =T
—t+FEFRAZ M BEREMFA7THBREEAF]
X5 HhmERZERAREESES  AER
MBARMEER  URA—RREHBARX
HHeABEBHAERIHBRAR (EBRFT))
BHLEMAA(TEWRAD FUAETR ZHF
BRERS ARNAEREFELTHRAE
AT 2 ER o

BELTRANFEIS21MGEZHE

RZZE—tFMWAZ+HRB  ARAEFE L
BEZRTERARILREERITRHABRAF]
EBDTEASAERBRLTHTREEEEA
RBIRITRMDBERABEED(T - BRRITH
BR1T EBRITBRAR - RERITERA
AMERIBITAERARERSTEBLHIT
AREGRITAERARMEREBRLHITEI LR
H=F &=z ((FaEHzl) - HEM@E)
BEAREESIERERERZMNR - —=FNA
ZHMHEEZ 2 RABRITRE ((REER])
o) —BIEBEERC2HEEE  AAKREEH
SRANEEBNERAT HIZHAE - FTpE
W2 B ERRRE (BRI ELEERE
KGR B ) BRFNAEEEMKE 2 BB
#ll o B R _E G S EREET R E R EKIE
AUEREIE - MBEAEZIRINERSE  FimE
WEE TAAREE ZFIASNSAIREIE - I
AREEE -

BRMEEEEFRAE « _T—LFFRH

79



80

Report of The Directors EE &%

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, no asset of the Group (2016: Nil)
was pledged as securities to any third parties.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During 2017, the Company provided guarantees to banks as
securities for credit facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of
the Company in the PRC. The Group does not provide any
guarantee to any third parties and does not have contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and has taken appropriate steps to
adopt and comply with the applicable principles and code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Further information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Codge”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all of the
Directors have complied with, for any part of the accounting
period covered by this annual report, the required standard
as set out in the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin#

Mr. Tan Chor Kee*

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David*
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan*

Mr. Yang, Victor*

Retired director:
Mr. Ong Ka Thai*

#  Non-executive Director
*  Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles
of association (“Articles”), at each AGM one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an AGM at least once every three years but shall be eligible
for re-election.

The term of office for non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is for one year to three
years and is subject to retirement and re-election at the
annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of Listing Rules from
each of Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan, and
Mr. Yang, Victor and considered them as independent.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES MEARIZES

The names of directors who have served on the boards of R-Z—+F+-_A=+—HIFEARAIAK
the subsidiaries of the Company (the “Subsidiaries”) during ¥R 2 HEAIE 2 BifE - HEARR A Z M B A A
the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this (B R R ) EEEMESHERWT ¢

report, are set out below:

(in alphabetical order) (R SUR R HES)
Current directors of Subsidiaries: ERZHBARES
CHAN Kwok Leung BoR B 4R

CHENG Chih Hsin &

CHU Chee Leong KFR

CHUNG Pui King, Rebecca IR

HSU Yung Ming TRk

LAl Zhi Yong FEEE

LAM Gar Wing, Debbie MK

MA Wei Bo Kirby 5B

PAN Chun Ling BRI

QIAN Ming A

REN Yu Dong FRE

SUN Da Peng YN

Takao SHINOHARA Takao SHINOHARA
TEO Siong Seng SRINER

TEO Tiou Seng SREARE

TEO Teng Seng RSB

WANG Wen Zhen B¢

WANG Zhi Qiang F oA

WENG Sheng Qiang SR

WU Bing Hong HIRs

WU Ding Xiang REFE

XU Jin Yong TR#E K

XU Sun Tong FFRE

YANG Shao Peng 154815

YIP Ching Han T AH I

ZHANG Tian Bao RAE

ZHAO Bing IR

ZHAO Pei Cong By

Resigned directors of Subsidiaries: EBECHBARIES
HE Jian Xu CIE=:9):

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of
the Directors or chief executive in the shares of the Company
(the “Shares”), underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”))
which (a) were required notification to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which any such
Director is taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or which (b) were required pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO to be entered into the register maintained by
the Company; or which (c) were required, pursuant to Model
Code contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(A) Ordinary Shares of the Company

Report of The Directors EE 2R &
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BaRkAR

RZEB—+HF+_A=+—0 JFEFIES
TTBA BB AERR B REMEREE (E
& R (B 5 LB 5G] EXVER) AR QB
(TBfn]) ~ AR BRI BRI 21
@R E - WABRIERCGES RGP EXV
BRER7 M F8D B R E BA AR A R Fr2 #E
@R R (BRESREGEFLPEGRIDZ
BRAGXEBRRIRAER 2 ERIIKR)
() BKIECRE 75 MG 15 01) 2352168 E 8
LB A R BIRZ G IF B < Btz s
SORE ¢ KCAKRBEN EHARRR EHET
ANEZETEFRZHNRETABAARRA R
BRI ZERIORBINT

A ErFEER

Number of Shares/Underlying Shares Held Percentage of
BEZRG/ EBRHHA Total Issued
Personal Corporate Total Shares
Name Capacity Interest Interest Other Interest {E2WEBT
#e % BAER NAER Hity aEE ROBOKL
Mr. Teo Siong Seng (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 44,045,250 = = 44,045,250 1.82
RIBLE (Wi1) EanfEAA
Mr. Chan Kwok Leung (Note 2) ~ Beneficial Owner 719,250 = = 719,250 0.03
FREIRSE A (Hit2) ERBAA
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng (Note 3) Bengficial Owner 276,780 - - 276,780 0.01
RABTEWits) EnAA
Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca Beneficial Owner 278,625 = = 278,625 0.01
(Note 4) EREEA
ERRLL (Wit4)
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin (Note 5) Beneficial Owner 172,780 = = 172,780 0.01
AR ES E (Wiits) EafEAA
Mr. Tan Chor Kee (Note 6) Spouse Interest - - 6,000 6,000 0.00
REELE (Hit6) RBER
Mr. Yang, Victor (Note 7) Beneficial Owner 120,000 - - 120,000 0.00
SERLE (HH7) EafEAA

BRMEEEEFRAE « _T—LFFRH

83



84

Report of The Directors EE &%

Notes:

(1)

@

®)

“)

()

©

(7)

The personal interest of Mr. Teo Siong Seng represents
the interest in 42,377,250 Shares and interest in 1,668,000
underlying Shares in respect of the share options granted
by the Company, the details of which are stated in the
following section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Chan Kwok Leung represents
the interest in 719,250 underlying Shares in respect of the
share options granted by the Company, the details of which
are stated in the following section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Teo Tiou Seng represents the
interest in 196,780 Shares and interest in 80,000 underlying
Shares in respect of the share options granted by the
Company, the details of which are stated in the following
section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca
represents the interest in 195,291 Shares and interest in
83,334 underlying Shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company, the details of which are stated in
the following section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Kuan Kim Kin represents the
interest in 172,780 underlying Shares in respect of the
share options granted by the Company, the details of which
are stated in the following section “Share Options”.

Ms. Lee Tew Guan, spouse of Mr. Tan Chor Kee holds
6,000 Shares. Mr. Tan Chor Kee is deemed to be
interested in 6,000 Shares held by Ms. Lee Tew Guan.

The personal interest of Mr. Yang, Victor represents the
interest in 120,000 underlying Shares in respect of the
share options granted by the Company, the details of which
are stated in the following section “Share Options”.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the
Shares and underlying Shares.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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(B)

Share Options

Particulars of the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 1 June 2007 (the “Option Scheme”)
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Option Scheme was in force for a
period of 10 years commencing from 1 June 2007
and was expired on 31 May 2017. Options complying
the provisions of the Listing Rules which are granted
during the duration of the Option Scheme and
remain unexercised immediately prior to the end of
the 10 year period shall continue to be exercisable
in accordance with their terms of grant within the
option period for which such options are granted,
notwithstanding the expiry of the Option Scheme.

(B)
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Movements of the share options under the Option RER - BIRETEI THEREZ S 0
Scheme during the year are as follows: I
Number of Share Options
ERESA
Asat
Asat 31 December
1 January 2017
217 i
B “E-1f Exercise
Name/Category #%/98% ZF-tE  Granted  Exercised Lapsed tZR  GrantDate  Exercisable Period Price
of Participants P :f -p-f Ril i3 %% Zt-R RERAH E8  FE
(Notes, b ¢) HKS
(Wits b Ke) AT
Directors gz
MrTeoSongSeng  RiRBXE 2,613,000 - - 2613000 - 28062007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 39
2,613,000 - - 2613000 - 28062007 286/2000-27/6/2017 3%
2,613,000 - - 2613000 - B6/2007  28/6/2010-27/6/2017 3%
1383 - - - 1383 112010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 138
833,333 - - - 833,333 112010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 138
833,334 - - - 833,334 1712010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 138
9507000 - - B0 1668000

BRMEEEEFRAE « _T—LFFRH
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Number of Share Options
ERESA

Asat

Asat 31 December

1 January 2017

017 i
i -tk Exercise
Name/Category #%/98% Z-F-tE  Granted  Exercised Lapsed +ZfF  GrantDate  Exercisable Period Price
of Participants P :f -f-H Rit i %% Zt-R RiERAH Es  FE
(Notes, b & ¢) HKS
(Wit b Ke) A1
Mr. Chan Kiwok Leng ~ EIR %4 522,600 - - (522,600) - 62007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 39
522,600 - - (522,600) - 062007 28/6/2000-27/6/2017 3%
522,600 - - (522,600) - 0602007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 3R
750 - - - 750 682008 6//2009-6/8/2018 148
70 - - - 790 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
27750 - - - 217,750 6/6/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
166,666 - - - 166,666 112010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
166,667 - - - 166,067 112010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
166,667 - - - 166,067 112010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

2287050 - - (1667800 719,280
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng RABLE 130,650 - - (130,680) - 62007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 39
130,650 - - (130,680) - 062007 28/6/2000-27/6/2017 3%
130,650 - - (130,60) - 0602007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 3R
40,000 - - - 0000 172010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 138
40,000 - - - 40000 172010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

471,90 - - (39190 80,000
Ms.ChungPuking,  EfZ&L 261,300 g - B - 607 2BBR008-27/62017 398
Rebecca 261,300 - - (261300 - 28062007 28/6/2000-27/6/2017 3%
261,300 - - (261,300) - 062007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 3%
1 - - - 1 112010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
83,333 - - - 83,333 112010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

867,234 - - (783,900) 83,334

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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Number of Share Options
ERESA

Asat

Asat 31 December

1 January 2017

217 i
iy ZE-tF Exercise
Name/Category f%/98% ZF-tE  Granted  Exercised Lapsed +tZR  GrantDate  Exercisable Period Price
of Participants P :f -f-H Rit i3 %% Zt-R RERAH E8  FE
(Notes 3, b &) HK$
(Wit b Ke) AT
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin BiRRLE 130,650 - - (130,680) - B0/6/2007  28/6/2008-27/6/2017 39
130,650 - - (130,60) - 28062007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 39
130,650 - - (130,60) - 28062007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 39
260 - - - 0 682008 6/8/2009-0/8/2018 148
200 - - - 200 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
52260 - - - 5,200 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
40,000 - - - 40000 112010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 138
40000 - - - 40,000 17712010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 138
40000 - - - 40000 17712010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 138

564730 - - POy 172780
Mr. Ong Ka Thai IF%kE 130,650 - - (130,680) - /62007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 39
(Note o) W) 130,650 - - (130,60) - 28062007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - (130,650) - 28062007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 39
260 - - 260) - 682008 6/8/2009-0/8/2018 148
52,00 - - (62,260) - 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
52260 - - (62,260) - 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
40,000 - - (40,000) - 112010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40000 - - (40,000 - 17712010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 138
40000 - - (40,000 - 1712010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 138

616730 - - b6 -
Mr. Yang, Victor FERLE 40000 - - - 40,000 112010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 138
40000 - - - 40000 1712010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 138
40000 - - - 40,000 1712010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 138

120,00 - i - 12000

Sub-totdl N5t 14,434,694 - - (1091330 2843304

BRMEEEEFRAE « _T—LFFRH
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Number of Share Options
ERESA

As at

Asat 31 December

1 January 2017

017 it
i Z5-tf Exercise
Name/Category #%/98% Z-F-tE  Granted  Exercised Lapsed +ZfF  GrantDate  Exercisable Period Price
of Participants P :f -f-H Rit it %% Zt-R RiERAH Es  FE
(Notes g, béc) HKS
(Wits b Ke) AT
Employees naggregate ES AT 391,90 - - (391,950 - 086007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 3%
Noteg) (Wite) 391,950 - - 9190 - 286007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 3%
391,950 - - (391,950) - 086007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 39
14795 - - - 147925 6/82008  6/8/2011-6/8/2018 148
84,668 - - - 84,668 1712010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 138
136,667 - - - 136,667 1712010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 138
136,665 - - - 136,660 1712010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 138

Sub-fotal N5 1,681,775 - - (1175850 505,925
All other employees ~ FiGHftES 348,400 - - (348,400 - 0862007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 3%
in aggregate a4t 348400 - - (348,400 - 0862007 28/6/2000-27/6/2017 39
348,400 - - (348,400) - 0862007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 39
11894 - - - 118954 6/82008  6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
118953 - - - 118953 682008  6/82010-6/8/2018 148
202,953 - - - 202,953 6/82008  6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148

Sub-total NGt 1,486,060 - - (1045200 440,860

Total gz 17,602,529 - - (138123800 3790149

Notes: Hraz

E)} The share options with the exercise price of HK$3.93 are (a) KT 1B3.93 8 TR # E 5 5l R =

vested and exercisable in three tranches on 28 June 2008,
2009 and 20170 respectively and up to 27 June 2017.
Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the share options
with the exercise price of HK$3.93 had lapsed on 28 June
2017.

(b) The share options with the exercise price of HK$1.48 are
vested and exercisable in three tranches on 6 August 2009,
2010 and 2011 respectively and up to 5 August 2018.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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(@] The share options with the exercise price of HK$1.38 are
vested and exercisable in three tranches on 1 July 2011,
2012 and 2013 respectively and up to 30 June 2020.

@ Mr. Ong Ka Thai (“Mr. Ong”), a former Director, retired from
office at the Company’s 2017 annual general meeting held
on 22 June 2017 and did not offer himself for re-election.
Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the 391,950
underlying Shares and 224,780 underlying Shares held by
Mr. Ong were lapsed on 28 June 2017 and 23 July 2017
respectively.

e Employees are working under employment contracts that
are regarded as “continuous contracts” for the purposes of
the Employment Ordinance.

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries
a party of any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, none of Directors nor their
associates, had any other interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required notification to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which any such Director or chief executive is taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
which () were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
to be entered into the register maintained by the Company;
or which (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
or the Stock Exchange and none of Directors, nor their
spouse or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such right during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2017, according to the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and so
far as was known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, the following persons (other than the interests
of certain Directors disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above), had an interest or a short
position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would

FERR 2 E®

R-TE—+F+ZA=+—B REXQAZ
(FBEFH KRG RPI) 5E336161F & 2 B M AT
R ANBARRRESHHRAITRABMA -
TOAL BRALETESEREND - ARG HE
BECEDLAR] " BREETESHAZ
N - R KRR B 2 S IOR
B WAREGER KB GED) EXVEEE2R
3D EBAARBIWEERLAT

fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of

Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Percentage of

Number of Ordinary Shares Total Issued
EERRE Shares
Name Notes Direct Interest Indirect Interest {422 TR
A gz HiEER B s BRI
Mr. Chang Yun Chung (1) 493,291 (¥ 993,825,345 (L) 4114
R EE
Madam Lee Kheng Wah 2) - 994,318,636 (L)* 41.14
FBELL
PIL (1) 993,825,345 (L) - 4112
NN
PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. (1) - 993,825,345 (L) 4112
Y. C. Chang & Sons Private Limited 3 - 993,825,345 (L)* 4112

(L) # - Long Position

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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Notes:

(1)

@

®)

A total of 993,825,345 Shares are directly held by PIL. PIL is 100%
owned by PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. and Mr. Chang Yun Chung is
interested, in aggregate, in 496,800,000 shares representing
89.61% of the issued share capital of PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd..
Mr. Chang Yun Chung’s interest in shares of PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd.
comprises a personal interest in 79,275,000 shares and corporate
interests in 175,500,000 shares through South Pacific International
Holdings Limited, a company in which he holds 2.02% of the
issued share capital and 242,025,000 shares through Y.C. Chang
& Sons Private Limited, a company in which he holds 5.71% of the
issued share capital. Messrs. Teo Siong Seng and Teo Tiou Seng,
Directors, both of their interests in shares of PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd.
comprise personal interests in 3,600,000 shares and 2,400,000
shares respectively and representing 0.65% and 0.43% of the
issued share capital of PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd..

Madam Lee Kheng Wah, as the spouse of Mr. Chang Yun Chung, is
deemed to be interested in these Shares.

PIL is a wholly owned subsidiary of PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. in which
Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited holds more than one-third of
interests in PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd.. Accordingly, Y.C. Chang & Sons
Private Limited indirectly controls one-third or more of the voting
rights in the shareholders’ meeting of PIL, in accordance with SFO,
Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited is deemed to be interested in
PIL’s interests in the Company’s issued Shares.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the
Shares.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other person known
to the Directors or chief executive, other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, who, as at 31 December

2017,

had an interest or a short position in the Shares and

underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO.
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Ltd. [R5 & #£496,800,0004% + 15PIL Holdings
Pte. Ltd.B #77R &K89.61% ° &k A # 5t 4 AT 5
A ZPIL Holdings Pte. Ltd.f&17 & 7 B AN # 75
79,275,000/ - i% #BSouth Pacific International
Holdings Limited (5 7 #1554 #5 H % 22 7]12.02%
ERTRA)EFAEZ R A #wm175,600,0008
Ri#E#BY. C. Chang & Sons Private Limited (&7
FAERFEZRA]S.T1%EETRAE) B R
A # 242,025,000/ ° i1 & F KR IRE £ 4+ R K
B4 B 7 FI# BPIL Holdings Pte. Ltd.fR17.2
1A A # 253,600,00088 2,400,000/ + 5 B 145 PIL
Holdings Pte. Ltd.E #77 70.65%/%0.43% -
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

As at 31 December 2017, no Directors or proposed directors
had any existing service contract or proposed service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements (which were approved by the independent
non-executive Directors and in the opinion of the Directors
were carried out on normal commercial terms and in ordinary
course of the Group’s business), no material transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its immediate
and ultimate holding company, fellow subsidiaries or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company or an entity connected with a director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has insured and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover to certain legal actions brought against its
directors and officers. The permitted indemnity provision is in
force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section
470 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) when this report
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales
attributable to major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Report of The Directors EE &

TREFEFRMHER
AEEREEREEERRA T EHEBRE
FZAEALMT

Percentage
AL
Percentage of purchases attributable to AREBZARERATGEES 17.8%
the Group’s largest supplier
Percentage of purchases attributable to AEERAEEEMEBER 46.9%
the Group’s five largest suppliers
Percentage of sales attributable to REBGZAEFPIGEER 17.0%
the Group’s largest customer
Percentage of sales attributable to AEEBRAKREFAGE %R 55.8%

the Group’s five largest customers

During the year, none of the Directors nor their associates
nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an
interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has
not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract conceming the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Retirement Benefits Scheme are set out in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 18 to
24 under the “Honorary Chairman, Directors and Senior
Management Profile” section of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The remuneration policy for the employees of the Company
is set by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are decided by the Remuneration Committee
with reference to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group, including subsidiaries
employed 9,389 (2016: 7,950) full-time employees; its
associates and joint ventures employed 1,242 (2016:
1,275) full-time employees in total. Staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to US$157,525,000
(2016: US$129,049,000) for the year. Al full-time salaried
employees, except for factory workers and contract
employees, are being paid on a monthly basis, plus a
discretionary performance bonus. Factory workers are
being remunerated based on a basic wage plus production
incentive. Share options are also being offered to selected
grantees of the Group. The Group ensures that the pay levels
of its employees are competitive and employees are awarded
on a performance related basis within the general framework
of the Group’s salary and bonus system. To further enhance
the capability of its human resource, the Group provides
on-the-job training to its employees.
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Other than the subsidiaries in the PRC, neither the Company
nor any of its other subsidiaries has established labour union.
The Company and its subsidiaries, however, are not subject
to any collective agreements. The Group has maintained
good relationships with its employees. None of the Group’s
employees is represented by a labour union.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as external auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Teo Siong Seng

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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BB AR S

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINGAMAS
CONTAINER HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 103 to 254, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Codge”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

HEETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BARBRTEEREEREENS X

Recoverability of trade balances with customers

BEEFE SRR E E

We identified the recoverability of trade balances with
customers as a key audit matter due to the significant
management judgments and estimates involved in
determining whether an allowance for doubtful debts is
required for these trade balances.

ENERERA TERAG MG RASETS
BHERAATNEME B RARESEE -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2017, an aggregate
carrying amount of trade balances with customers was
US$410,535,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debt of
US$649,000). Management assessed the recoverability
of trade balances with customers by considering the
credit worthiness of customers including the aging
analysis, default or delay in payments, settlement
records, and settlements subsequent to the end of the
reporting period.

WG BERERMTAABEE R —tF
+TZRA=+—HX EBESEEBEZRRZELER
410,535,0005 7T (2 #0 kR 22 & 2 44649,000% 7T ) °

ERENTMETFEZRAOAIWOMEER - Z&E
TEFPHEERS SRR ERTEEN
o NG ER - BRI AR -

Based on management assessment, there was no
additional allowance for doubtful debts required at the
end of the reporting period.

RIZEE BV - NS AR BERERIMNEIRE
=
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Our procedures in relation to recoverability of trade
balances with customers included:
BMBEREFE SRR A BB T TiET

. Obtaining an understanding of how the
recoverability of trade balances with customers
was assessed by management;

BRRERE A AEEPE SRR A
14

. Testing the accuracy of aging analysis of trade
balances with customers, on a sample basis, by
tracing to sales invoices;
AR T A EHEESR
ZHERNRER DA

ETHREFPZ

. Testing settlements of trade balances with
customers subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, on a sample basis, by
checking to the related sales invoices and bank
records; and
UHERN A A RELRTFE S RAN R EH
‘A EMEREEEZERBITLE &

. Assessing the reasonableness of recoverability
of trade balances with customers assessed
by management with reference to the credit
worthiness of customers including the
aging analysis, default or delay in payments,
settlement records, and subsequent
settlements.

BT A EREEHERTFE SRR KE T
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concem.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Wong Kuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEmkHMEEHINER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 = F—+F+ A =+—HILFE

2017 2016
“E-tf ZTRE
Notes US$’ 000 US$000
=3 TER FET
Revenue 2] 5 1,476,670 916,433
Other income HABA 7 6,228 7,293
Changes in inventories of S m R ER M
finished goods and FTEEE
work in progress 86,953 (32,262)
Raw materials and FEMRREERX N
consumables used (1,141,145) (657,330)
Staff costs B 8RR (157,525) (129,049)
Depreciation and nEREH
amortisation expense (32,428) (33,741)
Exchange (loss) gain [ 5 (B18) & (10,866) 1,042
Other expenses Ei B A (157,235) (122,024)
Finance costs BBER 8 (14,434) (11,060)
Investment income KEKBA 9 2,765 2,764
Change in fair value of derivative financial T4 & BT A
instruments ~RBEEE 37 756 376
Share of results of associates JERE &N R 2 E18 (1,745) (1,201)
Share of results of joint ventures FIEEELEZEF 398 410
Profit (loss) before taxation BRBADER (F8) 10 58,392 (68,349)
Income tax expense FrEHER X 18 (14,952) (3,571)
Profit (loss) for the year REERF (B8) 43,440 (61,920)
BRHEBECEGRAG « —FT—+FFH 103
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income SR8 E# R Ht 2 EER
For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 = F—+F+=HA=+—HIFFE

2017 2016
- Sl of -3 —T—REF
Notes US$’ 000 US$000
itz3 TER FTEx

Other comprehensive income Hit2EE (X))

(expense)
Item that may be reclassified RABER ZHEmHER -

subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on MEINEFTEESR

translation 4,601 2,512)
Other comprehensive income FrHEM2EKE ()

(expense) for the year 4,601 2,512
Total comprehensive income FREEKE (ZH) A%

(expense) for the year 48,041 (64,432)
Profit (loss) for the year REERGRT (BR)

attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARAIRE 41,452 (59,434)
Non-controlling interests JEPRRR IR R M 25 1,988 (2,486)

43,440 (61,920

Total comprehensive income P2 mE s () 4% -

(expense) attributable to:
Owners of the Company /NG g 45,630 (61,613)
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR AR B M 2 2,411 2,819

48,041 (64,432)

Earnings (loss) per share BREAN (FR)

Basic B 15 US1.72 cents%fll US(2.46) centsZE L

Diluted #E 15 US1.72 cents%fll US(2.46) centsE /L
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e R 3k

As at 31 December 2017 R=—ZF—+F+_-H=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
Notes US$’ 000 US$'000
it FER F=ET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - s RaRE 16 387,417 349,195
Goodwill IS 17 3,589 3,589
Interests in associates RNl ey 18 43,308 41,931
Interests in joint ventures NN = o o 19 21,789 20,833
Available-for-sale investment AHHEZIRE 20 6,608 6,608
Derivative financial instruments TEemITA 37 1,014 350
Prepaid lease payments AT E IR 21 90,302 71,672
Deposits for non-current assets EMBEERS 22 22,362 19,183
576,389 513,361
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 257,617 136,819
Trade receivables JE W R X 24 312,870 209,163
Prepayments and other receivables &1t Kz . fib g Uk 3k 18 25 131,007 85,381
Amount due from immediate JE U B B 1R A IR IE
holding company 26 543 281
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries & Y [7 Z B A ,TAIE 27 97,122 55,184
Amounts due from joint ventures JEURE BEERK 28 1 3
Amounts due from associates JFE Uk Bt 428 A ) /T}\IE\ 29 17,397 13,970
Derivative financial instruments MTEEMTA 37 - 6
Tax recoverable aJ Uk el Z %18 1,084 756
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIE 21 2,258 1,694
Bank balances and cash RITER KRS 30 234,774 209,009
1,054,673 712,266
Non-current assets classified DERFEEEN
as assets held for sale EMBEE 31 3,393 -
1,058,066 712,266
BREECEBRAR o L FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %3 & B # ik R &
As at 31 December 2017 R=—FE—+F+—-HA=+—H

2017 2016
ZE—tHF T RF
Notes US$’ 000 US$'000
iorz3 FER F=T
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FERTRR K 32 256,347 131,745
Bills payable i ANEE 33 211,833 80,701
Accruals and other payables FEET & R K H Ath FE T BR K 34 102,948 57,326
Amount due to immediate holding & B 1A% A 71518
company 26 15 =
Amounts due to associates JE {~TBsE 2 N B FIE 35 85 366
Amount due to a joint venture EN—&ELENIA 35 9 15
Tax payable JEN TR 6,160 4,682
Bank borrowings RITEN 36 125,076 274,812
702,473 549,647
Net current assets RBEEFE 355,593 162,619
Total assets less current liabilities & E 2R A B A B 931,982 675,980
Capital and reserves BEXK#E
Share capital LN 38 268,149 268,149
Accumulated profits E il 250,838 221,799
Other reserves H A f# 46,212 43,066
Equity attributable to owners RARREREGHER
of the Company 574,199 533,014
Non-controliing interests FEVEAR AR SR M 2 46,394 44,806
Total equity B 620,593 577,820
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %34 8136 f % 3%

As at 31 December 2017 R=ZZF—+F+=-H=+—H

2017 2016
—E2—tF —TRF
Notes US$’ 000 US$'000
HtaF FEx FET

Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Bank borrowings RITENK 36 302,684 90,728
Deferred tax liabilities B IEEE 40 8,705 7,432
311,389 98,160
931,982 675,980

The consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to 254
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 28 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Teo Siong Seng R E
Director &%

N EI0BEEFEB4B 2 R M BHRREE
EER T N\F=ZAZ+N\BiEREELD
2 WA MIEEHARRE

Teo Tiou Seng REIE
Director &%

BREECERRAR « —T—tFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 —F—+F+_-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRRRES
Exchange Share Non-
translation ~ General Revaluation option controlling
Share reserve  resenve Deve|opmen[ resernve reserve Other Accumulated interests

cptd~ HEFE B resene EBE 0 BRE  fecene profits T FER O o

Bx BF BF BREE EF  BR HbBE RRd 4 KRER 48
USSo  USSOMD USSDDD LSS0 USSeo  USSODD  USSODD  USSD  USSto  USSO0 LS
e TR tar R R T TR I £ ¢ /R T

(Nots)
(1)
At January 2016 S
-A-H 208149 07 3,74 8390 1361 3367 (3912) 0846 %28 62319 647,660
Loss forthe year TEEEE - - . - - = - B4y 4 R4 619)
Bchangedfoencesaisng BENEREZE
on rangiaion - 2119 - - - - - - 2119 614 IRV
Toid comprehensiexperse.  REERER L AE
fortheyear - oy - - - - S FE RRY R
Acquiston o aoftonal nterest BB R A2 RigiEs
notsiats - - - - - - 0 - 0 B G
Share of eseres of an associale EEBE AT 2 e - - - - - - 659 - (663) - (659)
Diddend ped tonon-controling 23R iE 2R
nterests - - - - - - - - - 676) 676
Transfer from accumulated profts E5 B 2517 - - 113 - = = (1613 - - =
At 31 December 2016 NE-1E
+2A=1-H 268,149 (2832 31254 8503 1,361 3367 (4.567) 21,799 53014 4806 51780
Proft for e year REREH - - = = - - - 44 4B 188 B
Bchange dffeencesaisng  BENEEEE
onfranslation - 4178 - - - - - - 4178 e 4601
Tota comprehensieincome. AEE2ENAER
forthe year - 4178 - - - - - 41452 45,630 2411 48041
S option foreted RRESRN - - - - - (19 - 19 - - s
Share opton apsed BREXT B - - - = B00) - 3001 - - =
Share of esemes of an associate B AT 7 Bfe _ - . - = = 0 - 0 - 10
Dhicend paid tononcontroling 2 3ERRE AR S
intprests - - - - - - - - - 623 629
Diidend pic o owners AFRARzRS
ofthe Company - - - - - - - 4649 (4649 - [
Transfer fom acoumulated profts £ 8 217 3 -1 - - = = (1,789 - - =
At 31 December 2017 H=g-tf
+ZR=t-H 208,149 1326 3903 8,503 1,361 i (4.364) 20838 514199 46304 620593
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #z8 RS E R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 = F—+F+=HA=+—HIFFE

Note:

In 2009, at the time of the acquisition of additional 20% equity interests of
Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co., Ltd. and Ningbo Pacific Container Co., Ltd.,
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of these subsidiaries
continued to be carried at their book values in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The excess of the fair value and the book value of the
net assets attributable to the additional interests acquired, amounted to
US$3,193,000, had been recognised as other reserve in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
(other than Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) applicable to the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, these entities have to provide for the PRC statutory reserves
before declaring dividends to their shareholders as approved by the board
of directors. The reserves, which include general reserve and development
reserve, are not distributable until the end of the operation periods of the
respective entities, at which time any remaining balance of the reserves
can be distributed to shareholders upon liquidation of the subsidiaries. The
general reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses of the entities.
The general reserve and development reserve can be used to increase
capital upon approval from the PRC’s relevant authority. The distributable
profits of the subsidiaries are determined based on their accumulated profits
calculated in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and reguilations.

ER

RZFEANF  BRBBENAFEEERRARERELF
E1EARLAI20%2 BB Em b » ZZNE 2 7] 2 7] # 5 &
E - BERIABEEERG S BN IXAIREEALR -
WHERE I i FREZ N A BEKIREEH = F3,193,000
ETRGEER D ZB XA EMEEFER -

REFARTEBRRPEARAFE ([HE])(FE - A
PIRBGEBIN) Z BB 2 A2 BI1E R %D - sl 5 2 FIEAE
EFeMERZEREF T EIERA B EEFE - wETF
BE—MREBRERFEHEEZZFL A2 EEFHERE
YT B o X SHE R BGRB8 T 2 (4~ AR
RERE - —RMREBTAEHRZERAZBEAERE - —
AR 1 15 R 3R 1 175 1 AT B 75 B 1 B L )8 12 FT A (RS AR
A o BB 2 A2 AR B R B TR 17 A B & AT T A R E
B Z a1 u 75t H i iEE o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GReReRERK

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 = F—+F+ A =+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E—RF
Notes US$’000 US$’000
it FEx FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES EETE
Profit (loss) before taxation BB AR A (B518) 58,392 (58,349)
Adjustments for: FHEE
Depreciation e 30,491 31,993
Gain on disposal of property, HEWZE ERK
plant and equipment Byl (776) (409)
Loss on property, plant and LEHYIE MRk
equipment written off R BE 572 287
Share of results of associates FribE & AR 2 B8 1,745 1,201
Share of results of joint ventures FihaBhHE 2w (398) (410)
Amortisation of prepaid lease TE A & R IR 8
payments 1,937 1,748
Investment income BEWA (2,765) (2,764)
Interest expense FMEZH 11,699 9,257
Change in fair value of derivative TEEmITAY
financial instruments AREEEH (756) (376)
Adjustment on goodwill in an . /NEC] g
associate EE R - 5,465
Impairment of goodwil R RE - 2,657
Operating cash flows before EEESEHAZ
movements in working capital EBEBHERE 100,141 (9,696)
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEEEm (120,798) 24,529
Increase in trade receivables JFE U BR BRI (103,707) (61,183
Increase in prepayments and TR Bo LAt FE U SR IE 3 A0
other receivables (45,626) (42,3393)
Increase in amount due from JEW B B IR A R RIE
immediate holding company 10 (262) (233)
Increase in amounts due from A ES N ENG
fellow subsidiaries FIAE NN (41,938) (24,178)
Increase in trade payables JE < BR K38 0N 124,602 45,899
Increase in bills payable NS Pl 131,132 57,946
Increase (decrease) in accruals FEstE R R EMENMERR
and other payables =0 Cri ) 34,102 (26,041)
Cash from (used in) operations & X715 (Fi) R& 77,646 (35,290)
Interest paid BARFE (11,577) (9,232)
Income tax paid BERARFTED (12,529) (4,594)
Net cash from (used in) EEEETE (FTHE)
operating activities ReFE 53,540 (49,116)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z& R &R EHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 # %=

—E—+FLA=1—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
Notes US$’ 000 US$’000
it FEx F=ET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BETE
Purchase of property, plant and BEE WSS RRE

equipment (53,674) (19,337)
Payment of prepaid lease payments  £51 ¥8 /< & 208 (21,705) (738)
Deposits paid for non-current assets 2 IERBIEEIR S (10,571) (7,781)
Capital reduction of an associate R — B E R R E AR 18 - 257
Additional capital injection in —HERNEIEINEE

an associate 18 - (6,144)
Acquisition of an associate g /N (1,961) -
Proceeds on disposal of property, — HEWE - MERXRENSE

plant and equipment 1,136 875
Dividends received from associates &, Hﬁz i /NET PN

and joint ventures BERE 1,623 1,353
Dividend received from unlisted [=! Hﬂl #J: miEm Iz &R E

equity investment 950 =
Interest received 2 F B 1,105 2,052
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B KB A R = 41 - 2,693
Advances to associates” il NI E =L (2,717) (4,991)
Repayment from (advance to) WEl (g F) & ELEHRE

joint ventures* 2 3)
Net cash used in investing RETEERSFHE

activities (85,812) (31,764)

BREEEERRAR « —T—

TFFIHR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows S8 EHE&HREBHR K
For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 —F—+F+_-A=+—HIFF

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
Notes US$’000 US$’000
it FER F=T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
New bank loans |ITHENK 389,716 146,579
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (327,496) (96,039)
Dividends paid to non-controling EH?H IR AR R A 2
interests A 8 (823) 876)
Dividends paid to owners of XA RBRERE
the Company (4,648) =
Advance from immediate holding BEABZIZER AR FIE
company 144 319
Repayment to immediate holding EE BT AR FIE
company (129) (335)
Advances from associates EPN VNI EA 972 1,097
Repayments to associates BEBENRK (1,253) (863)
Advances from joint ventures & )\/\ § 3 ,MIE' 184 247
Repayments to joint ventures BEABLERE (190) (278)
Cash settlement received from U ER DT E CRTAERSHEE
derivative financial instruments 98 =
Consideration paid for acquisition of &+ —H B N al#Ez 2
additional interest in a subsidiary % A & A - (3,880)
Net cash from financing activities B&E EEIFISREFE 56,575 45,971
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) RekERBAEZ
IN CASH AND CASH B CRd)
EQUIVALENTS 24,303 (34,909)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RA—HB—HBZHEHEK
AT 1 JANUARY %’ EEkA 209,009 242,726
Effect of foreign exchange rate REGEE) 7 E
changes 1,462 1,192
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=BA=+—Hz2
AT 31 DECEMBER RekERESE 234,774 209,009
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BE&KERER€ER :
REPRESENTED BY:
Bank balances and cash IRITHBRKRE® 234,774 209,009
# The increases in amounts due from associates and amounts due ~ * BE—F-—NF+_A=1T—HAUFRZELRHE

from joint ventures for the year ended 31 December 2016 have
been reclassified from net cash used in operating activities to net
cash used in investing activities to conform to the current year

presentation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL

The Company is a listed public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchangge”). Its ultimate holding company is PIL
Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“PIL Holdings”) and its immediate
holding company is Pacific International Lines (Private)
Limited (“PIL"). Both companies are incorporated
in the Republic of Singapore. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section of corporate
information of the annual report. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses
of manufacturing of containers and other related
products and providing logistics services.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time in
the current year.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Inttiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

PR IE SRR MY AL

—RER

AARR—EREBRIIE ETZE
PRATF  EROHDEBABHERSMER
ARN([ABRZAT]) £ o HEKRIERAR]
REZER QRS R APIL Holdings Pte.
Ltd. ([PIL Holdings]) & XFABEBRA
A (TR - MRQ T R/RFTM
WHMBNKY 2 AF] o NARFEMHE
B R EE E BN AFRATE
Bl —EiP R - NRE MISHRRIUE
BB ([£c)) BRBAL - WIIAREZ
NREEHE o

AEETERESLEREM R EMAR
E fn MR R RAE 7 -

BRI KRBT 2 B RYE
JJ%;E’EE'J (TERMBREE
Bl

AEERAEFECBERERATHES
SETE AR < BETHNEBHBR

=
28 o

BEGERETRNET  ZIMEF
BRGERENIE]  HERERERET
ETFRREE
BB REERE125 HOHEZ2016%E 7
il BHEAuBHE
R EENEY

—#5

BRMEBEEXFRAE « —T—LFFRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrIE SRR MY AE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure
Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments require
an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets
if cash flows from those financial assets were, or
future cash flows will be, included in cash flows from
financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed: () changes from financing cash flows;
(i) changes arising from obtaining or losing control
of subsidiaries or other businesses; (i) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of these items is provided in note 44.
Consistent with the transition provisions of the
amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart from
the additional disclosure in note 44, the application of
these amendments has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

The application of the other amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s performance and financial positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B17§ 3Rk &R ki

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continuead)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC)-It 22
HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the Related Amendments’

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle’

Transfer of Investment Property’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021.

R RBIET 2 BB
EEA((EBMBEHREE
All) @

© 78 1l R A 382 3 Il 7T R AR
BTN BB IR EER
7R 6% B30 SRR A ERAR DA T 2 28R HE i R

M BT AR IS TR B B S s
g -

BRMBRGERFR 2RTA
BEMBRERAF15HR KEEFEHHN
REEET

BB REEF 163 HE?

BRHBRERAFITR . g=

B ARV RERRBRES) JERSRENRE
—REF25

B (ARMBRELRRES) fFHEEL

— REF, TEEM
BEHHREERS UK BERI
RERT RBZHHRAE
BEABREEAFAR BEENBHSER
KIERT FATRE AR
ERNEENBH
FEAEOF LT
A1
BRMBRGERFR ABRERENREN

KIER] b

ERMBRLEANRIORR  REEREFELA
BRI ENEBRNET]  ARELFANE
EHEFRN
BRI RARBRNET  RPELAKLEL
RIRAER
BRI EAEBRNEE  HOMFZI65H
BB HRE
BRI FRXES
-
BEGEARORNET  BRKEYF

! R-ZFE-NF—HA—AXEEHIEZFE

HEER -

g RZF—NF—FA—AREERHIEZFE
HEER -

8 RAGEEZ AR B 1% File 2 FEREELR -

i RZFE-Z—F—F—HARAREHEZ FE
HEER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to
the Group are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”). All other financial assets are
measured at their fair values at subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS
9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2 BMEFREEITZEEBYB
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL BEEA((BEBNBREE
REPORTING STANDARDS All) @

(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ERMBREENESE [T

(Continued) A |#)

. In relation to the impairment of financial assets, . NEMEENREMS @ BB
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss SRR FEIRIZEELEEEIER
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss KEXFTEHER - BEUEHRE
model under HKAS 39. The expected credit R FOF AT IRTBHEEIRL
loss model requires an entity to account for RAFHE - FHEEBRAENR
expected credit losses and changes in those TEBNREHREAKERERE
expected credit losses at each reporting date KRZEEHREEBRANEFHA
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial iR - MRMUYEERRE B 75 HR
recognition. In other words, it is no longer ARV &) - 5 2 - HABRF
necessary for a credit event to have occurred BEFEEHTRRAEEERLK -

before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk BREBRN-_E—+F+-_A=+—81

management policies as at 31 December 2017, the WeRtTARRBRERBE  RAARE

directors of the Company anticipate the following EIEF VIR ERB B R E LR ZFE

potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9: RETINEERE

Classification and measurement PERE

. Equity securities classified as available-for-sale o [MIFE20RTHR B IR AR REA
investments carried at cost less impairment as RSB AEITHEE ZRENR
disclosed in note 20: these securities qualified KEH  BREEBHBEHRELER
for designation as measured at FVTOCI under FOW - A FE N a AlBREA
HKFRS 9 and the Group wil measure these PHRGEAABEFEZEE
securities at fair value at the end of subsequent B BARAEEEZEEFESFNE
reporting periods with fair value gains or losses BREHARRAANEETE &
to be recognised as other comprehensive NABEZREHEEEREM
income and accumulated in the revaluation Z2EHKEERY RN EGER
reserve, such investments are not subject to #H ZEREILTZHRRAE -
impairment. Upon initial recognition of HKFRS 156 FE A BB k& 2RI
9, the fair value gain represented by difference OSREF - DA EEMNES AR
between cost less impairment and fair value BEEAREBENZEER-F
would be adjusted to revaluation reserve as at 1 —N\E—H—BAREZEHER
January 2018. 1 o

. Except for financial assets which are subject s REABENBREERFESRE
to expected credit loss upon application of TEHEEEBEZSREEN T
HKFRS 9, all other financial assets and financial FHEMEREEN TR BESHE
liabilities will continue to be measured on the BB R BT ERIE395% 2
same bases as are currently measured under MEREEE -
HKAS 39.

BRMEBEEXFRAE « —T—LFFRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R &Kzt

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the expected credit loss model
of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of credit
losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the
Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
costs and other items that subject to the impairment
provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the
Company, if the expected credit loss model were to
be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount
of impairment loss to be recognised by Group as at
1 January 2018 would be increased as compared to
the accumulated amount recognised under HKAS 39
mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision
on trade receivables. Such further impairment
recognised under expected credit loss model would
reduce the opening retained profits and increase the
deferred tax assets at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 %% 3R & i 5t

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continuead)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.

Currently under HKAS 18, the Group recognises
revenue from manufacturing operations when
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have been transferred to the customer, or
acceptance notes being acknowledged by customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue on sales of containers
will be recognised when customers obtain control
over the relevant goods. In addition, HKFRS 15
required incremental cost of obtaining a contract to
be recognised as an asset if the Group expects to
recover these costs. The directors of the Company
are still in the process of assessing the full impact
of the application of HKFRS 15, including the timing
of revenue recognition, on the consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS
16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing
cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use
while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will
be allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flows and
operating cash flows respectively by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the
Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may
result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents
right-of-use assets separately or within the same line
item at which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or
a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

RAEHERBIT 2EBME
EI%%:Z?EE'J ((BEBMEREE
i) &)

BRMBREEANS16HE]

45 )

y
(A5 )

ERREENSIZKAE - MERTY
B (BT HIISMERERSIN BRETITE

B EMELRAE HERENSR
WINZBE XM 2 HENFRENE

F(ERERE) HEETNEEMmIELT
E-pRERESBME - AEERE
AR AEE T A EAANEER
2 ARERTRE  MEMZEEL
NRAZIREERTRE - ERAE
ARG mEERE 16 ARAEERE
ZHENF KD ARSI ESFD AL
DRIZNRAREZBERSTRE MK

AN DA E
%ﬁﬂi/ﬁi °

RIFFBSAERETH  AEEEH
REE AR ANHEE TR ENE
B - [ERBEBU IS LR E165%
R FAREE BN G BER S
2z HEEEEENR—RERZS
EREEEMAEEBRETEEZIN R

HAMRASHEEAR  BEMERE
R B HER BT LERIE17
2 PHEASHERERTE  WEEEK
HHEABHEESBEALERNIBMER

1=
=

o

BN - BEMBHRE L F16HRERKE
[Eop 8

121



122

Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
US$3,367,000 as disclosed in note 46. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all
these leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of US$294,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies.
Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating
to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly,
the carrying amounts of such deposits may be
adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits received would be considered as
advance lease payments and included in the initial
measurement of right-of-use assets.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may
result changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of other new amendments to
HKFRSs will have significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instrument, which is measured at
fair value, as explained in the principal accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuead)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

(a)

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(a)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when
the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date
the Group gain control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(a)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted,
and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(a)

(b)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continueq)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (j) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuead)

(b) Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and
assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)

(b)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the
sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as
at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilites assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at
fair value. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value.

Investments in associates and
joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(c)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates and joint ventures are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate
or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or a joint venture exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)

(c)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint
venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or
a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate or a joint
venture. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(c)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in the investee
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset
within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing
the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate or
joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint
venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)

(c)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity
method when an investment in an associate
becomes an investment in a joint venture or
an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if
that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an
associate or a joint venture of the Group, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 353 &R Mis:

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-genarating units (“CGUSs”) (or group of
CGUs that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUSs) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than
the carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill and then to the other assets on
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal or any of the CGU within group of
CGUs in which the Group monitors goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) and
buildings and site improvements held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes other than
construction in progress and freehold land, are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Depreciation is recognised so
as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in
progress and freehold land less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Estimated
useful life
Leasehold land and buildings and
site improvements
outside Hong Kong
- on medium term lease 20 1o 50 years

Buildings and site improvements
in Hong Kong

—on short lease
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fittings and

office equipment
Motor vehicles

110 10 years
5to 15 years

5to 10 years
5to 10 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Construction in progress is included in
property, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production, supply, or
administrative purposes. The amortisation
of prepaid lease payments provided during
the construction period is included as part
of costs of building under construction.
Costs also include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction in progress are carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)

(f)

Impairment on tangible and
intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuead)

(f)

Impairment on tangible and
intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then
to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata
to the other assets of the unit. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(9)

(h)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost, comprises direct
materials, and where applicable, direct labour,
and those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Costs of inventories are determined using
weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated cost of completion
and costs necessary to make the sales.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

@

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into one
of the two categories, including loans
and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised
on trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an
effective interest basis.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

3

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

@

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are
non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables, amounts
due from immediate holding company,
fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments. The Group designated
the unquoted equity investments as
available-for-sale financial assets.

For available-for-sale equity investments
that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EESHBEXR®
POLICIES (continuead)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued) h £®MIE#E)
() Financial assets (Continued) i) =SsWEEE)

Impairment on financial assets EREERE
Financial assets are assessed for FrEemEERTEEER
indicators of impairment at the end of HEHRFHRERR - &
each reporting period. Financial assets EREBEBEER —[Ez%
are considered to be impaired where ERVIIEFTEREETES
there is objective evidence that, as BMEELNEY e/
a result of one or more events that BEZMFARKRERE
occurred after the initial recognition of XIUFE cMEERE
the financial asset, the estimated future RAEERE -

cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, AHENENBEHRREZ

a significant or prolonged decline in the AR BEEEENFEMK

fair value of the security below its cost is REKRAE  EBESEAE

considered to be objective evidence of HIRREZEBEE

impairment.

For financial assets, objective evidence HReREE  BEZLE

of impairment could include: BiERAl e 21

. significant financial difficulty of the . BITEIEILE
issuer or counterparty; BRE TSN EE

. breach of contract, such as . EX) - R
default or delinquency in interest X MAB AR

or principal payments;

. it becoming probable that the . BERARBRIEE
borrower will enter bankruptcy or SR ESIMEESR
financial re-organisation; or 519

. the disappearance of an active . B 75 N 2 h < 7%
market for that financial asset TREERERE
because of financial difficulties. WGt 2 M5 ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

@

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment on financial assets
(Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past
the credit period of 30 to 120 days,
observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost,
the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

@

Financial assets (Continuead)

Impairment on financial assets
(Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial
asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at
amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 353 &R Mis:

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including bank
borrowings, trade payables, other
payables, bills payable, amounts due to
immediate holding company, associates
and joint venture are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

Financial liability at fair value through

profit or loss

A financial liability is classified as held for

trading if:

- it has been incurred principally for
the purpose of repurchasing in

the near term;

- on initial recognition it is a
part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the
Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not
designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

Financial asset/liability at fair value
through profit or loss include
held-for-trading derivative financial
instrument that is not designated and
effective as hedging instrument. At the
end of each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, financial asset/
liability at fair value through profit or loss
is measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the

period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of
the recognition in profit or loss depends
on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial
asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial
liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligation are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuead)

(i)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for goods sold
or services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from manufacturing and
logistics operations

Revenue from manufacturing operations
is recognised either at the time when the
containers are delivered and title has passed
to customers or acceptance notes being
acknowledged by customers; depending on
the terms of the underlying sales contracts and
all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;
o it is probable that the economic benefits

associated with the transaction will flow
to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred
in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(i)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from manufacturing and
logistics operations (Continued)

Revenue from logistics services operations is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Deposits and instalments received from
customers prior to meeting the above criteria
for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
under current liabilities.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the rights to receive payment
has been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Compensation from insurance claim

Compensation from insurance claim is
recognised when the Group has unconditional
right to receive the compensation, which is
evidenced by loss adjuster report issued by
insurance companies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 353 &R Mis:

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

Leasehold land for own use

When the Group makes payments for a
property interest which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is
clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire property is accounted
as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element at
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)

@)

(k)

Leasing (Continuea)
Leasehold land for own use (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the leasehold land and building
elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under
finance lease.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
“profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 353 &R Mis:

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueq)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in
associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised to
profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business
combination.

3

k)

& I (0

BIE (&)
EEFRIE (&)

EXERBEELRECBERNS
HEHRBERS  RERDZ
W8 7% FEER T M I K 2 SRk (B
ZERHMBMEE

BEHBEAENAGEREBHER
BEABNE ﬁﬁ?%%@%m
RETE  ERBREHRAEH
EXERHERTE @wa%ﬁo

BREMARENEENGERBR

TAREEEHRNERS R
SEEEEMBENREENS
THER o

REERIBELED IR
ZK@V&LL%RIEEE 5 A T
R BTT/%/F& Eﬁ;ﬁﬁiﬁj‘&

‘?YE&E%\ EPEEM,\E/]IE
B EERELT  AFEERE
ERBABAEEMPE PGS RE
BEESBRETHER - MEXS
BHZNEREMEERFER
RIELTRIA A BB ERE
SEXRBAHZAER -

BRMEBEEXFRAE « —T—LFFRH

153



154

Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

()

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each
group entity are presented in the currency
of the primary economic environment in
which the group entity operates (its functional
currency). For the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements, the financial performance
and position of each entity are expressed in
US$, which is the functional currency of the
Company, and the presentation currency for
the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (“foreign currencies”) are
recorded in the respective functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at
the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates
of transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

()

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s foreign operations including
comparatives are expressed in US$ using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at monthly average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuated significantly during that year, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of the exchange
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

()

(m)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or
loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences
is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisitions of a foreign operation on or after
1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Retirement benefit costs

In respect of the subsidiaries in the PRC,
the Group contributes to a state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. Contribution payable by
the Group to the schemes is charged to the
profit or loss when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(m) Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

(n)

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group
contributed to defined contribution retirement
schemes which were available to certain
employees of Hong Kong. The assets of these
schemes are held separately and managed
by independent trustees. The amount of the
Group’s contributions, net of any contributions
forfeited in respect of those employees who
leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, is charged to the profit or loss
as incurred when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group
operates and contributes to Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF”) schemes which are
available to all employees of Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control
of trustees. Contribution payable by the Group
to the MPF scheme is charged to the profit or
loss when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term
employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing
to employees (such as wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuead)

(n)

(o)

Short-term and other long-term
employee benefits (Continuea)

Liabilities recognised in respect of other
long-term employee benefits are measured at
the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group
in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from
service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueq)

(p)

(a)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined at
the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting condition is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to ultimately vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates during the vesting period, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss, such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share option reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continueqd)

(a)

(r)

Share-based payments (Continuea)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees
(Continued)

When the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share capital.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated profits.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups
are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the asset (or disposal group)
is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual
and customary for sales of such asset (or
disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continueqd)

Recoverability of trade balances with
customers

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had an
aggregate carrying amount of trade balances with
customers amounting to US$410,535,000 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of RMB4,241,000
(equivalent to approximately US$649,000)) (2016:
US$264,628,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of RMB4,241,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$611,000)), comprising trade receivables, amount
due from immediate holding company and amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries, with details set out in
notes 24, 26 and 27 respectively.

The Group provides allowance for doubtful debts
based on assessment of the recoverability of trade
balances. Allowances are applied to trade balances
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that any balances may not be recoverable. The
identification of doubtful debts requires the use of
management judgments and estimates. Where the
expectation on the recoverability of trade balances is
different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of trade balances. The
recoverability of trade balances with customers is
determined by considering the credit worthiness of
each customer including the aging analysis, default
or delay in payments, settlement records, and
settlements subsequent to the end of the reporting
period. There was no additional allowance for doubtful
debts required at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated, which is the
higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of
disposal. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount
of goodwill was US$3,589,000 (2016: US$3,589,000),
net of accumulated impairment of US$4,283,000
(2016: US$4,283,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in note 17.

REVENUE

Revenue represents sales of goods from
manufacturing and services income from logistics
services operations, less sales related taxes, and is
analysed as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker (i.e. Chief Executive Officer) for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance are organised into two
operating divisions — manufacturing and logistics
services. These divisions are the basis on which the
Group reports its segment information under HKFRS
8.

No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision maker have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
Principal activities are as follows:

Manufacturing - manufacturing of marine dry freight
containers, refrigerated containers,
collapsible flatrack containers, tank
containers, US domestic containers,
offshore containers, other specialised
containers and container parts.

Logistics services - provision of container storage, repair and
trucking services, serving as a freight
station, container/cargo handling and
other container related services.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continueq) TERER (&)
Information regarding these segments is presented ZEDEEHZ2HAT ¢
below:
Segment revenue and results DEEEREREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue REBKERMED B EEERE
and results by operating and reportable segment: BommT :
2017 —T_
Logistics
Manufacturing services Sub-total  Eliminations Total
REEH YR R Nt B ot
US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000
F£n T£n FEn T£n %7
REVENUE BEE
External sales HONVEE 1,443,177 33,493 1,476,670 - 1,476,670
Inter-segment sales NEEHE - 6,301 6,801 (6,801) -
Total B 1,443,177 40,294 1,483,471 (6,801) 1,476,670
Inter-segment sales are charged A ERRIHEEIR T
at prevaiing market prices. BRITTSERET «
SEGMENT RESULTS PREE 64,974 5,678 70,652 - 70,652
Finance costs BER (14,434)
Investment income RERA 2,765
Change in fair value of derivative T2 BT A Y
financial instruments D BEEE 756
Share of results of associates EEBERA ER (1,749)
Share of results of joint ventures ~ FESA B 7 &7 398
Proft before taxation BB AT & A 58,392
BHEHECERRAR o L FFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION contives) 6 D EBER ()
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEEXEEEREE (B
2016 —E-RF
Logistics
Manufacturing Services Sub-total  Eliminations Total
B MR R Nt i ek
US$:000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$000
FET T TET T TET
REVENUE EXE
External sales HHNEE 880,604 35,779 916,433 - 916,433
Inter-segment sales DEREEE - 5,881 5,381 (5,881) -
Total At 880,654 41,660 922,314 (5,881) 916,433
Inter-segment sales are charged A PRBE BT
at prevaling market prices. BRATHERET -
SEGMENT RESULTS PUEE (60,545) 907 (49,638) - (49,638)
Finance costs BHEHR (11,060)
Investment income BEBRA 2,764
Change in fair value of derivative 474 2B T AZ
financial instruments INNEE) 376
Share of results of associates EEBELR EBR (1,201)
Share of results of joint ventures ~ JEEA BN 2 5 410
Loss before taxation KAl e (68,349)

Segment results represent the profit (loss) earned by
each segment without allocation of finance costs,
investment income, change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments, share of results of associates
and share of results of joint ventures. This is the
measure reported to the Group’s Chief Executive
Officer for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continvec) 6 D EER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s total REBEKERAIMEDTHBEERE
assets and total liabilities by operating and reportable BEIWTHT :
segment:
2017 e
Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
BUEEK W7 AR % e
Us$'000 US$°000 US$°000
FTER TER FER
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 1,155,124 55,691 1,210,815
Interests in associates NI 43,308
Interests in joint ventures REBERE R 21,789
Unallocated corporate assets APEARIEE 358,543
Consolidated total assets mEBERT 1,634,455
LIABILITIES 8
Segment liabilties DEER 552,736 18,392 571,128
Unallocated corporate liabilties APEARIEE 442,734
Consolidated total liabilties maaEen 1,013,862
OTHER INFORMATION Hitv&H
Amounts included in the measure ARG ED BRI
of segment profit or loss or BIEIDLEER
segment assets: RHEBE:
Additions of capital expenditure A AR 92,351 510 92,861
Depreciation and amortisation (Note) 78 N 58 (475E) 28,868 3,560 32,428
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  #E R
plant and equipment B =Py 627 149 776
Loss on property, plant and HTEME  BER
equipment written off Bl ! (571) (1) (572)
BRHEBECEGRAG « —FT—+FFH
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) DEER @)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEEREBE®E)
2016 ==N
Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
RUEET Mm% 1ms
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn FET FTEr
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEHEE 815,603 61,003 876,696
Interests in associates REE A7) 2 e 41,931
Interests in joint ventures REBEZER 20,833
Unallocated corporate assets RAPOBAREBE 286,167
Consolidated total assets GEEELR 1,225,627
LIABILITIES =X |
Segment liabilties NEEE 254,936 14,836 269,772
Unallocated corporate liabilties APEARIERE 378,035
Consolidated total liabiliies HEBGEESE 647,807
OTHER INFORMATION HitbER
Amounts included in the measure BRErEH Eaflsk
of segment profit or loss or BRI HEEN
segment assets: SEBHE:
Additions of capital expenditure MEEARFEY 28,418 2,052 30,470
Depreciation and amortisation (Note) ~ #7& KBk §8 (4752) 30,190 3,551 33,741
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEYE  #E K
plant and equipment iR (B18) 408 @) 405
Loss on property, plant and IETIE - B R
equipment written off RE BB (49) (238) (287)
Note: Wit
Certain amounts were capitalised in inventories during the years BE-—F—+tFR-_F—ANFFt-_A=F—HIF
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. B ET2HERFEELRE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continuea)

The amounts included in other information are part of
the operating and reportable segments.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

= all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than interests in associates, interests in
joint ventures and unallocated corporate assets,
which include available-for-sale investment,
derivative financial instruments, amount due
from immediate holding company, amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries, amounts due from
joint ventures, amounts due from associates,
tax recoverable and bank balance and cash.
Assets used jointly by reportable segments are
allocated on the basis of the revenue earned by
individual reportable segments; and

— all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than unallocated corporate liabilities,
which included amount due to immediate
holding company, amounts due to associates,
amount due to a joint venture, tax payable,
bank borrowings and deferred tax liabilities.
Liabilities for which reportable segments are
jointly liable are allocated in proportion to
segment assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuead) 6
Revenue from major products and

TEER (&)
FEEMRRBEZ2EXE

services
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue AEEFZERMEE 2 EEBO T
from its major products and services (after elimination T(BERESHEEE) :
of inter-segment sales):
2017 2016
=2—tF —T—RF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FETT
Manufacturing: BUERT
Dry freight containers i ] 1,234,394 584,341
Refrigerated containers RIREERE 38,593 84,156
Tank containers R 65,669 56,303
US domestic containers A fEEER 59,523 77,972
Other specialised containers and HmsES *M&
container parts SR 44,998 77,882
Logistics services i AR 7% 33,493 35,779
1,476,670 916,433
Geographical information EDEER

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group’s manufacturing division
is located in the PRC. Logistics services division is
located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue by geographical market based on the location
of customers, irrespective of the origin of the goods/

AEEEBDHNEBARTE - $‘§
Bz BLEXR RN E - MR R
BENPHE -

Ti‘%?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁi@ﬁﬁﬁ@iZi@EFﬁ%
P ERE  WREBERMLEEN
‘}ZHE%%TET UR -

Services:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FTERT FETT
United States of America (“USA”) EMERETE([ERH]) 758,225 320,676
Hong Kong B 357,389 155,859
Europe BOM 106,949 143,970
Singapore #rnig 52,448 112,526
PRC [ 93,006 81,650
Taiwan =Y 48,532 32,138
Others Hip 60,121 69,614
1,476,670 916,433
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information (Continueq)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
segment assets and non-current assets, other than
financial instruments, analysed by the geographical
area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount of
segment assets

2EER )
WEH WER )

N EiziE (BEME) Do B E
ENFRBEE (SR TR Z8RE
B

Carrying amount of
non-current assets other
than financial instruments

SR T AU
DEHEEZ EREBEEZ
REFE REFE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—EB—tF —TRFE ZEBE—tF —T—RF
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
FER FET FExR FET
PRC =a 1,182,697 849,186 521,308 459,042
Hong Kong BB 28,015 27,463 15,735 16,713
Others HAh, 103 47 31,724 30,648
1,210,815 876,696 568,767 506,403
Information about major customers FEEFE

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of
the total sales of the Group are mainly derived from
the manufacturing segment. In 2017, three customers
(2016: one customer) contributes over 10% of the total
sales, amounting to US$590,012,000 in aggregate
(2016: US$128,272,000).

HASEHERATERBBIONNEF
ERERBEEKEIB-R2FT—+t
FHEEREBBIOYNEFR A
ZR(ZE—RNF:—R) HER
#H $£590,012,000E ¢ (ZF — /R F -
128,272,000% 7T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 353 &R Mis:

OTHER INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2017, other income
included an amount of RMB12,252,500 (equivalent
to US$1,808,000) received from the insurance
claim and sales of damaged containers due to the
Xiamen typhoon incident happened in September
2016 and an amount of RMB8,547,000 (equivalent
to US$1,270,000) received from sales of damaged
containers due to the Tianjin explosion happened in
August 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, a
compensation received from insurance claim,
amounting to RMB25,650,000 (equivalent to
US$3,875,000) for the Tianjin explosion was included
in other income.

Habur A
HE-_ZT—tF+_A=+—AHLHF
B HMBWAFRBETRZZE—RF
NABEMEMBRSEHZRBRE
MZBERERBEERA  cEAARE
12,252,5007T (F8% #1,808,0003 7T) &
RZZE—RFNABENKEEBIEZS
BEBHEEWRA  £58 ARS8 547,000
7T (F 71,270,000 7T) ©

BHE-_ZTZ—XNE+-_A=+—8BIt#F
& HtRAFRBIET RERIEZRR
RERES ARE25,650,0007T (FHER
3,875,000 7T) °

FINANCE COSTS B%EE A
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx T
Interest on bank loans IRITERF A 11,699 9,257
Bank charges RITFEE 2,735 1,803
14,434 11,060

INVESTMENT INCOME BEWA
2017 2016
—®—tF —TxF
US$’000 US$'000
FRT FE7T
Interest earned on bank deposits RITHE A EUWA 1,105 2,052
Interest income from an associate — BN RBERF B A 710 712

Dividend income from Al E 2B KRB WA

available-for-sale investment 950 -
2,765 2,764
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PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 10

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

BB AR A (B51R)

2017 2016
—E-tF —ZZT—RF
USs$’000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
Profit (loss) before taxation has been k&% Ailia A1) (E518)
arrived at after charging (crediting) EHBR Gt A) T3IFIEA -
the following:
Auditor’s remuneration % ERRD B & 576 649
Staff costs, including directors’ BEKA  BEZEEWE
emoluments
— Salaries and other benefits — ¥re KHEHAREA] 152,724 124,005
— Retirement benefit costs — RIREFE R (FEE12)
(note 12) 4,801 5,044
157,525 129,049
Depreciation and amortisation IrE R
Depreciation of property, Y BB NRETE
plant and equipment 30,491 31,993
Amortisation of prepaid lease BiEHET b
payments in respect of T HEERR
leasehold land 1,937 1,748
32,428 33,741
Operating lease charges KEHEEA
- Land and buildings — T REF 4,760 5,316
— Plant and machinery — MR NERE 130 115
4,890 5,431
BRHEBECEGRAG « —FT—+FFH




Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

10 PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 10 BRBiADER (&E) @)
(Continued)
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZT—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FTEx FETT
Share of taxation charge of associates J&{f & /2 7] i 18 211 323
Share of taxation charge of joint BIEEETERIE
ventures 219 146
430 469
Cost of inventories recognised as RERHEXNAZTFE
expense 1,296,020 875,784
Gain on disposal of property, LEYE =K
plant and equipment A 2 0m T (776) (409)
Loss on property, plant and TSNS - HES
equipment written off Rz EE 572 287
Impairment of goodwil EESPA AL - 2,657
Adjustment of goodwill of an associate — B & A &) 7 52 & - 5,465
Compensation received from RKEBIEZRBRERES
insurance claim for Tianjin explosion - (3,875)
Provision for Tianjin explosion SHEREBIEZBE - 10,525
Provision for Xiamen typhoon SHREMIRE R 2 2 B
destruction - 1,941
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

11 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 11 EERDTEAREFHFMALZEA
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS &
The following was the emoluments paid or payable to UWTAREMNSENTA(ZZE—RF:
each of the 10 (2016: 10) directors of the Company. T EEZEEME -
2017 —E2—+tF
Non-executive
Executive Directors Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
#iTEs FUTES BUEHTES
Teo  Chan Teo  Chung Cheng Lau
Siong Kwok Tiou  PuiKing, Kuan Tan FuKwok,  HoKit, Ong  Yang,
Seng  Leung Seng Rebecca KimKin ChorKee  David lvan KaThai  Victor Total
FHE RER REB ERR BRE GREE OEE WA IR BEW L
(Note)
(i)
US$000 US$000 US$000 USH000 USH000 USH000  USS000  USS000  US$000  US$000  US$000
FEn  Fin TEr TEn TExr FEn FEn TER FEn FEn FEn
Fees g 56 2 2 2 46 2 k! 52 17 49 310
QOther emoluments: AthEi4
Salares and other HeREMERN
bengfts 437 334 - 27 - - - - - - 998
Controutions to RIVEHIE
retirement beneft
scheme 2 16 - 10 - - - - - - 48
Pofomancerdated  EERT(ERE
incentive payments g% 1,03 - - - - - - - - - 1,08
1,551 3 2 266 46 2 k! 52 17 49 2,452
2016 —E—RF
Teo Chen Teo  Chung Cheng Lau
Siong Kwok Tiou  PuiKing, Kuan Tan  FuKwok,  HoKt, Ong Yang,
Seng  Leung Seng  Rebecca  KmKin  Chorkee David han  KaTha Victor Total
FE  RER RPE  ERR  WRE KRE UBE TR IXR  HEH a5
USS000  USS000 USS000 USS000 USS000  USF000  USS000  USF000  USS000  USS000 - US$000
Tin TEr TEr FEn TEr TEr TEr TEr TR FEr TER
Fees we 50 26 26 26 Iy 26 ) 4 3 4 7
Other emoluments: EfhiNe
Salaries and other ZERAME
benefits 430 325 - 204 - - - - - - 959
Controutions to RIVEHIE
retirement beneft
scheme 22 15 - 9 - - - - - - 46
Pofomancerdlated  EERT(ERE
ncenfve payments 54 = = = = = = = = = = =
50 366 26 239 Iy 26 26 4 ) 4 1,352
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

11

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Note:

Mr. Ong Ka Thai retired from office at the 2017 annual general
meeting held on 22 June 2017 and did not offer himself for
re-election.

Mr. Teo Siong Seng is also the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive Officer.

The executive directors’ fees are for their services
as the directors of the Company and their other
emoluments shown above were for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The non-executive directors’
and independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

The above analysis includes 3 (2016: 3) directors
whose emoluments were among the five highest
paid individuals in the Group. Details of the aggregate
emoluments paid to the remaining 2 (2016: 2)
individuals whose emoluments were among the five
highest paid individuals in the Group and which have
not been included in directors’ emoluments above are
set out below:

11

%%&ﬁ%%%%ﬁ@ﬂkizw

Bt -

FREFAER=ZFE—LFNA=ZF ZHAHETH=F
—tFERFFHEXS LEL  WTEZEL -

SRINEIEAETI AR BB EITHARES » A
EREZHEE BRMIESEFITTRE
EFRENRG T -

HITES <M IERANRRIESREE
R E - H B EMME IR E
B AR B R 5 B == 755 40 R O AR 7S B
T o LMIFRITES RBIYIFNITES
ZE TIERA R R 2 ESE iR RS
BB o

o EREASEE Ad x5 b
ATHEFPZ=FH(ZF—RF: =8)
EE-FHAEKRRB (CE—RTF W
Z)BAEEERERSTMALZY
MARWIA LEEMEeRNZ AL - &
BFTHEFBOT

2017 2016

—®—tF T AF

US$’000 US$'000

FTEx FET

Salaries and other benefits Fe hEMmET 281 266
Retirement benefit costs RIRE R R 10 6
291 272

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017



11

12

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

11

%%&ﬁ%%%%%kizw

BEZBEETFIHE

2017 2016
—B—tF —FKF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A" AEL
US$128,360 — US$192,540 128,360 7T — 192,540% 7T
(Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”) 1,000,000 (1,000,000 T — 1,500,000
— HK$1,500,000) L) 2 2

No waiver of emoluments, compensation loss and
inducement to join or upon joining the Group was paid
to directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated
defined contribution retirement scheme for certain
employees in Hong Kong. These scheme are
registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held
separately and managed by independent trustees.
Under the rules of the scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at rates specified in the rules. Any amount
unvested upon an employee ceasing to be a member
shall be used to offset subsequent employer’'s
contributions.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has
joined MPF scheme for all employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee.

12

FR - ARBYEAESTHARZSH
AT EAME - ESIMBESR I
A 7N [ 55 ) BR D Sl (F R RE B A A 1B -

3R R 48 R K

R_ZETZF+_HA—HA XEEE
RETEEREERILATEHFRKE
8 o iE a8 )08 IR RN SR DI
if - ZEF B ZEETD DRI BB
REABENERE - RIFFTEIZHAA - &
EREREBSARMANERE Z LR AT
ZIHK - MEE THERNAEE - Bl
HORBEETS 2 AR VRN S P DA SR 3
BiREEX 2HR-

R-TETE+—A— A ALED
BEEBEER T RERRESHE -
T8I TD AR BN AT S T BIED) -
MR AR B RREMR - it
B2 AR EARENEED B S
STRFEARA -

BRMEBEEXFRAE « —T—LFFRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 353 &R Mis:

12 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

(Continued)

Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions
to the MPF scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government in the PRC.
Subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of relevant payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes. Obligations under the scheme are borne by
the PRC Government.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the profit or
loss representing contributions payable by the Group
to the MPF Scheme operated in Hong Kong and the
retirement benefit schemes in the PRC amounted to
US$4,801,000 (2016: US$5,044,000).

No forfeited contributions of the Group’s defined
contribution retirement schemes was used to
reduce the current year’s contributions. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited
contributions, which arose from the employees leaving
the retirement schemes and which are available to
reduce the contribution payable by the Group in the
future years.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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B ARIER 3K )

RiIEBEETEI R EEREEER
BRRBARIE Z L R AT EI#E5K - A
KEFRESF & 2R EARIEZ
FTEIHER - W EBORLUL R AT FORE R
REBEF 2 AR

T B 2 f B ] §0 & B T3 Bl AT AT
B2 RRRKETEIKE - B ARIA
REEHTET MRS -
BErE 2 EEAZ I HTERFEE -

BIERAMAKRZBRIREFNHEROAEE
N TZEEBERIL 2 BERAE
ARAEFRBEZEREEZHR &K
4,801,000 7T (ZF — 734 : 5,044,000
VI

FEARSRE 2 5 R INET 815 I 4K
U Z AR E BAERE AN E 2 5K
B NBEPR - AREWRBERAEE
BEFIRINGT S - MBEEARAUBR AL
KB ORISR
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 FEHEMRX
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the BANGB I iRZMEFE NG ER
estimated assessable profit for both years. Fm A Z16.5%1 & -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated on A B 1 ZEET1S T T A A R B RR B R
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates FIEAR SR BN R &R 2 BRITH =R
of taxation prevailing in the PRC in which the Group & -
operates.
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Current tax: REZRIEA -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH
— Current year — KFE - 3
— Prior years overprovision — BIFE LA 2 ©
() @)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ATIS T
— Current year — KNEE 13,708 4,293
— Prior years (over) under provision — BIFE (&) Vs (27) 58
13,681 4,351
Deferred tax (note 40): SEIEFSIA (M EE40) -
Current year charge (credit) REFZH (ER) 1,273 (778)
Income tax expense for the year AEEMSHRIERY 14,952 3,571

In accordance with the tax concession applicable
to public infrastructure project, a subsidiary of the
Company are entitled to the exemption from the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the first three years
commencing from the first income generating year of
operations since 2013, and thereafter to a 50% relief
from the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the following
three years since 2016. As a result, a subsidiary
of the Company enjoyed a 50% tax relief from the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year ended 31
December 2017.

BIEEARARERLEIER < HBE
B ARR—WEBARBRNAELES
EWAFERG BT —=Fy
—FRZRETRCEMSEH  B=F
—NFRHEEB=FA ZHBEPEMEH
AozhAtER - At - XAR KB
RARZE—tF+_A=+—HLF
BZHBETEMSHESES 2R TR
%o

BREECERRAR « —T—tFFR

179



Notes to the Financial Statements 81 353 &R Mis:

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 13 FEHEREXZ @)
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FETT
Profit (loss) before taxation BRELBDER (E518) 58,392 (58,349

Tax at the domestic tax rate of 25% LA A i =& 7%25%

(2016: 25%) (2016 : 25%) 5t & 14,598 (14,587)
Tax effect of share of results of i N

associates LIRS 436 300
Tax effect of share of results of BEEENEZEF

joint ventures LB E (99) (102)

Tax effect of expenses that are not Tt EERTR T

deductible in determining taxable TEER 2 H

profit ZIRIFRE 5,367 14,074
Tax effect of income that are not TEAT & FE R 5 A1 B HH 78

taxable in determining taxable profit % 2 Ug A > T 75 82 & (6,018) (3,351)

Tax effect on tax losses arising inthe  AZANFE R VEMERZ
current year not recognised MGEB g2 4,802 7,358

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRAIFEEREER L

previously not recognised MIGEBE 2 REE (6,246) (12)
(Over) under provision in prior years ~ BI4F[E (%) D i3 & (29) 53
Income tax on concessionary rate SR EBRHRE (15) (204)
Withholding tax on undistributed profits 7k 2 it 7138 2 A< 04 &5 18 1,261 (708)

Tax effect of deductible temporary RETER < A INE R

difference not recognised =R IMERE 663 158
Others HApth 232 592
Tax charge and effective rate RNEEFHESLHRA KRR

for the year 14,952 3,571
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14 DIVIDENDS 14 KRE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx Tt

Dividends recognised as RERBERESE DIKRE

distributions during the year:
Interim in respect of current REZZHHRKRE — B

financial year, paid — HK1.5 cents FEBR1.581L

(2016: Nil) per ordinary share ZE—RF  E) 4,648 -
No final dividend in respect of previous financial years F N EF A E I FEE R REA S -
was paid during the year.
The final dividend of HK2.5 cents in respect of the year EFeEgs k2T —+F+—-8
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil) per ordinary =t+—BHILEFESETRARKRSEN(ZE
share, total of which equivalent to approximately — NG ) ZREIRRE - A HMEERY
HK$60,423,000 (equivalent to approximately 60,423,000/ 7T (16 & 1 497,746,0003
US$7,746,000) (2016: Nil) has been proposed by the TE(ZZE—RF - &) - BAKRRIER]
board of directors and is subject to approval by the BERTZIREREFEARE BB -

shareholders in forthcoming annual general meeting.

BREECERRAR « —T—tFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 353 &R Mis:

15 EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 15 SRER (BE)

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

AR R RAE SIRER (55
1) oI OA TR

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FETT
Earnings (loss): BT (EE) -
Eamings (loss) for the purposes of HEUGTEER NS
calculating basic and diluted BRER (BB 2
earnings (loss) per share 2F (E18) 41,452 (59,434)
Number of shares: RinEE :
Weighted average number of FEUFTEEREGRET
ordinary shares for the purpose (BB 2 LBk
of calculating basic earnings nEFHEHE

(loss) per share

2,416,919,918 2,416,919,918

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary ERESEESEL L BR

shares for share options - - -
Weighted average number of FEUATEREERETN

ordinary shares for the purpose (1) 2 EmAR

of calculating diluted earnings In¥EFEHEE

(loss) per share

2,416,919,918 2,416,919,918

The computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016
does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options, as the exercise price of
those options are higher than the average market
price per share for both years, and therefore, was
anti-dilutive to the earnings (loss) per share.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

16 ¥ - WBERRE

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

EQUIPMENT
Leasehold land Furniture,
and buildings Plant fittings
and site and and office Motor  Construction
improvements machinery equipment vehicles inprogress Total
HELHREZR BER FERER
THHR B | BAERE byt HRIR ag
US$000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$000
Tin T&n Tin Tin T&n Tn
Cost B
At 1 January 2016 R=E—7#-A-H 245,601 227,858 12,124 13,741 17,269 516,593
Tranglation differences hEER (797) (480) (60) 23 = (1,360)
Acquiston of subsidiaries WERB AT - 1948 161 57 188 2354
Adotions RE 4 4323 185 109 16,837 20,501
Disposals HE - (1,290) (19 (640) - (149)
Wiite off i - (12 (129) 64) - (705)
Transfer i 5,85 10,821 319 1734 (18,729 -
At 31 December 2016 2 E+ZA=1-A 250,706 242,668 12,382 14,914 14,565 535,235
Tranglation differences T% EE 708 457 49 2 - 1,287
Reclassiiied as assets ENNBRGEEE
held for sale (,147) (35) = = = (2,182
Additions NE 304 2,570 572 164 67,234 70,844
Disposals HE - 34) (64 (399) - (2821)
Wiite off R = (3,158 @7 3 - (3.258)
Transfer b 3,182 21016 498 368 (25,064) -
At 31 December 2017 R-B-+t&+-A=t-H 252,153 261,176 13,390 15,001 56,735 59,055
Accumulated depreciation ZBENE
At1 January 2016 RZE-E-A-H 47,7110 97,8% 5,030 6,108 - 156,738
Translation differences hEZE (290) (276) (31) 2 - (5%)
Charge for the year FEERE 10659 18,208 993 2133 - 31,993
Eiminated on disposals (H 58 - (1,167) ) (450) - (1679
Eliminated on wite off ks = 239 (124) (56) - (18
At 31 December 2016 KB ETZA=T-A 58,079 14417 5807 7,787 - 186,040
Translafion diferences hEzE 28 21 % 13 = 574
Reclassified as assets ENNEAREAE
held for sale (314) ) - - - (320
Charge for the year TEERE 10,566 17115 1082 1778 - 30,491
Elminated on disposals HEHH = (2,089 (69) (359) - (2.461)
Elminated on write off FiiiEokc - (2594) a) 67 - (2,686)
At 31 December 2017 RZ8-tE+ZA=1-A 68,613 127,150 6,773 9,102 - 211,638
Canying values HEEE
At 31 December 2017 R-E-tE+-A=1-8 184,140 134,026 6,617 5,809 56,735 BT M7
At 31 December 2016 KRB ETZA=T-A 192,607 128,251 6,575 717 4,565 349,19
BHEHECERRAR o +EFEFR 183



Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 16 Y% - HBERXRE B
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The carrying value of land and buildings of the Group AEER L REF 2 REEITAT :

is analysed as follows:

Leasehold
land and Site
buildings improvements Total
HELH
REF THHR ok
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET TEr FET
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+tF
+=A=+—H
Held in Hong Kong ERBHEFE 13,036 - 13,036
Held outside Hong Kong EBBAIMEE
a8 - 171,104 171,104
13,036 171,104 184,140
At 31 December 2016 RZZT—REF
+=-—A=+—H
Held in Hong Kong EEAEEE 13,477 = 13,477
Held outside Hong Kong B BLAIN[E
=y =1 - 179,150 179,150
13,477 179,150 190,607
The land and building elements of a lease of land and T REBFHAF R T REFHLE
building cannot be allocated reliably between the land ER T EBFE SR ESR - BH
and building elements, the entire lease is treated as MABEERIEDE - s R -

property, plant and equipment.
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GOODWILL 17 BHE
US$'000
FET
Cost 2
At 1 January 2016, RZZE—R"F—H—8-
31 December 2016 and —E-RFt-A=+—8xk
31 December 2017 —T—+&+_-_A=+—H 7,872
Impairment RE
At 1 January 2016 —ET-REF—H—H 1,626
Impairment loss recognised BB E R TR 2,657
At 31 December 2016 and RZFE—AR"EF+-_HA=+—80K
31 December 2017 —ET—+F+=ZHA=+—H 4,283
Carrying values REEE
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+=-A=+—H 3,589
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+_-_A=+—H 3,589

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has
been allocated to an individual CGU, including five
(2016: five) subsidiaries in manufacturing of container.
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
of the Company’s five subsidiaries to which goodwill
has been allocated to was US$118,857,000 (2016:
US$75,428,000).

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or
more frequently if there are indications that goodwiil
might be impaired.

HBENATMES  mEEIRE—E5
BEGREEMN - BIERE(ZE—REF:
) BREEERBZHMBAR - %
FEMBARAME s RRHB 2R
& A118,857,000% T (Z T — /N F
75,428,00037T) °

AEBex L BFEABBETRENR
A MREDRBTEEARESRLER
B - ARNRBEERE

BREECERRAR « —T—tFFR
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17

18

GOODWILL (continuea) 17 BHE#)
The recoverable amounts of CGU is determined from BREVR @ B gy a] el £ B2 IEHE A
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for BEET TEFEREERMXANE
the value in use calculations are those regarding the ERIXCEEANSABNTER R
discount rates, growth rates, and expected changes EARIBRABARHEBRNMEZER
to seling prices and direct costs during the forecast WIBETEE o BB RPN R
period. Management estimates discount rates using Bx - UREREATMSHEEEKREEER
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments MERNRBMBENETERR 2
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the i o IR EBIBIEERIERIBR ME
CGU. The growth rates are based on industry growth E o HEEBKRNEEEBRNEFEHAUAN
forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs SR LB AR SRR E E R TEEER
are based on past practices and expectations of future EETE R AR -
changes in the market.
The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived AEEMNREREEANERE&OA
from the most recent financial budgets approved by EEEFMBMNOARARAFENTHEE
management for the next five years and extrapolates B WIK3% (ZZF—7N4F : 3%) Mfh
cash flows for the five years based on an estimated FHERERIBAAFHIRESME - AU
growth rate of 3% (2016: 3%). The rate used to EEARSREFEERENTAEXS
discount the forecast cash flows is 10% (2016: 10% (ZZF—7NF  10%) - KA RIS E
10%). The directors of the Company consider that R AREE BEVR € EA MK E
reasonably possible change in key assumptions on ENFERREAEMNIEZE T
which the directors of the Company have based to “go|MRER e EAMRAERLH
determine the CGU’s recoverable amount would Al Bl #E -
not cause the CGU’s carrying amount to exceed its
recoverable amount.
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 REENT 2=
2017 2016
—E-tF —TRF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FETT
Unlisted shares and investments: FEETMZRH MIKE -
At cost R 54,563 52,602
Share of post-acquisition reserves, FEE W B S
net of dividend received R 2 AR A (11,255) (10,671)
43,308 41,931
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2017 and
2016 are set out below:

REBERNT) 2= (&)

g

—tEEk=F

—~NE+=

=t—B AREEEHE /D\T,Zui

£ CNNE
Place of
Formof incorporation/
business registration
Name structure and operation Group equity interest Proportion of voting power held Principal activities
RL/ERR
£H R EENY ARRf{ERE FreRREL A IBER
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tf “EF ZE-tF “3E
Modex Holding Limited (‘Modex’) Incorporated British Virgin 30.5%" 29%" 33.3%" 33.3%" Leasing of
el Islands (Note 1) (Note 1) offshore containers
ABRAES (Hit1) (it1) BIEKHRE
Ningbo Victory Container Co, Ltd.* Incorporated PRC 40.0%" 400%" 40.0%" 40.0%" Provision of container
EREREEARAT %8 hE (Note 2) (Note 2) storage and repair services
W) W) RHERERER
EERH
Singamas Thal Logistics Co., Ltd.* Incorporated Thaland 25.0%" 26.0%" 25.0% 250% Provision of container
el %H (Note 3) storage and repair services
(i23) REERRERR
BERHE
Xiamen Xiangyu Singamas Incorporated PRC 35.0%" 36.0%" 28.6%" 26%" Provision of container
Container Co, Lid# Y] EF storage, repair and
ERREEBERERAR frucking semvices, and
sening as a freight station
RUSKEEE 46
EEREERT
ALS Singamas Logistics Limited Incorporated India 30.0%" - 300%" = Provision of liquid
*E gE (Note 4) Note 4) tank logistics operation
(Wit4) (Hits) REERERRNREH
* Associates held directly by the Company * KRAEEFHZ B E L A
@ Equity joint venture established in the PRC in accordance ’ RIZ B B % ) R 3 E KA B /JX" UZHEmE
with relevant laws and regulations BEih

In proportion to issued and fully paid registered capital

HEBETRHCEMBREZ LD
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

18

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

Notes:

On 26 May 2017, Modex exercised an option to
repurchase 720 shares from a non-controlling interest
shareholder and cancelled the 720 shares after the
repurchase. Such transaction increased our equity interest
in Modex from 29.9% to 30.5% with no change in the
board seating.

In January 2016, Modex disposed its 50% equity interest
of a joint venture, Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment
Co., Ltd. ("QSOE”), and 100% equity interest of a wholly
owned subsidiary, Taicang Modex Energy Engineering
Limited (“MTC”), to the Group as disclosed in note
41. An adjustment of Modex’s gooadwill, amounting to
US$5,465,000, was resulted from the disposal and
included in interest in associates.

An additional capital injection of US$6, 144,000 was made
by the Group in 2016. The Group’s equity interest in Ningbo
Victory Container Co., Ltd. remained unchanged.

In 2016, the share capital of Singamas Thai Logistics
Co., Ltd. reduced by Thai Bhat 36,000,000 (equivalent
to US$7,028,000). A cash proceed of US$257,000 was
received from the capital reduction.

As at 31 December 2017, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, Singamas Management Services Limited, made
a US$1,961,000 capital injection to a new associate, ALS
Singamas Logistics Limited, which is engaged in the liquid
tank logistics operation (for industrial chemical liquid) in
Indlia. The Group owns 30% equity interest in the associate.

Summarised financial information of a material
associate:

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material associate is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017

1 RZ-F
FERBEN —FEFERR R 2 2 IRR B FET720
SRR 17 R 7 [E] i 1 7% $5 7% 720/R IR 17
5 2 K F #Modex ) BR ## #129.9 % 3 1
F30.5%  ETHEEEZEEH -

—tFAHHA =1+ xH  Modex 77{Z

RZ-ZF— XN —F Modexti & —5&
Br¥#¥ - BEFBHWEIREFRA A
([QSOE]) Z50%BiERE2EHEFZ ﬁﬁ
BAA - AERHMBEFIRERL
([MTC]).Z2100% fR# T X %EHE - /J”\ﬂf?f
415 B o F3Z 1 EE B #FModexH) B &
fEHHE - £ 8 A5,465,000% T » I E15
RBERFZE#m A e

2 R20164F + 2K £ B 1 Ji1 ) £6,144,000%
T o REERE KK EEIEFRL A 8K
BRI T# -

3 R20164 - Singamas Thai Logistics
Co., Ltd.Z RA )& 4 736,000, 0003 ¢k
(15 E 11,028,000 7T) ° # & K ot 2 il
W F 89 B % AT 57 #257,000% 7T °

4 BE-_ZFE—+tF+=-H=
FE—2EHFZHEBER
Management Services Limited#f — &
& 2 BJALS Singamas Logistics
Limited;* &1,961,000% 7T ° % 2 A] K £
EREREERY TRBFER (TEEER
FE) o KEEGFRZIE R A]30%KRE -

+—Hi &

a/Singamas

EXRBERNBMNMHENBE

BRAARNREERE QA2 HER

ZEGIINT o Tl 2 AR BIR

EERBMHEME EA RN BERERLZ
BERRTBWMRPARIEHE

BE N RN AR ESR A WS HRRRAE
AN °
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(Continued)

18 RBERT 2R (@)

Modex
2017 2016
—E-tF ZZT—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
Current assets mMBNEE 19,267 18,906
Non-current assets ERBEE 181,670 197,493
Current liabilities mENB & (98,230) (12,884)
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE (23,874) (121,201)
Non-controlling interest FEFE IR AR R 2 (318) (1,050)
Revenue = 53,247 41,490
Loss for the year FAEE (7,777) (8,868)
Other comprehensive income FREMEERE
for the year 3,937 1,509
Total comprehensive expense FRNEEX HEE
for the year (3,840) (7,359)
Dividends received from the associate £ A 5 B4 A &) WL 2 A% 2

during the year

BREECERRAR « —T—tFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 353 &R Mis:

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18
(Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial

BB EM R RS

R A 2 3

-
=0

£t AT SR P HE
R BE A R R AR (E 2 B

statements:
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
US$’000 US$’000
TEx FET
Net assets of the associate BENR BEFE 78,515 81,264
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7 £ B 7 AModex 2.
interest in Modex PrE R 2 Ll 24,809 25,625
Goodwill EES 4,597 4,597
Carrying amount of the Group’s N & E - Modex 2
interest in Modex L AREE 29,406 30,222
Aggregate information of associates that are not ERREE 2B E RAINERE B R -
individually material:
2017 2016
—E—+tH —T—KF
US$°000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
The Group’s share of REBEEMGZ
profit for the year RE i F 475 864
The Group’s share of other AEERGzEMEE KR
comprehensive income (expense) (ZH) 767 (624)
The Group’s share of total REEEGZEZEKRERE
comprehensive income 1,242 240
Aggregate carrying amount of RNEE L 2 B2 AT
the Group’s interests in BEREE
these associates 13,902 11,709

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

19 RABELE M

2017 2016
—F— + £|E T—R ﬂz
US$’000 US$ 000
TER FET
Unlisted shares and investments: FEMZBHRIEE :
At cost DN 23,088 23,088
Share of post-acquisition reserves, JE(5 U B 1% 4
net of dividend received 8 Y AR A (1,299) (2,255)
21,789 20,833
Particulars of principal joint ventures as at 31 RZFE—+tEFRFT—-—R"FT+A
December 2017 and 2016 are set out below: =t+—B FAEBCIESGELEFE
W
Place of
Formof  incorporation/
business registration Proportion of
Name structure  and operation Group equity interest voting power held Principal activities
R/
£B RIFE — REENY ARBfERE itz il IEXH
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tF EF CZBE-tfF CEE
Dalian Singames Inemational Incorporated PRC 36.8% 36.8% 33.3% 333% Provision of containgr
Container Co., Ltd? -] e storage and repair services
NEBRARSARARAT" RUEEREER
BERE
Fuzhou Singamas Incorporated PRC 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% 400% Provision of container
Container Co,, Lid? -] hE storage and repair senvices
RABREEERAR RUERERER
BERE
Guangxi Singamas Container Incorporated PRC 55.0% 55.0% 51.0% 57.0% Provision of container
Co, Lid# i i depot and related
BEEREREERAR " logistics senvices
RESRIESER
REBRRE
BRHEBCEERAR « —T—+HFFR
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19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

19 REELXZE@R®)

(Continued)
Place of
Formof  incorporation/
business registration Proportion of
Name structure  and operation Group equity interest voting power held Principal activities
R/
£ RIFA  REESY AREERE iRl IEER
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tF ZZF ZB-tf _Tf
Shanghai Huasing Internationdl Incomorated PRC 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% Provision of containgr
Container Freight Transportation B hE depot and related
Co, Ltd.* (‘Huasing’) logistics services
LEZRARSANEE RASRBESEH
BRARH(ZE)) L
& Equity joint venture established in the PRC in accordance 5 REBHEZOIREERPEKL T2 #mE

with relevant laws and regulations

These companies are accounted for as joint ventures
as at respective period end date as in accordance
with the memorandum and articles of the companies,
major financial and operating policies of these
companies require the unanimous consent of all
directors.

Summarised financial information of a material joint
venture:

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material joint venture is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

19 REELXzER @)

-

Huasing #=E2
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —ZT—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FEIT
Current assets MENEE 10,619 8,291
Non-current assets EMBEE 20,026 19,701
Current liabilities mENBE (9,050) (7,670)
Non-current liabilities EmBEE - -
The above amounts of assets and FMmEERBESRE
liabilities include the following: EBENUATHIER :
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBRE 2,971 3,128
Current financial liabilities (excluding — RENEI TS & (&
trade and other payables and (TBREEMNERR
provisions) HAh TR R R B ) (3,959) (3,339)
Revenue EER 31,132 25,478
Loss for the year FANEE (521) (494)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKRE (ZH)
(expense) for the year 1,888 (2,085)
Total comprehensive income FAZENKE (ZH) B
(expense) for the year 1,367 (2,579)
The above loss for the year include FitFABED 2
the following: ATHIER -
Depreciation and amortisation & K5 897 1,107
Interest income FMEUW A 19 i3
Interest expense FERZ (175) (213)
Income tax (credit) charge Frieti (%) X i (11) 159

BREECERRAR « —T—tFFR
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19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19 REELXZHEZ#)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial J:i;ﬁﬁkiéfﬂﬁ%%iﬁi??é B 75 3R T i
information to the carrying amount of the interest RIEERRREEBE LK :
in Huasing recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
US$’000 US$’000
TEx FETT
Net assets of the joint venture BEREZEERE 21,595 20,322
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7N &£ B E 2
interest in Huasing FB Rz 2 LL 1A 8,638 8,129
Goodwill EES 2,188 2,188
Effect of fair value adjustments at FWERALEE
acquisition RN E 4,283 4,245
Carrying amount of the Group’s REEREE Y
interest in Huasing ERREEE 15,109 14,562
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not R EE S ELENESELR
individually material;
2017 2016
=2—tF —TRF
US$’000 US$’000
TEx FETT
The Group’s share of profit ARERIEZAFE&F
for the year 606 608
The Group’s share of other REBERGZEMEE
comprehensive income (expense) Wk (52 i) 417 (432)
The Group’s share of total AEEEGZEZERE
comprehensive income ] 1,023 176

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

20 ARHEZRE

INVESTMENT
2017 2016
—E—+tF TN
USs$’000 US$ 000
TER FTER
Unlisted security %Lﬁ\:x .
— Equity security, at cost RAFES - LKA 6,608 6,608

The above unlisted investment represents investment
in a unlisted equity security issued by private entity
established in the PRC. It is measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that its fair value cannot be measured reliably.

The Group’s unquoted equity investment represented
14.0% (2016: 14.0%) equity interest of Xiamen
Xiangyu Superchain Supply Chain Development Co.,
Ltd., a logistic company in the PRC.

bt 3E £ TR SR A B A AR S 2 AL
ANEBABRTZIFLEMBRAEFRE
EREEAABEMBTHEEERN A2
REEFRRAABETRASENE &
ZERENERERRBAAHERRE

=S
Al >+

AEEFEZIFELMEREERMEE
FIRBREHREREZERNBR AR
14.0% (ZZF—7"F 1 14.0%) IR EREz
ZE—PRPBREE 2R AR -

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 21 FEMNHEERIE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET—REF
US$’000 US$'000
FEXrx FET
The Group’s prepaid lease AEE 2 ENHEERE
payments comprise: B
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong & B ASMEE 2 FAE 31 92,560 73,366
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MMEMIELE 2T :
Amount shown under RIERDEEE R LT
non-current assets 90,302 71,672
Amount shown under current assets RIREBIEEZ R £ X8 2,258 1,694
92,560 73,366

BRMEBEEXFRAE « —T—LFFRH
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22

DEPOSITS FOR NON-CURRENT
ASSETS

22 FRBEERSD

2017 2016
—E—+F —F R

US$’000 US$'000
FEx FETT

Deposits paid for property, EME - #BEREERS
plant and equipment (Note J) (Hia2i) 9,675 6,281

Deposits paid for prepaid lease ENBENEEREZRS

payments (Note i) (H2i) 12,687 12,902
22,362 19,183

Notes:

i At the end of the reporting period, deposit of
RMB63,217,000 (equivalent to US$9,675,000) (2016:
RMB43,571,000 (equivalent to US$6,281,000)) had
been paid for the purchases of property, plant and
equipment. The remaining balance was disclosed as
capital commitment as set out in note 45. The acquisition is

expected to complete in 2018.

i At the end of the reporting period, partial payments
for the acquisition of land use rights in Qidong, the
PRC, amounting to RMB82,900,000 (equivalent to
US$12,687,000) (2016: RMB89,500,000 (equivalent to
US$12,902,000)) had been made by the Group, for the
development of new factories. The land use right certificates
have not yet been obtained by the Group as at 31

December 2017 and expected to obtain in 2018.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

INVENTORIES 23 FE
2017 2016
—F—tF —TKF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Raw materials R AR 115,130 81,285
Work in progress ERm 57,955 24,602
Finished goods BIRK T 84,532 30,932
257,617 136,819

The entire carrying amounts of inventories as at
31 December 2017 and 2016 are expected to be
recovered within the next twelve months.

R_EFE—+tFR_FT—F+_H
=T+ —BMRTE R FERREA
FEARR A+ {8 A RE1E -

TRADE RECEIVABLES 24 FEUWERR
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FErx FET

Trade receivables FEULBR 3R 313,519 209,774
Less: allowance for doubtful debts VB RIEERRERE (649) ®611)
Net trade receivables B K BR 3R 312,870 209,163

A defined credit policy is maintained within the Group.
The credit terms are agreed with each of its trade
customers depending on the creditworthiness of the
customers ranging from 30 days to 120 days (2016:
30 days to 120 days).

AEBEHE-—ERABEZIEERR -5
EHIRBORE120R TN EF (ZT—RF -
B3OREI20RTE) - BIEFP ZEE
miE - AEBEEEFF 2 RIHIEZEE
BZEREK -

BRMEBEEXFRAE « —T—LFFRH
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24 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24 FELW /\EH‘A (A5
The aged analysis of trade receivables net of PR BAR 2 FE W BR FOR R AR 2E A (A
allowance for doubtful debts, which is prepared BRRHZ2EZEHGE - WHAEIKA
based on invoice date of each transaction, which REBHNEAD) 2BREROHTOT -
approximated the respective revenue recognition
dates, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2017 2016
:g_‘tfﬁ . /\E
US$’000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
0 to 30 days Tr=+XK 191,580 114,882
31 to 60 days =+t—ZF R TX 81,918 58,222
61 to 90 days ANT—EATXK 25,673 17,816
91 to 120 days nh+—=2—8=1+X 271 2,667
Over 120 days —B-+tXRKNUE 13,428 15,576
312,870 209,163

The Group assessed the credit quality of trade
receivables based on historical default rates and the
creditworthiness of the customers. An aggregate
amount of US$248,713,000 was subsequently
settled.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
US$54,985,000 (2016: US$52,284,000) which are
past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for allowance. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. The Group has
assessed the creditworthiness and historical default
rates of these customers, trade receivables that are
past due but not impaired have very low historical
default rates and have high credit-rating within the
industry. In this regard, the directors of the Company
considered that the default risk is low.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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24 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24 BWERR @)
The aged analysis, based on invoice date of each BEMERERENBURR AT RR
transaction, of trade receivables which are past due PZEZERAFE) ZIRROTAT ¢
but not impaired is as follows:
2017 2016
—S—+F —T—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FExrx FET
31 to 60 days =F—FERTXK 18,308 17,593
61 to 90 days ANT—EATK 22,978 16,448
91 to 120 days Nt—Z2—8=Z+X 271 2,666
Over 120 days —BA-+tXRNUE 13,428 15,577
54,985 52,284
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: RIZBREEFHZEHMOT ¢
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —ZT—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx Tt
Balance at the beginning of the year  F #4564 611 653
Translation difference HmEER 38 (42)
Balance at the end of the year F IR 4R 649 611
25 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 25 FEfNRHMEWRIE

RECEIVABLES

W_ZE—+F+-_A=+—8 BHK
H b & Y 3R I8 B $E T8 11 79,860,0005 T
— T — N 1 47,273,000%7T) FER
HEMEABERMEZS B2
BIEARIEER R R EAMTER K o 5K
HIEHRT AR R+ =@ A AlkE -

As at 31 December 2017, prepayments and other
receivables included advance of US$79,860,000
(2016: US$47,273,000) to certain suppliers as
deposits for raw materials purchases. The remaining
balance mainly included refundable value added tax
and other advance payments. The entire amount
is expected to be recovered within the next twelve
months.

BRMEBEEXFRAE « —T—LFFRH 199
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26

AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO 26 FEW ENEEERARRE
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY
The general credit term for trade balances with EREERATNBSEEEEH KR
immediate holding company is 60 days (2016: 60 BOK (ZZE—/"F : 60K) - AFEFIR
days). No allowance on doubtful debts has been BIERZEREWE -
provided during the year.
The aged analysis of amount due from immediate RBERARZBEEERARFIE(AE
holding company, which is prepared based on invoice TR HZEZEATE - WEBEWAR
date of each transaction, which approximated the FEHHBRL) 2RO T :
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:
2017 2016
—E-tF ZZT—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FETT
0 to 30 days TE=+XK 4 66
31 to 60 days =F+—ZESTX 29 -
61 to 90 days NT—ENTXK - -
91 to 120 days h+—=—8=2+X - 12
Over 120 days —BA-+tXKNUE 510 203
543 281

For the year ended 31 December 2017, amount due
from immediate holding company with aggregate
carrying amount of US$510,000 (2016: US$215,000)
was past due at the reporting date for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. The directors of the Company considered
that the immediate holding company is able to
raise sufficient fund for the repayment of the entire
outstanding balance in the next twelve months. In this
regard, the directors of the Company considered that
the default risk is low. Accordingly, no impairment has
been provided.
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AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO 26 FEW ENEEERATRRE
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY (#&)
(Continued)
The aged analysis, based on invoice date of each BHEREREN B EEZER QRN
transaction, of amount due from immediate holding HABRRGZEZHFE) 2REBD
company which are past due but not impaired is as M
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FERx FET
91 to 120 days N+—ZE—BZ+X - 12
Over 120 days —B=ZtXHUE 510 203
510 215
The amount due to immediate holding company is REEZ ENEEERARRIES AE
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. R 2B ERSEREEEXRBE -
AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW 27 EWEZRKNEATNRE

SUBSIDIARIES

The general credit term for trade balances with fellow
subsidiaries is 30 to 60 days (2016: 30 to 60 days). No
allowance on doubtful debts has been provided during
the year. An aggregate amount of US$21,973,000
was subsequently settled.

ERMBARNESEEEER—KRE
80E60K (ZZF —/~F : 30260K) °
RERIRBERZERER - EREH
21,973,000 jc EL R HATZ g [B] -

BRMEBEEXFRAE « —T—LFFRH
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27 AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW 27 EBWREZRNEDRREE)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The aged analysis of amounts due from fellow RBEHARZARKBRRFIB(AE
subsidiaries, which is prepared based on invoice TR ZEZHFE  WHARKRAR
date of each transaction, which approximated the HHERL) BRETOT ¢
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:
2017 2016
—EB—+t&E —ZT—RF
US$’000 US$’000
TEx FETT
0 to 30 days TE=+XK 16,739 8,678
31 to 60 days =t+—ZE-TX 344 2,924
61 to 90 days ANT—ZEN+XK 321 4,726
91 to 120 days N+—Z—8B=-+X 206 1,249
Over 120 days —B-t+XHUE 79,512 37,607
97,122 55,184

For the year ended 31 December 2017, amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries with aggregate carrying
amount of US$80,383,000 (2016: US$43,941,000)
was past due at the reporting date for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. The directors of the Company considered
that the fellow subsidiaries are able to raise sufficient
fund for the repayment of the entire outstanding
balance in the next twelve months. In this regard, the
directors of the Company considered that the default
risk is low. Accordingly, no impairment has been

provided.
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW 27 EBWEZRMNE A TRIE @)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The aged analysis, based on invoice date of each BEMERIERENEKERWE R FR
transaction, of amounts due from fellow subsidiaries B(UABRXGZEZEHE) 2RED
which are past due but not impaired is as follows: B UNNE
2017 2016
—EB—+tHF —T—RF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FETT
31 to 60 days =t—=Z=,+XK 344 359
61 to 90 days ANT—EN+TXK 321 4,726
91 to 120 days t+—=2—8=+X 206 1,249
Over 120 days —B=-t+XHUE 79,512 37,607
80,383 43,941
AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT 28 EWESELENRE
VENTURES
The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured, FEWS BB AL - REER
interest free and repayable on demand. M2 BEFEEFKBE -
AMOUNTS DUE FROM 29 MEWHEEE N TR IE
ASSOCIATES
Included in the amounts due from associates, an 7 FE W Bt & X B EUE A+ 10,000,0003
amount of US$10,000,000 is unsecured, interest TTAERE  FRR7%0NE BERK
bearing at 7% per annum and repayable on demand. REBETERBH - HRFUAY AEEK
The remaining balances are unsecured, interest free B REERNSBEREEERBH -
and repayable on demand.
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 30 WITHEARERE

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.01% to 9.6% (2016: 0.01% to 16.0%)
per annum.

RITHERRTR0.01%E0.6% (ZFE—7NF :
0.01%ZE16%) Z TS FEF| KT8 ©

BRMEBEEXFRAE « —T—LFFRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

31 NON-CURRENT ASSETS 31 FTEAGEEENRBEE
CLASSIFIED AS ASSETS HELD FOR
SALE
The Group has reclassified part of the prepaid lease REBBURBMNNE HBNEERIE
payment and property and plant located in Huizhou as RYENBEDBRGEEELNEE
assets held for sale which are separately presented in MBHARF S XSEE+TZE
the consolidated statement of financial position as the AWTERK °
transaction is expected to be completed within twelve
months.
The sales proceeds are expected to exceed the TR HEREGEAEEEENREF
net carrying amount of the relevant assets and, B BAERBEEREESE -

accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised.

32 TRADE PAYABLES 32 FEMAERER
The aged analysis, based on the invoice date of RBERR BRNERAEBRRS 2
each transaction, of trade payables at the end of the BERE) ZRERONAT :

reporting period is as follows:

2017 2016
—B-tF —ZZT—RF
US$’000 US$’000
TEx FEIT
0 to 30 days TE=+X 110,426 66,684
31 to 60 days ETr—ENTR 59,111 31,255
61 to 90 days NT—ZENTXK 48,117 16,363
91 to 120 days nNt+—=z—8B=-+X 25,113 10,169
Over 120 days —BZtXKHNE 13,580 7,274
256,347 131,745
The average credit period on purchases of goods KEEYW < FHEEHARSKR (ZF
is 63 (2016: 58) days. The Group has financial risk — N B8K) c AEEEFIE 2 &E
management policies in place to ensure that all i 128 | BUSR SRFEAR P B 13 5k 5 12 (= R B

payables are settled within the credit timeframe. [RA
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

BILLS PAYABLE 33 ENERE
The aged analysis, based on issuance date of each RIBEBR EBNER (UESREEZ
bills, of bills payable at the end of the reporting period BITHFE) 2BRETOT
is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tHF TR F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx ==
0 to 30 days TE=1+X 44,444 29,241
31 to 60 days ET—EARTR 50,742 16,603
61 to 90 days AtTt—=Nt+X 44,756 12,540
91 to 120 days At+t—Z=Z2—8B=+X 27,518 6,474
Over 120 days —B=-t+XUE 44,373 15,843
211,833 80,701
ACCRUALS AND OTHER 34 EFERARAEMEMERRK
PAYABLES
Accruals and other payables consist advances from Bt E R R EMEMERSEBRIEN
customers, provision of staff cost, seling expenses, FoEEKARE HESTY  FIK
construction costs of new factories and upgrade of BER AR NEBER  ARHMEE
facilities, and other accrued expenses. R -
AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES 35 ENHENAR—ESELER

AND A JOINT VENTURE

The amounts due to associates and a joint venture are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
The directors of the Company expect the amounts will
be repaid within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.

15
BNBERAR R —AELERBY RE
B R BERMLAEEERAL -
ARRIESBHZFREBEREHR
B+ —EARET -

BRMEBEEXFRAE « —T—LFFRH
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36 BANK BORROWINGS

36 SRITER

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx =T
Bank borrowings comprise RITERBREATAS :
the following:
Unsecured E T
— within 1 year — AR—FRNEE 125,076 274,812
— more than 1 year, but not — AREFE_FRNEE
exceeding 2 years 92,044 44 544
— more than 2 years, but not — AREZZRFRNEE
exceeding 5 years 210,640 46,184
427,760 365,540
Less: Amount due within one year B AR —F
shown under current liabilities R ED x| (125,076) (274,812
Amount due after one year shown AN —F 18]
under non-current liabilities NIERE B ZEE 302,684 90,728

On 24 September 2013, the Company entered into a
facility agreement with a syndicate of banks in respect
of a US$310,000,000 loan for a term of four years.
Repayments commenced since 24 September 2015
and the loan was fully repaid on 24 May 2017 by
another new loan raised.

On 25 April 2017, the Company entered into a facility
agreement with a syndicate of banks in respect of
a US$270,000,000 loan for a term of three years.
Full amount has been drawn on 24 May 2017.
Repayments will commence on 25 October 2018 and
will continue until 24 April 2020.

All bank loans are unsecured and mainly carry interest
at either London Interbank Offered Rate (“‘LIBOR”)
or borrowing rate offered by the People’s Bank of
China plus certain basis points and are repayable
over a period range from one to three years. Interest
is repriced every one to six months. The proceeds
were largely used to finance the working capital of the
Group during the year.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017

RZTBE—-=FHNA=-+MA  NAGFHE
—4$R® 77 7310,000,0003% 7T 2 & HAtE
B ANF -8 -_FT—AFNA
OB RBFABEE  MZERERZ
E—tFRA-THBBBUAS—EH
BEREHEE-

RZE—+FMA-+HB A TR
—3iRB5T37 7 270,000,000 7T 2 & HAtE
Bz RE=F -BEEFENR=Z
—tFRA AR R =F
—\F+A-+HERBER BEE=
EETFNA—FTNHHTEERE -

PRASRITIE R Y EE I E R = B AR
HERTRAEFRBXPBEARBITAMLZ
fERMEINE T EEMFTEZHEE
R BRPBER—E=F - FESE
—E2XNEABEE - ERFBETZAE
AEBAFERBDESHF -
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BANK BORROWINGS (continueq) 36 #R1 'fT fﬁ (&)
The ranges of effective annual interest rates for year RZTE—tF  NEERITERZER
2017 on the Group’s bank borrowings were 1.57% to Eﬂ?— B D B A1.57%E5.00% (—Z
5.00% (2016: 1.37% t0 4.79%). —RNEF 1.37%E4.79%)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s bank REBEER > NREB 2 EBERNUIED
borrowings that are denominated in currencies other REEMEE ZIRITIEROT
than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entity are set out below:
2017 2016
—E—tF —TKF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
RVB AR 3,637 161
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 37 TE€mI A

INSTRUMENTS

The non-current portion of derivative financial
instruments represents the fair value of two interest
rate swap contracts, with notional amounts of
US$40,000,000 and US$70,000,000, that the
Company entered to minimise its interest rate risk
exposure arising from a US$40,000,000 term loan
and the new US$270,000,000 syndicated loan
respectively, by fixing the monthly LIBOR at 0.90%
and 1.57%. These two interest rate swap contracts
will mature on 30 March 2020 and 24 May 2020
respectively.

The current portion of derivative financial instruments
as at 31 December 2016 represented the fair value of
three interest swap contracts with a total initial notional
amount of US$186,000,000 that the Company
entered to minimise its interest rate risk exposure
arising from the US$310,000,000 term loan, by fixing
the monthly LIBOR at a range of 0.8775% to 0.8800%
respectively. These three interest swap contracts were
matured and settled on 24 September 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the gain
on changes in fair value of the interest rate swaps
amounting to US$756,000 (2016: US$376,000) had
been recognised in profit or loss.

PTEEMI A ZIEREBEHD AR A
A 7 RE A 7 89 & 5740,000,000% 7T &
748 B & 5/270,000,000E€ L FTE £ 2
MR MM NDBESED A
40,000,0003& 7T X% 70,000,0003 7T 2 F
EiEREONAAEE  NEESAM
FUERTTRIZE4F 8 50.90% K% 1.57% ° %M
DFERBBHEND IR T _FF =
A=tHR=ZZE-_FFRAA=-1+MHAEZ
HA o

RZZE—RNF+=A _+_ HEOTA
BT A REBHEARRRT RER
310,000,000 7T € HAfE B PTEE A 2 Fl
ERRMAI LN = DB IEEESTES
186,000,0003 7T 2 F| Rz B & X909 &
A EE  PHEES A mBERITRER
B 120.8775%%0.8800% 2 fE e R ==
—tFNA-TWHE  Z=F=EH
BHEIHREE -

HE-_ZT—tF+-_A=+—HL "7
REHENMEENRAABERMNA
756,000%F 7T (=& —7~4F : )& #376,000
%ﬁ) IEA}E EPEEFVL:\ °

BREECERRAR « —T—tFFR
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38

39

SHARE CAPITAL 38 R
Number of shares Share Capital
RH%E Rx
2017 2016 2017 2017 2016 2016
2B-tf ZT5F ZB-tf ZB-tf T E 5%
Us$ 000 HK$'000 US$000 HK$'000
1 TiEn Tn T
Issued and fully paid: BRIRAR
At beginning and EMREL
end of the year 2416919918 2416919918 268,149 2,078,513 208,149 2078513
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 39 LURARX

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”),
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
1 June 2007 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors of the Company and eligible
employees of the Group, and may be terminated by
resolution in general meeting. Under the Scheme,
the directors of the Company may grant options to
qualifying grantees, including employees or directors of
the Company and/or the Group.

At 31 December 2017, the number of shares
in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Scheme
was 3,791,000 (2016: 17,602,000), representing
approximately 0.16% (2016: 0.73%) of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date. The total number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue on the adoption
date, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue on the offer date without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors of the Company in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017

RER -TZTLF A —BRBRIRE
= ApAlz B8 ([Zat8l)) =
ZERNARBEFEIAKE S ERE
8 Zar SRR KRS L HRIBRIR
FmER U - RIBZATE] - ARRIESFA
REBERETEERARA  BREARQ
Ak/FAREEEERES -

N-ZTE—+E+=-A=+—H ' BiE
Z st 8153,791,00010 (=& — /RN F -
17,602,00010) & & B = K17 2 B8
PeiE - (RARRRIRZBERITZROE
0.16% (ZZF—7F 1 0.73%) ° JARLLA
NAEIRRBARE - BIBZET AT R H
BRI R IR B8 TSBALERA
AR AT @A A B BEITIRD10% ° 2K
KARNRIRR B LA AE - BHERERIA
TR MR < BEAR A T 25 1T Rt
BIIZRNOEE  TMSEBARQRNE
HREEERITRG1% - BRTFEERE
B IERTES CBRESBBAR
A% A80.1% 3k (B {E 8 385,000,000/ 7T *
TN EAE RN R IR B RTHLE o
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from
the date of offer. An aggregate of HK$1 is payable by
each qualifying grantee on acceptance of the offer.
Options may be exercised within the option period
(must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant
of the relevant option) which shall be determined by
the board of directors in its absolute discretion at the
time of grant. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of
the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value
of the Company’s share.

Share options of 7,170,000 underlying shares were
granted on 1 July 2010 at the exercise price of
HK$1.38.

Share options of 8,860,000 underlying shares were
granted on 6 August 2008 at the initial exercise price
of HK$1.93 and adjusted to HK$1.48.

Share options of 20,300,000 underlying shares were
granted on 28 June 2007 at the initial exercise price
of HK$5.14 and adjusted to HK$3.93. These share
options were lapsed on 28 June 2017.

39

R )

By B EN T SRR E T B et
28H M - BIEETET 2 A BHRE
B A AR EET T o AR HE B AR
A AR 0 T B B 4T (58 (5% 1 A R S
% AR TERAI10E) A AmESS
RIBHEERERTE - (TEERESE
T IS RME R E B B A BRG UK
B (VB E R B WA R % AR
BPUTE ¢ Ri)AD TR EE=
ErBEE

R-ZZE—FF+ A—HKH7,170,0001n
17{#{81.3878 T 2 1AERE AR HE -

R_ZTZ N\F N\ A5 HIRH 8,860,000
AT E(E A1.93%8 7T 2 BB AR AE -
HTFEEREEAER1488TT -

RZEZTLF AT NABEHR
20,300,00017 #1517 E B R5.148 T 2
IEFEREARAE - HITHERERFHEE3.93
BT ZEBRIEER =T —+tF <A
—+NB&kW-
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39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 39 MR X (&)

Details are as follows: BT

Number of options Vesting period

BRERE BEH

Exercisable period

1TEH

Option granted on 28 June 2007:
RZZBZELFENAZTNABREERE

6,766,666 28 June 2007 to 27 June 2008
—EEHFRAZTNARE
—EENFRAZT+EH

6,766,667 28 June 2007 to 27 June 2009
—EELFAASTNAE
“BBAFARA TR

6,766,667 28 June 2007 to 27 June 2010
—EEL+FAA-TNAHE
—E-ZTFA=TtAR

Option granted on 6 August 2008:
RZZEZENFNAARNBELAOERE

2,953,333 6 August 2008 to 5 August 2009
—ETN\FNARAE
—TEAF/\ARH

2,953,333 6 August 2008 to 5 August 2010
“ETN\FNARBE

e AV K=
2,953,334 6 August 2008 to 5 August 2011

—2EN\FENAKAE
—T——4#/\ATA

210 Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017

28 June 2008 to 27 June 2017
—EENFASAAZ-TNAEHE
—E—+tFAZ1++H

28 June 2009 to 27 June 2017
—“EENFANAZ+HNABRE
—E—+FAAZ++HA

28 June 2010 to 27 June 2017
—E-EFHA-+NEE
—E—+FAZ++tH

6 August 2009 to 5 August 2018
—TTENFENARBE
—ZE-N\FN\ARA

6 August 2010 to 5 August 2018
—F-FFN\AKAE
—E-N\FNARH

6 August 2011 to 5 August 2018
—E——FN\ARBE
—ZE-N\F/\AHRA
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

39

Number of options

BRERE

Vesting period
Bl E 8

PRR X ()
Exercisable period

1T 1L

Option granted on 1 July 2010:
RZZE—ZF+ A - BARHOBERE -
2,390,000 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2011
—E-TFELHA-HE
—E——FRA=+H
2,390,000 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2012
—Z2-ZFtA—BE
—ET—-FXA=+H
2,390,000 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2013
—E-BELA-AE
—E—=FA=1H

2017

The following table discloses the Company’s share

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2020
—E——F+A—HZE
—E-FFA=1H

1 July 2012 to 30 June 2020
—E——FtA—H=ZE
—E_TFA=1H

1 July 2013 to 30 June 2020
—T—=FtHA—HZE
—F-FFAA=+H

—= —=

—E—tF

TREEREE (BREARAES) IR

options held by employees (including directors of the NEIEBRRRE 1S
Company):
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed OQuistanding at
1 January Reclassification during during during during 31 December
2017 adjustment the year the year the year the year 2017
RZB-tF R-B-tf
--8 t=A=t-
HATE PERE AR ERfTE FRBRRK FRER HATE
'000 000 1000 000 '000 '000 000
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Wit1) (Wit2)
Directors BE 14,434 - - - (224) (11,366) 2,844
Employees EE 3,168 - - - - 221) w7
17,602 - - - (224) (13,587) 3,791
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39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continuved) 39 AR (#)
The following table discloses the movements of the TERIUTHAFEENAGEREY
Company’s share options by the vesting period during ERNEE)
the year.
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed  Outstanding
1 January during during during during 31 December
017 the year the year the year the year 2017
R-%-tF R-B-tE
-B-H T2A=1-A
BT ERgH EnfiE FRERN EhxH mk{TE
000 000 '000 000 '000 000
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Wit1) Wii2)
Granted on 28 Jung 2007 REEEHFNA-TN\BRL:
- with vesting period of -FERB_TEcE
28 June 2007 to RAZT/\AZ
27 June 2008 ZER\ERAZTLA 4529 - - - (4,529) -
- vith vesting period of - Hedh-35tE
28 June 2007 o ~AZTNBE
27 June 2009 ZERNERACTLA 4529 - - - (4,529 -
- vith vesting period of - BEsBh-S5tE
28 June 2007 to ~AZTNRE
27 June 2010 “E-FERACTAA 4529 - - - (4,529) -
Granted on 6 August 2008; RIEENENARBRH
- with vesting period of - FesBm-3T)\E
6 August 2008 to NARAE
5 August 2009 “EENENRLA 120 - - - - 1%
- with vesting period of -FEBhoTENE
6 August 2008 to Vi IS
5 August 2010 “Z-TE)\A1A 1 - - (52) - 120
- it vesting period of ol
6 August 2008 to JAV; VoS
5 August 2011 ~“E2——%/\A1A 673 - - (2 - 621
Granted on 1 July 2010; R-E-TELA-BRL:
- it vesting period of -HRdh-5-%F
1uly 201010 tA-R%
30 June 2011 “5——57R=1H 33 - - (40) - 33
- vith vesting period of -frdh-3-%F
1y 201010 th-R%
30 June 2012 - Sl 1,297 - - “) - 1,257
- vith vesting period of -Hesh-3-5%
1y 201010 th-RE
30 June 2013 ZE-CERA=TR 1,380 - - (40) - 1,340
17,602 - - (224 (13,587) 3,791
Bxercisable at theend of theyear — pERF 7478 17602 §791
Weighted average exercise BT H/7HE (K 7)
price (HKS) 3% - - 14 39 140

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continved) 39 MR % (&)

2016 —E—RF
The following table discloses the Company’s share TEEEES (BEARAARES) iEA
options held by employees (including directors of the NE R RE 2 BRI
Company):
Granted Exercised Forfeted  Outstanding at
Outstandingat ~ Reclassification during during during 31 December
1 January 2016 adjustment the year the year the year 2016
RZE-RF RZB-RF
—A—H tZA=+-H
HATTHE PERE ERR R FRKRK RALTHE
000 000 000 000 000 000
(Note 1)
(Wit1)
Directors g% 14,434 - - - - 14,434
Employess E8 3,168 - - - - 3,168
17,602 - - - - 17,602

BRMEBEEXFRAE « —T—LFFRH 213



214

Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

39 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The following table discloses the movements of the

39 R XZ @)
TEUBEEHAFREAR EREY

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017

Company’s share options by the vesting period during FERNEE)
the year.
Granted Exercised Forfeited QOutstanding
Qutstanding during Quring duing 31 December
1 January 2016 the year the year the year 2016
Sy RZE-~E
—A-H ) ) tZA=1-H
AT R Emfle FARRN HATTE
000 000 000 000 000
(Note 1)
(Wit1)
Granted on 28 June 2007; REBBLERAZTN\BRML:
- with vesting period of -FEBA-E5E
28 June 2007 o RAZT/\BE
27 June 2008 “EEN\ERACTA 4529 = = = 4529
- with vesting period of -HEBh-35tE
28 June 2007 o ~NAZTNBE
27 June 2009 ZEENERACTLA 4529 - - - 4529
- with vesting perod of - HEBR=55tE
28 June 2007 to ~AZTNRE
27 June 2010 ZE-EERACTHA 4529 = - - 4529
Granted on 6 August 2008: RZZTNE\ARARL :
- with vesting period of - FElm-3T\f
6 August 2008 o NARAZE
5 August 2009 “EENFN\ATA 120 - - - 120
- with vesting period of - FEBh=ST\E
6 August 2008 o Vi IS
5 August 2010 Z5-ZEN\ARA 172 - - - 172
- with vesting period of - BEBa-FENE
6 August 2008 to JAV; VNS
5 August 2011 “F——%)\A1RA 673 = - - 673
Granted on 1 July 2010: RZE-ZELA-ARL:
- with vesting period of -HEdfn-F-54
1July 201010 tH-RZ
30 June 2011 ZE-—5/A=1H 373 - - - 373
- with vesting period of -FEdm-3-%
1Juy 20100 tA-A%
30 June 2012 “3-ZF7A=1R 1297 - - - 1297
- with vesting period of -HEBR-3-%
1duy 201010 tA-A%
30 June 2013 Z3-ZERAZTH 1,380 - - - 1,380
17,602 - - - 17,602
Exercisable at the end of the year — NEST T3 17,602 17,602
Weighted average exercise METSER (A1)
price (HK$) 335 - - = 3.3
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

1 The forfeiture represented the share options granted to the
eligible directors of the Company and employees of the
Group, which were forfeited upon their resignations in both
years.

2 All share options granted on 28 June 2007 were lapsed on
28 June 2017.

For the share options granted on 1 July 2010, the fair
value of the options determined at the date of grant
using the Binomial option pricing model ranged from
HK$0.61 to HK$0.81.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the
fair values of share options granted on 1 July 2010:

Closing share price at the date of grant HK$1.54
Exercise price HK$1.38
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 65%
Semi-annual dividend yield 1.7%
Risk-free interest rate 2.29%

For the share options granted on 6 August 2008, the
fair value of the options determined at the date of grant
using the Binomial option pricing model ranged from
HK$0.53 to HK$0.72.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the
fair values of share options granted on 6 August 2008:

Closing share price at the date of grant HK$1.83
Exercise price HK$1.93
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 45%
Semi-annual dividend yield 2.8%
Risk-free interest rate 3.55%

For the share options granted on 28 June 2007, the
fair value of the options determined at the date of grant
using the Binomial option pricing model ranged from
HK$1.62 to HK$2.52.

39

ARz (7)
W
| RRREEFEAAAABEFRFEE

18 B A FE IR £ 32 FA L 145 P F A o B
B R -

2 Ro-FFEEAASTAEHZHEME
BEER=F—+EXA=FNALH -
R-Z—ZFFLHA—H BEREZAR

EBEDEA_BEAPEEEEARKE L
HEEF A0B1BTTR0.81B T ©

R-ZE-—TFLA-HARENEREZ
AABEIDREBEATRRBEETE

PR BBl mE 15478 7T
1B 13887
fER i 2 B R 10%F
TEHR R 1R 65%
FFEEREE 1.7%
mEkEX 2.29%
RZZBEZENFNANA  BREZAR

BENEA ZEAPETERARE L
HHIE F A0.538 L E0.728 T °

R-ZZFZNFN\ARNBRLNEREZ
AABEDRBATRIBEEE -

PRI BT E 1.8376 7T
118 1.937 7T
AR i < B U 104
TE DR IR 45%
FFEERBE 2.8%
= Gk B & 3.55%
R-FBEZELFXA=-1+/\B - BREZ

AABEDMER -_BEAHEEBERAR
B AEET A1.628TTE252HTT ©

BREECERRAR « —T—tFFR
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39

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 39 Lx H" ﬁéz (4)
The following assumptions were used to calculate the RoEBEES+F A -+ /\BEEER
fair values of share options granted on 28 June 2007: 2 AR BETIREA MREEBIREE -
Closing share price at the date of grant HK$5.25 Az B TE 5.25% 7T
Exercise price HK$5.14 TEE 5143
Option life 10 years B R b 2 75 W HR 104
Expected volatility 48% T8 =R fg 48%
Semi-annual dividend yield 1% M ERE J&L & 1%
Risk-free interest rate 4.78% =@ e 8 ¥ 4.78%
Immediate after the rights issue became unconditional SRR BT N E AR R A A
in 2009, adjustments were made to the exercise RS 25 LA 2B N R 1T
price and the number of outstanding share options 7 BRI TR B RSB e % -
to subscribe for shares granted pursuant to the share
option scheme.
The following table sets out the adjustments on the THEEVEREAZN B NE ST
share option scheme in 2009: B
Before adjustments After adjustments
AEA ABR
Exercise Exercise
price of Number of price of Number of
Date of grant BEHEH each option share options  each option share options
BiRRE BRRE
TEE BREXE THEE BREXE
HKS HK$
AL BT
28 June 2007 RZZZ+FERAZTNR 5.14 18,400,000 3.93 24,039,600
6 August 2008 R=Z2N\FNAKA 193 8,740,000 148 11,418810
Total number of options BRERS 27,140,000 35,458,410

The Binomial option pricing model has been used to
estimate the fair values of the options. The variables
and assumptions used in computing the fair values
of the share options are based on the directors of
the Company’s best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

No share option expense was recognised for both
years in 2017 and 2016.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

40 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 40 ELEHEBEAE
The following are the major deferred tax assets FEERAFERAIFEHAEERER
(iabilities) recognised by the Group and movements BEERIBEAE (AE)EE REZEH
thereon during the current and prior years: N
Accelerated
tax Undistributed Other
depreciation profits assets Total
mETE
ZHE  RKAPEEF HitEE e
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET TEr FET FET
At 1 January 2016 R-B—AF 381 (8,145) (446) (8.210)
—A—AH
Credit to profit or loss EEtABRZER 15 708 55 778
(note 13) (P7E13)
At 31 December 2016 “E—REF 396 (7,437) (391) (7,432)
N Actos
Credit (charge) to profit or B ABHZER 95 (1,261) (107) (1,279)
loss (note 13) (i) (fEE13)
At 31 December 2017 R-B—+tF
+=H=+—H 491 (8,698) (498) (8,705)

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred tax charge of US$1,261,000 (2016:
credit of US$708,000) on the undistributed eamings
of PRC subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures has
been charged to the profit or loss for the year ended

31 December 2017.

BEFBRGEXAESEE FEEBA

a8 BERAREELEE_TTNF
—A— BRI A BERIORER o
1,261,000 T 2 IEERIEBELZ B (=ZF
— I8 708,000k ) EFFAZE

—tF+= H +—HIEFEESES
PREMBAR  BERARREERER
?)E?éiﬁ?ﬁ*'JZ?ﬁLﬁlﬁﬁiﬂj °

BREECERRAR « —T—tFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

40 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
(Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group has unused tax
losses of US$139,952,000 (2016: US$144,647,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits. No
tax losses has been recognised as deferred tax assets
due to the uncertainty of its recoverability. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of US$1,233,000,
US$2,240,000, US$9,785,000, US$17,447,000 and
US$17,050,000 that will expire in 2018, 2019, 2020,
2021 and 2022 (2016: US$964,000, US$1,261,000,
US$7,563,000, US$15,765,000 and US$26,168,000
that will expire in 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021),
respectively. Other losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of US$2,652,000 (31
December 2016: US$632,000). No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences can be utilised.

The Group does not have other deductible temporary

differences not recognised for both years.

41 DISPOSAL OF A JOINT

VENTURE AND ACQUISITION OF

SUBSIDIARIES

In December 2015, the Group signed agreements with
Modex Manufacturing Limited and Modex Production
Limited to acquire the remaining 50% equity interest
of a former joint venture, QSOE, and 100% equity
interest of a wholly owned subsidiary of Modex
Production Limited, MTC, respectively. In addition,
the Group has agreed to engage Modex Asia Limited
(“Modex Asia”) as the sales agent of cabin and cargo
offshore containers at a commission charge. These

transactions were completed in January 2016.

Upon completion, QSOE became a wholly owned

subsidiary of the Group.
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L*EIEQ'TE (&)

R—_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—H &%
B (%) G 7K {5 FA B 18 /&5 $8139,952,0003
ﬁ(:;—ﬁi 144647000%7%)51
o AR A EE
ﬁ%&mﬁﬂ&@lﬁ ﬁﬁa%ﬁﬁ&u,ﬁLUR
HEEMNMEBE EREER M
TH & 18 1,233,000 7t * 2,240,0003
JC  9,785,0003% JT * 17,447,0003% 7t &
17,050,000 THBIR =ZE—NF + =
T-NEFE T - _ZT-—FK—
T _FRH(ZZF—NF : 964,0003
7t ~ 1,261,000% 7T * 7,563,000 7T
15,765,000 7t }26,168,0003% 7T 7 Bl
RZE—+F - —_FT—N\F - ZZF—A
F TR T —FHH)  Efp
Eia R AT PR AR A o

REREEAR - AEBR AR EZE
£ 52,652,000k T (ZF— X FE+=H
=+—H : 632,000 7T) ° BRANAT]
BEE FE AR B R A A DA K 8 AT 0 B 1
Z8  EAS A S BT EE

REDELEHIBEE -

ZNER B 45 P 6 3 B ORFE AR A0 EL At T HE D
BRtE=R-

%%—é’ﬁﬁ%&ﬂ&ﬂ%ﬁﬁ’"&

R—ZE—RAF+_A AEEBHHA
Modex Manufacturing Limited &2 Modex
Production Limited%s & 1#7:% © UgiE — Al
& B 15 - QSOEFIER50% A K Modex
Production Limited H) 2 &% A 2 K1 B
A7) — MTCZ100%A% # © L 5h + A5
& = B2 FAModex Asia Limited ([ Modex
Asia) ERMEEMEREME TSEMS
$HE 7 RIE - MModex Asiall& YA
SEAL BERFINR_T—F—AH
FERX ©
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DISPOSAL OF A JOINT 41 HE-SELERWEBHELR

VENTURE AND ACQUISITION OF A) (&)

SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

The management plans to relocate the Taicang EEEEICARMEBERE L&

plant to Qidong, where it aims to bring all offshore FRBEEBIERENEE -EBEM

container manufacturing activities under one roof. The 2 BRBEBAEBEE KA LI

management believes that the plant in Qidong will lead o

to cost savings and higher efficiency.

Consideration transferred HERE US$'000
FETT

Cash e 157

For the acquisition of QSOE, a consideration of
US$2,937,000 which comprised a cash consideration
of US$157,000 for purchasing 50% equity interest
of QSOE and an estimated future sales commission
of US$2,780,000 to be paid to Modex Asia, based
on the sales agency agreement entered into which
the Group shall engage Modex Asia as the sales
agent of cabin and cargo offshore containers at a
pre-determined commission rate. The commission
rate charged by Modex Asia are subject to change
according to the annual sales amount of each
category of products. There was no present obligation
to pay any sales commission on acquisition date,
accordingly, the consideration for this acquisition
was determined to be at US$157,000. The sales
commission arrangement was subsequently
terminated in 2017.

For the acquisition of MTC, the contractual
consideration was US$500,000. A deed of waiver was
granted by Modex Energy Rentals Singapore Pte. Ltd.
and Modex Energy Services Limited, the subsidiaries
of Modex Holding Limited, to waive the payables
owing to them, up to the amount equivalent to the
negative net asset value of MTC as at 31 December
2015. Atfter the payables being waived, the fair value
of the net assets of MTC was assessed as zero.
Consequently, another deed of waiver was granted
by Modex Production Limited to waive the payment
of consideration of US$500,000 for the acquisition of
MTC.

RIZEBEE WS - WHEQSOEM B ERE
#42,937,000% 7T+ H A B8 1E BA157,000
F LIRS R B EQSOER50%A%HE + A
N & 3 45Modex Asiafyfd 5T & 7K 84
E£2,780,000E 7T ° BIFE 5T AYEH
EREWE - ASBEBIERModex Asia
REHEEHALEME TSR  WiR
BETHXIMNEEME - AEXH
ERESEERENNFHSBIELH
o mPRKEBIRA TR TIHE
MemE®  NME EEZRERT R
157,0003 7T  SHEMSLHHEER=F
—EFRIE o

W EBMTCH) & [F) # & X & /500,000
7T > Modex Holding LimitedZ BB 2~
Al—Modex Energy Rentals Singapore
Pte. Ltd.fModex Energy Services
Limited[&] . FA EMTCRZ MK A7) * 47
ERMICR—_ZE—RF+_A=+—
HEEEFESBNENR  UHEEHRE
2 o B ENRRWE LR - MTC
BEFENAABENGEAT - Bt -
Modex Production Limited71 %% & 5 —%A
% RIE - Fhe S (4500,000F T REEMTC
BB EAE o
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41 DISPOSAL OF A JOINT 41
VENTURE AND ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

%%—éﬁﬂé%&ﬂ&ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%’&

REEERERREcEERBENT

Total

MTC QSOE W
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FETT

Property, plant and equipment ~ #73 - #4222 &% 110 2,244 2,354
Inventories FE 1,996 2,145 4,141
Trade receivables JFE U BR 3K 8 1,207 1,215
Prepayments and other FE Jp H b E U 5k T8
receivables 1,001 136 1,137
Tax recoverable ke 2 #iIE 24 8 32
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRS 301 2,549 2,850
Trade payables AT BR X (263) (475) (738)
Accruals and other payables JEFT B A RHMER
BRx (910) (424) (1,334)
Amount due to an associate FER—Ht &N R IR (2,267) - (2,267)
Amount due to immediate JE BB A RIRIA
holding company - (6,889) (6,889
Amounts due to fellow AR )= PNGIE e
subsidiaries - (187) (187)
- 314 314

The fair value of trade receivables at the date of
acquisition amounted to US$1,215,000. The gross
contractual amounts of these trade receivables
acquired amounted to US$1,215,000 at the date of
acquisition. The best estimate at the date of acquisition
of the contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected is nil.
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DISPOSAL OF A JOINT 41
VENTURE AND ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

b e R EE R A

Goodwill arising on acquisitions: WEBESE2EE
US$'000
FET
Consideration transferred HEAE 157
Fair value of previously held equity interest SR AQSOERE 2 A BE
in QSOE 157
Less: net assets acquired B W EEFRE (314)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEE 2 mE -
Cash inflow on acquisitions: WEFE2HS :
US$'000
FET
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (157)
Bank balances and cash acquired g 2 R1THEBR NI S 2,850
2,693

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group:
Included in the loss for the year ended 31 December
2016 was US$2,599,000 attributable to QSOE and
MTC. Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016
included US$5,102,000 was attributable to QSOE and
MTC.

KR AEERRAZFE !
NZZE—RNEFE+_A=+—BItFE
B8 - 2,599,0003 7t 5 B IAQSOE &
MTC. M=ZE— X "F+=A=+—H1t
FEZEEWRAR » 5102,000%E T I &7
EHRQSOEKRMTC ©

BRMEBEEXFRAE « —T—LFFRH
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42

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes the bank borrowings disclosed in
note 36, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, accumulated profits and other
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors of the Company consider the cost
of capital and the risks associates with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of
the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a.

Categories of financial

Notes to the Financial Statements B 3 izt

43 S£RIT A

a SEIAZESE

instruments
2017 2016
—EB—+F —E—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FExr FET
Financial assets EWMEE
Loans and receivables (including B 2k & FE UL BR 7X
cash and cash equivalents) (BRBE2EERIIRS) 704,806 519,195
Available-for-sale financial assets At HEZ £ R EE 6,608 6,608
Derivative financial instruments PESmMITA 1,014 356
712,428 526,159
Financial liabilities oty =—R
Amortised cost B R 932,423 595,366
BRMESECERARAT o« —T—+FFH{
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include available-for-sale investment, derivative
financial instruments, trade receivables, other
receivables, trade payables, bills payable,
other payables, bank borrowings and current
accounts with immediate holding company,
fellow subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures and bank balances and cash. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases,
bank balances and cash and bank
borrowings, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. Approximately
79% (2016: 71%) of the Group’s cost
of sales and expenses are denominated
in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity
making the sales, whilst almost 95%
(2016: 90%) of sales are denominated in
the group entity’s functional currency.
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continuea)

Market risk (Continued)

()

Currency risk (Continueq)

As at 31 December 2017, the RMB
to US$ closing rate rose by 6% as
compared to that of 31 December 2016.
Such RMB appreciation exposed the
Group to foreign currency risk as 95%
sales are denominated in US$ whilst
79% cost of sales are denominated
in RMB. This exposure can partially
offset by the advantages taken from
such appreciation, as certain amount
of Group’s monetary assets are
denominated in RMB.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary

43 £RITH &)
b HBEEREERAEREE

/43 )

™5 kR (&)

0  EBEEEE(E)
RZZ—tF+=A
=+—B  ARKXE
THRMEERR T — X
F+-_A=+—8B tH
6% ° ZFEAREHEER
SEEEINERRE  EA
95%$H E FE A X TTEHE -
M79%3H & Ak A A A R #&
FE -AAAEE—EH
ENEBEENARES
&+ 205 R B A] LAY M 3K
8H ©

K& BE > NEEAS
BB EREERER

assets and monetary liabilities at the BEZERAEABENAT :
reporting date are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE afE

2017 2016 2017 2016
—EF—tF —FTF ZTB—tF —FTF
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
FTER FETT FTER FET
RMB AR 177,478 151,170 501,197 222,193
HK$ BT 3,428 8,085 441 685

BRMEBEEXFRAE « —T—LFFRH
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contived) 43 <@ TR (&)
b. Financial risk management b. HMERBEEBEEREE
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Market risk (Continued) miE Rk (&)
(i Currency risk (Continued) i ErE b (&)
Sensitivity analysis BN DT
The Group is mainly exposed to rEFFEmHARE 2
exchange fluctuation of RMB. PE 5 R & o
The sensitivity analyses include financial BRU DT EEBEUATRR
assets and liabilites denominated in HEASBEERNEER
foreign currencies which are different HmE¥KemEEKSE
from the functional currency of the B TREATEARKR
relevant Group entities. The following ETLEBHAEEIETE
table shows the post-tax profit or TEER®EERBEHER
loss impact of the foreign currency M afsBEcFE-
denominated non-derivative monetary TREEETARER
assets and liabilities to change in RMB ERLRE/FHE2% (ZF
for the Group. The numbers below —NF 1 5%) B 2 BRE 18 5
indicate the increase (decrease) (2016: F(ZE—RF : BREE
decrease (increase)) in post-tax profit B)EMORD) (ZFE =R
(2016: post-tax loss) where RMB FORPUEM) c EE
depreciates/appreciates by 2% (2016: EAEBERBFERRSAR
5%) against the US$. This is mainly ARBIRITHESR - HEHAR
attributable to the exposure outstanding EEARERITERRE
at the end of the reporting period on AR BR B AR 2 &
RMB bank balances, bank borrowings B T BN (RER A SRR ERE
and payables net of receivables FHFR—IKF) -
assuming they are outstanding for the
whole year:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZZT—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FErx FET
Credit to profit or loss where MARKEHETERE
RMB depreciates by 2% Bfhz=
(2016: 5%) against US$ —E—RF:
BpZzh) 25 4,760 2,537
Charge to profit or loss where MARE N ETHE
RMB appreciates by 2% Bz =
(2016: 5%) against US$ (ZZ—REF:
BR2EH)ZEE (4,760) (2,537)
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continuea)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk primarily relates to floating rate
borrowings, variable rate bank balances
and pay-fixed/receive-floating interest
rate swaps. Interest rate risk on bank
balances is considered immaterial due
to short maturity. It is the Group’s policy
to keep its borrowings at floating rate of
interest so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates
on financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this
note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk on non-derivative financial
instruments is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of LIBOR and borrowing
rates offered by People’s Bank of China
arising from the Group’s variable-rate
borrowings.

In order to minimise the Group’s
interest rate risk exposure arising from
the US$310,000,000 term loan, the
Company entered into three interest rate
swap contracts, with a total notional
amount of US$186,000,000, to fix the
monthly LIBOR at a range of 0.8775%
to 0.8800%. The three interest rate
swap contracts were matured and
settled on 24 September 2017.

43 £RITH &)
b HBEEREERAEREE

=

(A
(A=

™5 kR (&)

(i)

2B FIF R R
AEBEZHESRENEKME
o 2 EUF B F R
A] & SR 1T 4 R e S AN
B/ MBI N K=
B o X HIREE - R1T
TR 2 MR AR R
e AEBEABRKNF
B RBHREERIAE
BRI ZER o

AEEEHZEREELZ
MERBRRARSDE SR
REEMEPFL - N
BHTESRMTIARS
MENERBREERTR
BBERITRFFE R HE
ARBIT AT ZEEF R
EINTEIRN SLPOES-N =)
EXHEZEENTE -

AT ORERARKE
310,000,000 7T & 88 f&
EfEELZFERER &
RAFIN T = %85S
%8 /5186,000,0003 7T 2 F
KRIGHAH  NEEEA
MRBERITRIEFREFE
7 F0.8775%%=0.8800%
ZEZ=HMNEEHE
HWER=-_ZE—LtFhA
“tHRIEAREE -
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continuead)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk (Continueq)

In order to minimise the Group’s
interest rate risk exposure arising from a
US$40,000,000 term loan and the new
US$270,000,000 syndicated loan, the
Company entered into two new interest
rate swap contracts, with notional
amounts of US$40,000,000 in 2016 and
US$70,000,000 in 2017 respectively,
to fix the monthly LIBOR at 0.90% and
1.57%. These two interest rate swap
contracts will mature on 30 March 2020
and 24 May 2020 respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for bank borrowings at the
end of the reporting period. For floating
rate bank borrowings, the analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 basis point (2016:
50 basis point) increase or decrease in
interest rate represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rate had been 50 basis
points (2016: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2017
would have decreased/increased by
US$1,530,000 (2016: post-tax loss
would have increased/decreased by
US$896,000) attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate bank borrowings and pay-fixed/
receive-floating interest rate swaps.
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% %4 /40,000,000% 7T &
70 ooo 000 T 2 #| K 1=
BH LB EFARE
fETT [A] % #F B 50.90% &
1.57% ° sZZMH FIRBHES
5D EIJJLHEA:D:\_TE_
A=Z+BAREk=-_Z-_ZFH
BAZ+HmHERE -

SRNED T

L/(T@Z’:W?E 3 AT TH IR R 4R
TEREEHRAREHRLN
ﬂfﬂ Fﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ E‘yt’fETT
BEZEm DITE
1?““5/\iﬁiﬁﬁiﬁﬁifaﬁﬁ
ENEHEAEFEAREESR
ﬁﬂ”] o BRBENMGF
BE IR B0 B B SR
50%_?_(_93*/\& : 5OEh
F) 2 MR - ARME
BEESMNEEBEEE 2
SIng

fis FI| =R 1% F508 T (=
T—NF 508 T) RE
ml%T“ KEBEHZE
—E—+F+-_A=1+—
BIEFENRHEZ R
& 42 7N1,530,000% 7T
—E—RF  BrRiiBEE
1% hn, Rk b 896 000% 7T)
TR AE B )Z B IR
THEE R NEEUER
DA | et Do ] B9 R
FTER o



Notes to the Financial Statements B %3R3k Mz

43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i Cash flow interest rate risk (Continueq)
The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates
have increased during the current
year mainly due to the increase in
variable-rate bank borrowings.

(iif) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk through its investments in unquoted
equity securities. No sensitivity analysis is
presented as the Group’s investments in
unquoted equity securities are measured
at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting
period.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of
each reporting period to ensure the adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continuea)

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited
because the counterparties are banks or
financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies
or state-owned banks in the PRC.

The Group has concentration of credit risk
as 15.8% (2016: 19.0%) and 61.0% (2016:
53.6%) of the total trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers, respectively. The Group
has assessed the creditworthiness of these
customers, all of these customers have strong
financial backgrounds and high credit-rating
within the industry. In this regard, the directors
of the Company considered that the credit risk
is low. The Group’s concentration of credit risk
by geographical location is mainly in the USA,
which accounted for 34.1% (2016: 49.4%) of
the total trade receivables as at 31 December
2017.

In addition, the Group’s amounts due
from immediate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
amounting to US$543,000 (2016:
US$281,000), US$97,122,000 (2016:
US$55,184,000), US$1,000 (2016: US$3,000)
and US$17,397,000 (2016: US$13,970,000)
respectively (see notes 26, 27, 28, 29
respectively for details) expose the Group to
concentration of credit risk. The directors of
the Company continue to monitor and assess
the financial status of the counterparties, and
they believe the exposure to credit risk on these
balances is not significant as the counterparties
are of good financial position.
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants or to timely negotiate with
the lenders if any non-compliance is expected.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment dates. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The tables include both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the
end of the reporting period.
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management

43 SEMI R
b. BEMEERERKE

objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity and interest risk tables REBESRFERERE
2017 —E-tF
Weighted  On demand Total Carrying
average  orless than 3 months undiscounted  amount at
interest rate imonth  1-3 months to 1 year 1-5years  cashflows  31/12/2017
RZB-tF
B RER =
it 384 g =R BéhE =1-A
ERRZE  OW-fR  -ZZfA - -EIf aE  2EEeE
% US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000
Tin Tin Tin Tin TEn Tin
Financial liabilities HEEE
Trade payables EREH - 38,693 107,228 110426 - 256,347 256,47
Bils payable EREE - 35924 71,661 98,248 - 211,833 211,833
Other payables EfEfER - 12,036 1417 16,021 - %374 36,374
Amount dus to immedate EREERRAA
holding companying B - 15 - - - 15 15
Amounts duetoassocates  EREEATFUE - 85 - - - 85 85
Amontduetoajontventue BN —AEMERE - 9 - - - 9 9
Bank borrowings BifEE
- interest bearing bonowings” 3t S {EE* 3.35% 21,393 38,950 605520 324,695 451,558 421,760
115,055 231,256 285,215 324,695 956,221 932,423
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea) col - N =NE )
Financial risk management b. HMEREBEERERBE
objectives and policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity and interest risk tables REBESRFERRREZ)
(Continued)
2016 —E—RF
Weighted ~ On demand Totdl Camying
average  orlessthan 3months undiscounted amount at
interest rate Imonth  1-3months to1year 1-byears  cashflows  31/12/2016
RZ5—1F
B3 RER t=A
T [BE =S AgRE  =t-A
ERiE  OR-BA -Z=fA £ -ERf BE  REEE
% US$000 US§'000 US§000 US$ 000 US§000 US§000
TEL TEn TEL TET TEL TEL
Financial iabilties HHER
Trade payables FETHRR - 17,443 47618 66,684 - 131,745 131,745
Bils payable NEY: - 17,061 19,139 44501 - 80,701 80,701
Other payables HAo el ﬁa?** = 12,783 2,301 182 - 16,999 16,999
Amounts dueto associates  JEITEEE A AIE - 366 - - - 366 366
Amounts dug to joint ventures  ERTAE ¢%M ] - 15 - - - 15 15
Bank borrowings R
- interest bearing borowings” ~ —3t £ E* 2.58% 10,400 31,362 231917 96,242 375,921 365,540
58,068 100,510 350927 96,242 606,747 595,366
* For the Group’s interest bearing borrowings, the - RAEHZ G EEENET  RERSHK

The a

weighted average interest rate at the end of each
reporting period is used for undiscounted cash
flows analysis.

mounts included above for variable

interest rate instruments for non-derivative

financi

al liabilities are subject to change if

changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the

end of

the reporting period.
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

o the fair value of derivative financial
instruments is made of discounted cash
flow analysis using the application yield
curve and forward rate for the duration
of the instrument for non-optional
derivatives; and

. the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
financial instruments) are determined
in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The derivative financial instruments are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of
this financial instrument are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued) 43 EmRI A (&)
c. Fair value of financial instruments c. S@MIAEZAREBE®RE

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial REEMEERTELREEN

assets and financial liabilities that are cHEENESREBEZANE

measured at fair value on a recurring B(E)

basis (Continued)

. Level 1 fair value measurements are . F—RANBEFTERE
those derived from quoted prices TR EREE 8 ERNE
(unadjusted) in active market for identical BmiHaRE CREHA
assets or liabilities; B)

. Level 2 fair value measurements are . “RAREBEFERE
those derived from inputs other than 75 BRI BRE—RORE
quoted prices included within Level LASN - BESBEMNEAM
1 that are observable for the asset or B# (AER) skfEE (AR
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or BER) 2RI BREE &
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

. Level 3 fair value measurements are . FE=BAREBEFEFE
those derived from valuation techniques TB AT ERTW B EE
that include inputs for the asset or liability AERBABEEMHEZE
that are not based on observable market ESBEEESE ((TAHR
data (unobservable inputs). EIE) 1S o

Fair value Fair value
asat asat  Fairvalue
Financial assets 31/12/2017 31/12/2016  hierarchy  Valuation technique and key inputs
SREE BE-E-t§ BE_T %
tZA=t-B +ZA=+-A A2Qh{EE
LWAREE  ENRAREE Ed MESERIEHE
Interest rate swaps classified as Assets of Assets of Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
derivative financial instruments US$1,014,000 US$356,000 estimated based on forward interest rates
in the consolidated statement of (from observable forward interest rates at
financial posttion the end of the reporting period) and the
contracted interest rates, discounted at a
rate that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties
RERHBRRRIER 1,014,000% 7T 356,000 T E-f FREERE ARALRERRBDIRE
TEERTAZ Xz EE EE RHIFIR (RS AN A BR RN %)

BREEEERRAR « —T—

RAVERIE - BRMERSFEEER
SRR

TFFIHR
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (Continued)

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and
2 in the current and prior years.

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Financial instruments subject
to enforceable master netting
arrangements

The Group has entered certain derivative
transactions that are covered by the
International Swaps and Derivatives Association
Master Agreements (“ISDA Agreements”)
signed with a bank. These derivative financial
instruments are not offset in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the ISDA
Agreements are in place with a right of set
off only in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy so that the Group currently
has no legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts.

As at 31 December 2017, the gross amount of
derivative financial instruments that are subject
to enforceable master netting arrangements
are US$1,014,000 (2016: US$356,000). No
deposit was placed with the counterparty.
No further disclosure is provided as all the
outstanding derivative financial instruments as
at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were entered
into with one counterparty.
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44 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 44 ®BEIBHELNAEBYHER
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRERASEEERARMETHEED
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both 2t BERELIFFEeHEL - HBE
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from EHEANBEEEREREBLIH
financing activities are those for which cash flows SELAEBEERERADBARETH
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the EEZREN -
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.
Amount
due to Amount
immediate ~ Amounts due to Derivative
Bank Interest holding due to ajoint  Dividend financial
borrowings  payable company associates  venture  payable instruments Total
EHES JEf Ff
BRAR HELAY -GEL¥ fit
ROBR  EAFE A HE B ERE  SRIA ay
USP000  US§000  US$000  US$000  USS000  US$000  US$O00  US$000
T¥r T TEr T TEr T TEr TR
At1 January 2017 RZ5—+F
—A-H 365,540 344 - 366 15 - (356) 365909
Fiancing cash fows BEBER 6220 (11577 15 (281) 6 B4 | 44998
Interest on bank loans RITEFHE - 1169 - - - - - 1169
Distributed dividends AERE - = = = = 541 - 5411
Change in fair value of derivative T4 4RI AL
financial instruments MEBEY - - - = - - (%) (756)
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tf
TZR=+-0 421,760 466 15 85 9 - (1014 42131
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45 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 45 EIREE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Capital expenditure in respect of the B iR NG A BB HRE
acquisition of property, plant and BiEBAYE  HERk
equipment contracted but not B2 EATH
provided for in the consolidated
financial statements 39,107 29,138
Capital injection in a joint venture BRI AR N ARG B ISR
contracted but not provided for B —GEDLE
in the consolidated financial ZEE
statements 16,835 -
Capital injection in an associate BRI AMERRERE B ISR
contracted but not provided for Bl 2 I — Bt &N A
in the consolidated financial ZEE
statements 4,039 -
20,874 -
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OPERATING LEASE 46 KEHEERE
COMMITMENTS

Lessee ERAEBE A

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REpEHAR - AEBRBETAIEE &
outstanding commitments for future minimum lease SHERBREAZE &L HEE ZHEL
payments under non-cancellable operating leases, HABR AT -

which fall due as follows:

2017 2016
—E2—tF T RF
USs$’000 US$'000
FTERT FET
Land and buildings T RIEF
— within 1 year —RE—F 1,196 3,467
- in the 2nd to 5th year inclusive —RE_FEZERF
(BEEMFREEN) 2,171 1,915
3,367 5,382
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable ZEHENEAERN T —HAERK
by the Group for an office premise and certain of its LERMAGmHe BB FOET
container depot sites. Leases are negotiated for an R1E10F ME B FHEE R/1ES
average period of 1 to 10 years and rentals are fixed Fo

for an average of 1 to 3 years.

BRMEBEEXFRAE « —T—LFFRH 239
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47 EBERQATXRS
Other than those disclosed in notes 26, 27, 28, 29 and BriRE B SRR MIE26 - 27 -~ 28« 20K
35 to the consolidated financial statements, details 35?& ZON REBEEMBELS X5
of transactions between the Group and other related FRIBHEELT o
parties are disclosed below.
During the year, the Group entered into the following RER AEBEAFBENR GERE
trading transactions with related parties that are not EXE)EKATEERS :
members of the Group:
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Sales to immediate holding company RIEZIZR A RIHE R R 328 215
Sales to fellow subsidiaries (Note) EIEES F‘ﬁ% AHE B m
(Htat) 49,732 31,231
Sales to associates (Note) mtE N RIEEE MR HE) 3,982 4,375
Rental expense to a fellow subsidiary  [6]— R Z B A 72 $
(Note) (H1zz) 411 445
Interest income from an associate Al —E N R WERE B 710 712
Note: Kt
The fellow subsidiaries are Pacific Intemational Lines (China) Ltd., RIZN B LR E] B FRBE(FE) BRI E - XF

PIL Logistics (China) Co., Ltd., Pacific International Lines (H.K.)
Limited, Mariana Express Lines Pte. Ltd. and Strategic Times
Limited, in which PIL, a controlling shareholder of the Company, also
the immediate holding company of the Company, has controlling
interest.

The associates are the subsidiaries of Modex Holding Limited,
including Modex Energy Rentals Singapore Pte. Ltd., Modex Energy
Services Limited, Modex Middle East FZE, Modex Australia Pty Ltd.,
Modex AS and Gauthier Homes, Inc..
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The balances with the related parties are disclosed in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
notes 26, 27, 28, 29 and 35. All trade balances with
related parties are subject to normal credit terms of 30
to 60 days (2016: 30 to 60 days).

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
other members of key management during the year
was as follows:

47

BRERLARS @)

BERENR 2 EHE RGN E
K126 « 27 ~ 28 ~ 29354 FE - FR B
HEMEARNEERENE —REE
ERETE  ABUBS0EBOKR (ZZE — X
& : 30260K) °

FTEEBEABZHM

AEEHEERE T BER AL HH
T

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —ZT—RF

US$’000 US$'000

FEx S

Short-term employee benefits MHIE T1EF 2,872 1,751
Post-employment benefits X EB1EtE A 76 73
Share-based payment ARG 32 - -
2,948 1,824

The remuneration of directors of the Company and key
executives is reviewed by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

ESRHMEEEEABZHRME B
& B 2 RIBEARE kM55 -
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48 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48 AAQTZ2ETEMBATZFHE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
a. General information of a MHEBARzZ—HBMEER
subsidiaries
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries as at 31 RZZE—tFRZT—RF ‘1’ -
December 2017 and 2016 are set out below: A=+—H ' ARQalzHBA
ZEEEAT
Place of Proportion of Issued and fully
incorporation/ ownership interest held paid share/
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company contributed capital Principal activities
BRTR
i PR AL/ ADRfE 2 RELA BERG BARA IBER
2017 2016
:g_tﬁ “F- /\E
DY Terminal Ltd. Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Orclinary Provision of
TARERRAT Bk HK$1,000,000 container storage
Lak and repair senices
10000008 REEEEREFR
BERHK
Eng Kong Container & Warehousing Lid. Hong Kong 73.3% 73.3% Ordlnary Investment holding
KREBEERRAT (3 HK$300,000 RERR
Lk
30,0007
Eng Kong Container Senvices Ltd. Hong Kong 73.3% 73.3% Ordlnary Provision of
KERERREERAA B% HK$3,000,000 container storage,
Lk drayage and
3,000,000% 1T repair senvioes
RUESHEE
HEREE R
Hui Zhou Pacffic Container Co., Ltd.* PRC 91.0% 91.0% 1S$40,000,000 Manufacturing of dry
EMATEERRAA " G 4000000057 freight and speciaised
containers
HERERE
RERERMH
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48 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48 AATZEEMBA T 2B
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MEBARZ—MRUEERE
subsidiaries (Continued)
Place of Proportion of Issued and fully
incorporation/ ownership interest held paid share/
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company contributed capital Principal activities
BRAR
i P R/ EMies DR BRI HERGH/ BARA IERH
2017 2016
ZB-tf ZE g
Ningbo Pacific Container Co., Lid." PRC 100.0% 100.0% 1S$20,000,000 Manufacturing of dry
ERATERBRAA i 2000000057 freight and
specialised containers
HELERR
RERERE
Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment PRC 100.0% 100.0% RMB20,000,000 Manufacturing of
Co, Lid." G Note?)  AR%20,000,0007C offshore containers
EERESIEERRAR (Hit1) W RISER
Qidong Pacific Port Co, Ltd." PRC 100.0% 100.0% RMB154,000,000  Provision of container
BERATABERAA i AR %154,0000007C teminal services
RS EAE R
Qidong Singamas Energy Equipment PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$220,000,000 Manufacturing of dry
Co, Ltd™ i (Note2)  freight, specialised and
BREBERERERAF Y 22000000057 refigerated containers
(Hizz) HELERE
REEEMR
RREEM
Qingdeo Pecific Container Co., Ltd." PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$126,605,700 Manufacturing of
EEATERARAR # (Note 3 dly freight and
196,605,700 specialised containers
(hi3) HEHERE
RERERA
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Container PRC 11.2% 712% 1S$25,300,000 Manufacturing of
Co, Ltd* hE 25,300,000 dry freight and
LEELATERER LR specialised containers
RERREN
RERERHE

Notes to the Financial Statements B i3k &R Kzt
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48 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

48 AATZEEMBATZFHE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MEBARZ—RHEERE
subsidiaries (Continued)
Place of Proportion of Issued and fully
incorporation/ ownership interest held paid share/
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company contributed capital Principal activities
BRR
WEADEH R/ EMibH DR R BERG/ BARA IEXR
2017 2016
“E-tf 2R
Shanghal Pacfic Intemational Container PRC 64.9% 64.9% 1S$26,000,000 Manufacturing of
Co, Ltd* mE 26,000,000%7C tank contaners
HEATERERERAA HEER
Shanghal Reeferco Container PRC 100.0% 100.0% 1S$22,000,000 Menufacturing of
Co., Ltd.* mE (Note 4) 200000057 refrigerated containers
LaBRRRERERAA (Wit4) R RN
Singames Container Industry Co., Lid." PRC 75.0% 75.0% US$5,100,000 Manufacturing of
BHERIZERAR " hE 510000057 colepsile fatrack and
specialised containers
BT RSN
RERERE
Singamas Container Holings (Shangha) PRC 100.0% 100.0% US85,000,000  Provision of technical
Limited * G (Note 5) and development
BHEEEE (LR ARAA " 5000000%7T  senices of container
(i) manufacturing
RS RARERN
R
Singamas Depots Holdings Limited * Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Orclinary Investment holding
BhEstRARAR" B HK$10,000 REZK
10000787
Singamas Management Services Limited * British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Provision of
Islands 10005 management services
ABRAHS RIERRE
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48 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48 AATZEEMBA T 2B
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MEBARZ—MRUEERE
subsidiaries (Continued)
Place of Proportion of Issued and fully
incorporation/ ownership interest held paid share/
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company contributed capital Principal activities
BRAR
i YK AL/ DR 2 RRL A BERSH/ BARA IERK
2017 2016
ZE-tE  ZEF
Singamas-Modex Limited Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% HK$200,000 Investment holding
BREERERAT B (Note 1) 200,000%7 REER
(Wit1)
Singamas Logistics (Qingdao) Co., Ltd.* PRC 60.0% 60.0% US$5,780,000 Provision of
BRR(E8)ERAR i 57800005 container storage and
repalr services
REEERMER
REBRHE
Singamas Logistics (Tianji) Co., Ltd.” PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$6,500,000 Provision of
BEIR (K2 BRAR t 6500000577 container storage and
repair Senvices
RUERRERE
R&ERH
Singamas North America, Inc.2 USA 100.0% 100.0% US$500,000 Marketing containers
e 500,000% 72 inthe USA
EXEBHERA
Singamas Terminals (Ching) Limited Brtish Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment holding
Islands 1000% T KA
EBRAES
Singames Terminals Holaings Limited * Brttish Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment holding
Islands 1,000%7T REARR
EBRAES
Singamas Teminals (HK) Limited British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment holding
Isknds 1,000%7C REER
ABRNES
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48 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48 AATZEEMBA T 2B
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
a. General information of a MEARZ—RHEERE)
subsidiaries (Continued)
Place of Proportion of Issued and fully
incorporation/ ownership interest held paid share/
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company contributed capital Principal activities
BRAR
KRAREH R/ ERieS ADRfE 2 RELA HERGH/ BARA IEXH
2017 2016
ZE-tf  CE0E
Singamas Terminals (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Orclinary Provision of
FRERES (B8 5RAA B4 HK$5,000000  mid-stream Senvices
Bk Rt R {ER R
500000087
Singamas Warehouse (Shanghal) British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment holding
Company Limited ISlands 1000% T REARR
EBRIES
Superb Gain Holdings Limited * British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Property holding
Islnds 1,000% 7 Ui
ABRAES
Taicang Modex Energy Enginegring Ltd. * PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$2,500,000 Manufacturing of
AERBRERIRERAE hE (Nots 1) 2500000% 0 offshore containers
(Wit1) HERTERA
Teamwil Intemational Limited * British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment holding
Isands 1,000%7C REER
ABRAES
Tianjin Pacfic Container Co., Ltd.* PRC 97.0% 97.0% 1S$25,700,000 Manufacturing of
REATERARAA " R 25,700,000% ¢ dly freght and
specialised containers
HELERR
RERERHE
Tianjin Singamas Container Co., Ltd." PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$2,000,000 Provision of
REBREEERAA " i 20000005 T container storage,
repair and trucking
services, and serving
as a freight station

RERKAERR &6
BRSBTS
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48 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48 AAQTZETEMBATZFHE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
a. General information of a MEBARZ—MBMHEER )
subsidiaries (Continuea)
Place of Proportion of Issued and fully
incorporation/ ownership interest held paid share/
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company contributed capital Principal activities
EBTR
WEARAR R/ ADAfE 2 RELH HERR/ BERK TEXH
2017 2016
ZE-tfF ZE5E
Well Key Limited * Hang Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordlnary HK$1 Provision of
BRERAR" &k LakiE human resource
management service
REEANER
S
Welmass Group Limited British Virgin 60.0% 60.0% US$10,000 Investment holding
Isknds 10,0005 7T REAR
EBRAES
Xiamen Pacific Container Manufacturing PRC 100.0% 100.0% 1S$23,000,000 Manufacturing of
Co, Ltd. " i 23,000000%7 cy freight
EPATERREERAA " containers
HERERE
Yixing Singamas Metal Products PRC 95.0% 9.0% US$200,000 Manufacturing of
Co,, Ltd* i 200,000%7T container parts
EREREBHnERAR " REE MR
* Subsidiaries held directly by the Company KRAEEFHZME LA
5 Equity joint venture established in the PRC in ’ RIE B BZ P R ERAE LT Z
accordance with relevant laws and regulations HmE ELE
Wholly owned foreign enterprise established in RIEF 2P REERF B L2
the PRC in accordance with relevant laws and EHEHEELE
regulations
C Represented common shares held by the @ REAXRAFFE L ZER
Company

The principal place of operation of each
subsidiary is the same as the place of
incorporation/registration stated above, except
for those companies incorporated in British
Virgin Islands which are incorporated for
investment holding purpose.

B 7 588 B 20 B B PR ST LA PR 73R
BERABIN  SHBRREE
X T RMERE FXE 2K
by saiiis: by IS
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Notes to the Financial Statements B3R & iis:

48 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

a.

General information of
subsidiaries (Continued)

The above list gives the principal subsidiaries
of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, principally affected
the results and assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year.

Notes:

1 Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd.,
Singamas-Modex Limited and Taicang Modex
Energy Engineering Ltd. became wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group in January 2016. Please
refer to note 41 for details.

2 Additional capital injection was made to Qidong
Singamas Energy Equipment Co., Ltd., amounting
to US$5,500,000 in March 2017, which increased
the paid-up share capital to US$220,000,000.

3 Additional capital injection was made to Qingdao
Pacific Container Co., Ltd., amounting to
US$50,000,000 in 2017, which increased the
paid-up share capital to US$126,605, 700.

4 In November 2016, the Group acquired the
remaining 9.1% equity interest of Shanghai
Reeferco Container Co., Ltd. at RMB26,279,000
(equivalent to approx. US$3,880,000). Shanghai
Reeferco Container Co., Ltd. became a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group.

5 Additional capital injection was made to Singamas
Container Holdings (Shanghai) Limited, amounting
to US$3,000,000 in March 2017, which increased
the paid-up share capital to US$5,000,000.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements B17§ 3Rk &R ki

48 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48 AATZEEMBA T 2B

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)

(Continued)

b. Details of non-wholly owned b. BEEAFERRREEZZ
subsidiaries that have material F2EREEZMBARFRE
non-controlling interest
The table below shows details of non-wholly TREREBHER EARFETR
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have BRERZIEZEHEB KB
material non-controlling interests: BEEACE

Proportion of
ownership interests
and voting Profit (loss)

Place of rights held by allocated to Accumulated

incorporation/ non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary registration interests interests interests

FERRRER

R/ RENRER R (F8) PEE

WEATAR b RRELA FERRRES R ERRRER

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tF “E0F ZE-tF “EF ZE-tfE —TF
US§000  USS000  US$000  US$000
i Tin ST i

Hui Zhou Pacffic Container Co., Ltd., PRC 9.0% 9.0% 1623 (241) 7,506 5,883
ENATERERAT hE
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Container Co., Ltd. ~ PRC 228% 22.8% 1,956 (1912 18,474 16,518
EREUATERERAR hE
Shanghai Pacific Intemational Container Co., Ltd. ~ PRC 35.1% 35.1% (1,700) (1,148 11,821 13521
LAATERERERAR i
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R &Kzt

48 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48 EATZETEMEBATZH1E

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)

(Continued)

b. Details of non-wholly owned b. BEEAFERRREEZZ
subsidiaries that have material FEERBZMBRRIFE
non-controlling interest (Continued) (%)

Summarised financial information in respect ATER AL E A E KNIEHE
of each of the Group’s non-wholly owned BIRRER 2D ERB 2B
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling RNAZHTBERBE - 5817
interests is set out below. The summarised BRI EAAREBATEER 2
financial information below represents amounts BFE o
before intragroup eliminations.
Hui Zhou Pacific Shanghai Baoshan Shanghai Pacific Interational
Container Co,, Ltd, Pacific Container Co,, Ltd. Container Co,, Ltd.
ENATEE IRRLATEE LBATEREE
BRAF ERAR ERAT
07 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tE IR ZE-tE ZE0 “E-tE CT5E
US$'000 US$000 US$1000 US§000 US$000 US§000
Tin T Tin Tin Tin 51
Curtent assefs THLE 169,63 80,343 103822 8,116 55,353 16572
Non-current assefs FhBEE 51,160 32258 15,329 12822 3,070 39499
Curent fabites nPak (187,397) (47,233 (40962) (81,337) (36,770) 23579
Fouity attbutable to owners LN 2
of the Company 75,803 59,485 59,605 53083 45832 48972
Non-controling inferests FERRRER 7,506 5883 18474 16518 11,821 13521
Revenue £5% 201,348 19,142 134,752 76,144 65,669 56,303
Expenses BE (273,315) (121819 (126,185) (84.518) (70,508) (59,569)
Proft oss) forthe year KEREN (B8 18,033 R8T 8,567 8374 (48%9) (3,260
Proft oss) atbutable o KATRFEG R ()
owners of the Company 16,410 2,43) 6,611 (6,462 (3,139 @118
Proft (oss) atrbutable to FARRRERES
non-controling nterests wil (B8 1623 41) 1,05 (1912) (1,700 (1,149
Proft (oss) for the year FEREN (B8) 18033 671) 8,567 8374 (48%9) (3,260
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48 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48 EATIZETEMEBATZ:H1E

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)

(Continued)

b. Details of non-wholly owned b. BEEAFERRREEZZ
subsidiaries that have material 2 EFEE 2B RARFHE
non-controlling interest (Continued) (%)

Hui Zhou Pacific Shanghai Baoshan Shanghai Pacific Intemational
Container Co., Ltd. Pacific Container Co., Ltd. Container Co,, Ltd.
ENATER LRRLAYEE LEAvEREE
BRAF ERAR ERAT
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

“R-tF ZEE ZR-tF TR R-tE CEF
US§000  USSOD  USS000  USSO00  US§o0 US§1000
Tin T5I Ti7 T3 T4 TX7

Other comprehensive income KARREEEEL

attioutable to owners of the 2EhE

Company - - - - - B
Other comprehensive income AR RERRR

atfrbutable to non-controling A 2Ebs

interests - - - - - -

Other comprehensive income for e~ RV ELM 2 EE
year - - - - - -

Total comprehensive income (expense) A2 AR FE(L

attioutable to owners of the 2EME (i) 28

Company 16410 (2.436) 6,611 (6,462) (3,139 2118
Total comprehensive income (expense) FEERR IR (L

attoutable to non-controling 2EWE (i) 28

nterests 1,623 (24) 1,956 (1912 (1,700 (1,148

Tota comprehensive income (expense) A2 ElES (1)
for the year k] 18,033 (2677) 8,567 8374 (4,839) (3,266)

Dividends paid tonon-controling ~~ B HERRRERRS
interests - 18 - 58 - -

Net cash (used i) fom operaling. £ £358) (57 5

acties ReAE (9312 1305 (5,362 (13,769 (2039) 8823
Net cash (used i) fominvesting &5 (57 e

actes B4EE R B By 8 2624
Net cash fom (used in) francng ~~ RAEBIFE ()

activities et 22,169 (10593) 364 105 9,204 1,498
Net cash (outiow] infow 52 (i) A (8879 120 (8.840) (14178) 102 (4701)
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49 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 49 RPN TBZBARRRER T
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx F=7T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - MR N ERE 972 830
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR & 548,137 466,716
Investments in associates REERNRZIKE 260 260
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E e 139,456 218,631
Available-for-sale investment AHEHHEZRE 2,567 2,567
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMITA 1,014 350
692,406 689,354
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables  TE1+ K E b JiE U 50 18 11,022 10,636
Amount due from immediate holding & I B # #5 A% A =] 7018
company - 66
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A - 6
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 41,616 31,431
52,638 42,139
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R EMERARR 2,658 2,262
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NGRS 58,053 37,268
Amount due to immediate holding DR NI E/S ]
company 15 =
Amounts due to associates AL NCI Bz 55 209
Bank borrowings RITIEK 78,044 273,501
138,825 313,240
Net current liabilities RBEEFEE (86,187) (271,101)
Total assets less current liabilities &EEZZERAE A S 606,219 418,253
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49 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 49 NREIZHBRARERR
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (&)
COMPANY (Continuea)
2017 2016
—E—tF —EF-RF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx SEESOE
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital R A 268,149 268,149
Share option reserve B REREE 347 3,367
Accumulated profits eSS avil 35,039 56,009
303,535 327,525
Non-current liability FREBEE
Bank borrowings IRITER 302,684 90,728
606,219 418,253

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 28 March 2018 and are signed on its

behalf by:

Teo Siong Seng RAE
Director &%

ARRZHBHRREREARARBESTERN
—E-N\F=ZAZTN\BHERIRED
2 WHTIARREETAREE

Teo Tiou Seng R
Director &%
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49 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (%)

COMPANY (Continuea)

Movement in the Company’s reserves

ARR 2R BE

Share option Accumulated

49 ARRT ZBBMNRKRERK

reserve profits Total

BRERE 252 F B

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

FET FETT FETT

At 1 January 2016 R-—E—R"F—H—H 3,367 54,010 57,377

Profit for the year REERF - 1,999 1,999
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF

+=—A=+—H 3,367 56,009 59,376

Loss for the year REEEE - (19,342) (19,342)

Dividend paid to owners SN WNGIE s

of the Company - (4,648) (4,648)

Share option forfeited HE AR R I (19) 19 -

Share option lapsed FE A (3,001) 3,001 -
At 31 December 2017 R-ET—+t=&F

+=BA=+-—8 347 35,039 35,386

BIEEBRREHIE29711E - AQ7A]
R-_E—+tF+-_A=+—Ba#E9k
2 #535,039,000E 7T (ZE— /N4

56,009,000%7T) °

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31
December 2017, calculated under section 297 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounting to
US$35,039,000 (2016: US$56,009,000).
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEMBERE

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-BLHFE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E-tf —EF —T-nf —F-MNF —T-=F
% % % % %
Sales Mix HEAS
(as a percentage of sales) (L\SHEHR ML)
Manufacturing: REEK
Dry freight RN 84 64 57 70 72
Refrigerated containers RRERM 3 9 14 13 12
Tank containers B 4 6 10 5 5
US domestic containers EEAESER 4 9 11 8 5
Other specialised containersand ~ E A EEER K
container parts SRMBR M 3 8 5 2 4
98 9% 97 98 98
Logistics services Wi R 2 4 3 2 2
Total ok 100 100 100 100 100
TEUs TEUs TEUs TEUs TEUs
HREER HREEE TREENE TREER TRIES
Production volume £EE
20-foot containers 0REHFS 163,370 196,057 163,847 197,569 184,698
40-foot containers LOREEH %ﬁ 7,390 20,624 30,934 35,150 33,942
40-foot high cube containers JORE HEEM 532,798 248,712 262,682 395,398 275,158
45-foot high cube containers 45R 3 %;&%%ﬁ 4,104 13,464 9,798 1,185 2,871
Others Hit 30,624 44,928 59,632 57,172 28,780

738,286 523,785 526,893 686,474 525,449
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY E B EE

For the year ended 31 December

256

BEt-A=t-HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ZE-tF “FE “3-1F e 2 “3-cF
US$:000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$ 000
TER TEL iR i1 TEIL
Revenue E1] 1,476,670 916,433 1,126,414 1,546,483 1,282,988
Proft (loss) from operations mEEH (B8) 70,652 (49,638) 16,562 06,024 61,573
Finance costs HHER (14,434 (11,060) (10,663) (13802) (18201)
Investment income RERA 2,765 2,764 5,086 4,704 5,064
Change in fai value of dervative frEeMIAY
financialinstruments MrEES 756 376 259) 239 -
Reclassfication of fai value (oss) gain e BT AN
of derivative financial instruments SRTEZDAEE
designated as hedging instruments (BR) GF|hhe
from hedge reserve BENZER - - - (3.07) 8,079
Share of results of associates EEBEDNA 2
(B8) &Hl (1,745) (1,201) .450) )] 90
Share of resus of joint ventures BIEABMEEH (BR) 398 40 659 (499) (289)
Proft {oss) before taxation Bitaner (5i8) 58,392 (68,349 8935 52,504 57,147
Income tax expense FERE (14,952 3571) (10287) (19624) (17,859
Proft oss) for the year AERRH (58) 43,440 (61,920) (1,35 32,900 39,288
Attioutable to: FElG
Owners of the Company YNGE 41,452 (59,434) (2723 28,021 34,074
Non-controling interests SRR ER 1,988 (2,480) 1371 4879 5014
43440 (61,920) (1352 32,900 39,288
Eamings (loss) per share sREH (58)
Basic ER UST.72cents Efll  USR46)cents 1L USOAT)cent 0l UST. 16 cents AL US1.42 cents 1l
Diuted g2 USt.72cents {1 USR46)cents ML USOA1)ent L UST. 16 cents ML UST.42 cents Ll
Assets and Liabilities BEREE
Total assets EaE 1,634,455 1205607 1,166,040 1430441 1388927
Total iabilties ek (1,013,862 B4780) 618379 (756008 (7346%4)
Total assets and fibiities EERBREES 620,593 51780 647,661 672433 54,233
Equity i
Fouity attioutable to owners of ARARREER
the Company 574,199 533014 5%,282 617630 598,263
Non-controling interests SRR RS 46,304 4806 523719 54808 55970
Total equity EREE 620,593 5780 647,061 672433 604,233
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BHEELCKER A

SINGAMAS CONTAINER HOLDINGS LIMITED
19th Floor, Rykadan Capital Tower,

135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BAENEREEB ISR AEEARAKNE MR

Tel &3 :(852) 2598 7831

Fax &  :(852) 2598 7847

E-mail B : info@singamas.com

Website #81 : http://www.singamas.com
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